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This is the 1st Affidavit
of Donald Bergman in this case

and was made on November//2017
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VANCOUVER REGISTRY

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES' CREDITORS ARRANGEMENTACT,
R.S.C. 1985, c. C-36, AS AMENDED

AND

IN THE MATTER OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATIONS ACT,
S.B.C. 2002, c. 57, AS AMENDED

AND

IN THE MATTER OF THE CANADA BUSINESS CORPORAT10N5 ACT,
R.S.C. 1985, c. C-44, AS AMENDED

AND

IN THE MATTER OF A PLAN OF COMPROMISE AND ARRANGEMENT OF
ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION

AFFIDAVIT

I, Donald Bergman, of Suite 2-781 Marine Park Drive, Salmon Arm, British Columbia, Businessman,
SWEAR (OR AFFIRM) THAT:

].. I am the sole director and the president of the Petitioner, All Canadian Investment
corporation, and as such have personal knowledge of the facts hereinafter deposed, except where such
facts are stated to be based upon information and belief .and where so stated I do verily believe the
same to be true.

2. I have read the Petition dated November 7, 2017, a true copy of which is attached
hereto as Exhibit "A" to this my Affidavit. I have personal knowledge of the facts set out in paragraphs 1
to 71 of Part 2 of the Petition and I confirm that they are true.

3. Capitalized terms not defined in this Affidavit shall have the same meaning ascribed to
them in the Petition.
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4. The Petitioner is a mortgage investment corporation which has been in business since

1998. For the reasons described in paragraphs 1 to 71 in the Petition, the Petitioner is required to

restructure its affairs and, if permitted and required, amend its Articles. I believe this will allow the

Petitioner to pay and resolve its debts, including the claims of the Petitioner's preferred shareholders, in

an orderly and equitable manner.

5. As of October 31, 2017, the Petitioner has a total of approximately $29,914,702 in

claims against it as follows:

(i) $1,785,702 in secured claims;

(ii) approximately $3.96 million in unsecured claims; and

(b) $24,229,000 in equity claims arising from the Equity Redemption Notices received from

its preferred shareholders.

6. I believe that the Petitioner has sufficient assets to cover its obligations to its secured

and unsecured creditors, however the Petitioner requires time to continue to realize on the Loan

Portfolio and the Real Property in order to maximize returns to all of its stakeholders, particularly to its

preferred shareholders.

7. As described in the Petition, the Borrowers have been delayed in making payments

pursuant to the Loans. I believe that the Loan Portfolio will have greater value to stakeholders if the
Petitioner is given time to realize on the Loan Portfolio as the Borrowers continue with their projects,

rather than having an immediate "as is" liquidation of the Loan Portfolio.

8. I further believe that sale of the Real Property will be of greater value if a sufficient

period of time is afforded to allow an orderly liquidation, as opposed to a quick sale which would result

in a lower sale price.

9. I believe that the stay pursuant to the proposed Initial Order will also allow the

Petitioner to deal with the redemption requests from debentures holders and preferred shareholders,

and outstanding payments to creditors in a fair and equitable manner.

10. I expect that if the Petitioner is afforded the requested relief under the CCAA, the

Petitioner will be able to develop a reorganization and orderly wind-down that will receive the support

of the required majority of the stakeholders, including the preferred shareholders.

11. Attached hereto as Exhibit "B" to this my Affidavit is a true copy of the Petitioner's

corporate summary from the British Columbia Registry Services.

12. Attached hereto as Exhibit "C" to this my Affidavit is a true copy of the Petitioner's

Articles of Incorporation.
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13. Attached hereto as Exhibit "D" to this my Affidavit is a true copy of the Petitioner's
Redemption Policy.

14. Attached hereto as Exhibit "E" to this my Affidavit is a true copy of the Petitioner's
management agreement with AFDI.

15. Attached hereto as Exhibit "F" to this my Affidavit is a true copy of the Petitioner's
Amended &Restated Offering Memorandum dated June 22, 2015.

16. The Petitioner's primary asset is the Loan Portfolio. The total amount of outstanding
debt owed to the Petitioner in the loan Portfolio is approximately $37.8 million. Attached hereto as
Exhibit "G" to this my Affidavit is a summary which reflects the status of the Petitioner's Loan Portfolio
as of September 30, 2017.

17. The Petitioner also owns five (5) properties registered in its name (the "Real Property').

18. Attached hereto as Exhibit "H" to this my Affidavit is a true copy of the appraisal by
Grover, Elliot & Co. Ltd. dated October 18, 2017 for the Packalen Boulevard Properties.

19. Attached hereto as Exhibit "I" to this my Affidavit is a true copy of the 2017 B.C.
Assessment Notice for the Packalen Boulevard Properties.

20. The three (3) lots that comprise the Packalen Boulevard Properties are currently listed
for sale, for a total list price of $3.98 million.

21. Attached hereto as Exhibit "J" to this my Affidavit is a true copy of the 2017 B.C.
Assessment Notice for the Garden Bay Properties.

22. PID 026-169-436 is currently listed for a price of $99,000 and PID 027-093-387 is
rurrantl~lictarl fnr aTrirP of ~F~9,(1n0, for a total list Write of $728,000

23. Attached hereto as Exhibit "K" to this my Affidavit is a true copy of the Amended

Petition filed by Fisgard on October 12, 2017 with respect to its foreclosure proceeding and

enforcement of security.

24. Boale, Wood &Company Ltd. has consented to be appointed monitor in these

proceedings (the "Monitor'). Attached hereto as Exhibit "L" is a true copy of Monitors consent to act.

25. I, with the assistance of the Monitor, have prepared cash flow projections for the period

of November 5 to December 31, 2017 during the anticipating restructuring of the entities (the "Cash-

Flow Statement"). Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit "M" to this my Affidavit is a true copy of the

Cash Flow Statement.

26. Attached hereto as Exhibit "N" to this my Affidavit is a true copy of the Petitioner's most

recent financial statements as of September 30, 2016.

27. The Petitioner believes that the Administration Charge in the amount of $250,000 is fair

and reasonable in the circumstances. The nature of the Petitioner' business and operations requires the
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expertise, knowledge and continuing participation of the proposed beneficiaries of the Administration

Charge in order to complete a successful restructuring.

28. The Petitioner believes that the Administration Charge is necessary to ensure the

continued participation of the beneficiaries of the Administration Charge.

29. Currently, there is no director and office liability insurance in place.

30. For the reasons set out above and in the Petition, I verily believe that it is in the interest

of the Petitioner and all of its stakeholders that the relief sought by the Petitioner is granted.

SWORN (OR AFFIRMED) BEFORE ME

at Vancouver, British Columbia,

on November/2017

A Com issioner f taking Affidavits for British Columbia

[Name of Commissioner (please print)]

CLARK WILSON LLP

604.687.5700

KATIE G. MAK
Barrister &Solicitor
CLARK WILSON ~

900 -885 WEST GEORGIA STREET
VANCOUVER, BC V6C~H1

T. 604.687.5700
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N0.

VANCOUVER REGISTRY

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF BRITISH COLUMBIA ~

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES' CREDITORS ARRANGEMENTACT, ~

R.S.C. 1985, c. C-36, AS AMENDED

AND ~' ~ ~
L
~

~ `"
w
3IN THE MATTER OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATIONS ACT 8 .-,. m E

S.B.C. 2002, c. 57, AS AMENDED J.
~ c'

;;~

AND `~i' ~ :'c ~$

IN THE MATTER OF THE CANADA BUSINESS CORPORATIONS ACT,
~ Z
.~j~,•

cdc
~ ~°~°

R.S.C. 1985, c. C-44, AS AMENDED ~~~
y.~

~ :.E

AND ~ ~~ ~ `•

AND ARRANGEMENT OF ~ \~
`a

IN THE MATTER OF A PLAN OF COMPROMISE

ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION

~ _.

PETITION TO THE COURT

This proceeding is brought by the Petitioner for the relief set out in Part 1 below.

If you intend to respond to this Petition, you or your lawyer must

(a) file a Response to Petition in Form 67 in the above-named registry of this court within

the time for response to Petition described below, and

serve on the retitioner

(i) 2 copies of the filed Response to Petition, and

(ii) 2 copies of each filed Affidavit on which you intend to rely at the hearing.

Orders, including~orders granting the relief claimed, may be made against you, without any further

notice to you, if you fail to file the Response to Petition within the time for response.

lime for Response to Petition

A Response to Petition must be filed and served on the Petitioner,

(a) if you were served with the Petition anywhere in Canada, within 21 days after that

service,

(b) if you were served with the Petition anywhere in the United States of America, within 35

days after that service,

(c) if you were served with the Petition anywhere else, within 49 days after that service, or
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(d) if the time for Response has been set by order of the court, within that time.

~: ~, 2

(1) The address of the registry is: 800 Smithe Street
Vancouver, BC, V6Z 2E1

(2) The ADDRESS FOR SERVICE Christopher J. Ramsay and
of the Petitioner is: Katie G. Mak

Clark Wilson LLP

900 — 885 West Georgia Street
Vancouver, BC V6C 3H1
(Direct Number: 604.643.3176)

Fax number address for service (if any) 604..687.6314
of the Petitioner:

E-mail address for service (if any) N/A
of the Petitioner:

(3) The name and office address of the Christopher J. Ramsay, and
Petitioners lawyer is: Katie G. Mak

Clark Wilson LLP
900 — 885 West Georgia Street
Vancouver, BC V6C 3H1
(Direct Number: 604.643.3176)

CLAIM OF THE PETITIONER

PART 1: ORDER SOUGHT

1. The Petitioner makes an application for an order substantially in the form attached as
Schedule "A" hereto (the "Initial Order"), for certain relief, including, inter alio, the following:

(a) A declaration that the Petitioner is a corporation to which the Companies' Creditors
Arrangement Act, R.S.C. 1985, c. C-36, as amended (the "CCAA")applies;

(b) a stay of all proceedings and remedies taken or that might be taken in respect of the
Petitioner or any of its property, except as otherwise set forth in the Initial Order or
otherwise permitted by law;

(c) authorizing the Petitioner to carry on business in a manner consistent with the
preservation of its property and business and to make certain payments in connection
with its business proceedings therein;

(d) appointing Boale, Wood &Company Ltd. as monitor in these proceedings;

(e) authorizing the Petitioner to file with the Court a plan or plans of compromise and

arrangement (the "CCAA Plan"); and
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(fl such further and other relief as this Honourable Court may deem necessary.

PART 2: FACTUAL BASIS

CORPORATE AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

..

1. The Petitioner is a company duly incorporated under the laws of the province of British
Columbia, with a registered and records office of 900-885 West Georgia St., Vancouver, B.C.

2. The Petitioner is a mortgage investment corporation ("MIC")which has been in business
since 1998. Its business is to provide loans to owners and developers of single and multi-family
residential, commercial, office and industrial real estate properties (the "Borrowers"), which are
secured by registered, unregistered and equitable mortgages on the properties (the "Mortgage Loans").

3. In addition, the Petitioner also makes other loans and investments from time to time,
which may include equity loans, advance loans and non-mortgage loans to its existing Borrowers for
construction, development, redevelopment or renovation (the "Other loans", and together with the
Mortgage Loans, hereinafter referred to as the "Loans"). Due to the nature of the loans and/or the fact
that they may be advanced prior to the Borrower completing the acquisition of properties that would be
subject to the Mortgage Loans, the Other Loans may be unsecured.

4. The Petitioners lending rates range from 69~o to 12%for the Loans.

5. As of the date of this Petition, the total value of the Petitioners portfolio of Loans (the
"Loan Portfolio") is approximately $37.8 million.

6. In some instances where a Mortgage Loan has been non-performing, the Petitioner has
taken title to the property subject to the Mortgage Loan in satisfaction of the debt owed to the
Petitioner.

dividend payments. The Petitioner has two classes of shareholders: (1) common shares, and (2)

preferred shares.

8. To date, the Petitioner has issued a total of four (4) common shares, held by four (4)

shareholders, including to its sole director and president, Donald Bergman.

9. To date, the Petitioner has issued a total of 37,277 preferred shares and 15,647

warrants, for an aggregate capital of approximately $37,277,000.

10. Pursuant to the Petitioner's Articles of Incorporation (the "Articles") and Redemption

Policy, preferred shares are redeemable by the Petitioner in certain circumstances upon written notice

(the "Equity Redemption Notice"). The Petitioner cannot redeem any preferred shares if at the time of

the redemption the Petitioner is insolvent, if the redemption will render the Petitioner insolvent, or if

the Petitioner is not able to generate cash reserves sufficient for the redemption.

11. From 2005 to 2014, shareholders received between 6.Z5~o to 8%annual returns on their

Preferred Shares. Dividends to shareholders were decreased to 2.75% in 2015 and to 1.0% in 2016. The

Petitioner has not paid any dividends in 2017.
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12. The Petitioner ceased raising capital as of January 2016. The Petitioner's most recent

offering was made in 2015 pursuant to an Amended &Restated Offering Memorandum dated June 22,

2015 (the "2015 Offering Memorandum").

13. The Petitioner is managed by ACIC Financial Development Inc. ("AFDI"), which is a

company incorporated under the laws of the province of British Columbia. AFDI is not a Petitioner in

these CCAA proceedings. Mr. Bergman is the sole director and officer of AFDI. AFDI and the Petitioner

are -not subsidiaries of one another, although Donald Bergman is a director and officer of each. AFDI

holds preferred shares in the Petitioner. The Petitioner does not hold any shares in AFDI.

14. As compensation for its services, AFDI receives an annual fee (the "Management Fee")

equal to 2~0 of the Petitioners assets and` 15 0 of the Petitioner's gross annual revenues. The

Management Fee is payable to AFDI on a monthly basis.

15. On occasion, AFDI provides funding by way of unsecured loans to the Petitioner when it

faces shortfalls in operating funds. AFDI does not currently have a profit interest in any of the Mortgage

Loans, nor does it currently receive compensation from any investment ventures involving the

Petitioner. Previously, as set out in the 2015 Offering Memorandum; AFDI had an interest in a real

estate joint venture with a Borrower that was financed by the Petitioner. The Petitioner's involvement

ended when the loan was paid out on February 9, 2016.

FINANCIAL DIFFICULTIES AND ANTICIPATED RESTRUCTURING

16. In most cases, the Loans provided by the Petitioner do not meet conventional financing

criteria for institutional lenders. Accordingly, the Loans are higher risk and therefore carry an interest

rate of between 6% to 12%, which is generally higher than the interest rates charged by conventional

providers of similar loans.

17. As an equity lender, the Petitioner accrues and capitalizes interest payment from

Borrowers until their particular development project has been completed and sold out. The Petitioner's

cas ow p annin

majority of the Borrowers' development activity has been in the Lower Mainland. Although the real

estate market in British Columbia has been robust, the high level of development activity in the Lower

Mainland has led to excessive delays in construction and development, particularly with respect to

obtaining permits from the municipalities. For example, while it would have previously taken one to

two years to obtain a permit, it now takes three to four years.

18. Unfortunately, the delays described above have resulted in delays on timely interest

payments and payouts of the Loans. This has negatively affected the Petitioner's cash flow and its

ability to meet its obligations to its creditors, including to its preferred shareholders.

19. Due to the decrease in cash flow from the Loans, the Petitioner turned to raising

additional funds from investors to meet its cash flow requirements. Unfortunately, the Petitioner has

been unsuccessful in that regard due to the decline in investor interest in mortgage investment

corporations. Due to the strength of the real estate market in the Lower Mainland, more investors are

investing in ownership where they might see higher returns than in mortgages.

20. Further, the Petitioner's ability to raise additional capital was also hindered by the

sudden resignation of its auditors, BDO Canada LLP ("BDO"). On or about March 29, 2016, which was six

(6) months after the Petitioner's year end, BDO resigned without advance warning and without
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completing the Petitioner's audited financial statement for 2015 or filing the Petitioner's tax return.

Due to the timing of BDO's resignation, the Petitioner was unable to retain another auditor in a timely

manner. The Petitioners endeavours to raise further capital had to cease as the Petitioner was unable

to provide audited financial statements to complete an offering memorandum.

. •, ~l

21. The Petitioner has since retained Sandyke &Company, who have completed review
engagement financial statements for 2015 and 2016 and have filed the Petitioner's tax returns. Sandyke
& Company have been retained to complete audited--financial statements through 2017. This is
expected to be completed by the end of 2017.

22. As a result of its inability to raise additional capital, the Petitioner had no choice but to
borrow funds from third party financiers in order to advance- loans and loan commitment obligations
with the Borrowers. Such loans had high interest rates which caused further strain to the Petitioner's
cash flow. At least one of these loans is in default, which has resulted in foreclosure proceedings being
xommenced against the Petitioner. These loans are described in further detail in subsequent sections of
this Petition.

23. Historically, the Petitioner borrowed funds through the issuance of debentures (the
"Debentures"). A number of these Debentures have now either matured or the holders of the
Debentures have made redemption requests (the "Debenture Redemption Notices"). The Debentures
are described in further detail in subsequent sections of this Petition.

24. The foregoing has resulted in a decrease in dividend payments to the preferred
shareholders in 2015 and 2016. The Petitioner has not been in a position to make any dividend
payments to the preferred shareholders in 2017. This has led to over 65% of.the preferred shareholders
sending Equity Redemption Notices.

25. To date, of the $37,277,000 capital in preferred shares issued, the total amount of

Equity Redemption Notices that have been received is approximately $24,229,000.

n ig o e ei i ,

Petitioner requires a stay of proceedings to stabilize its operations and implement an orderly

restructuring for the benefit of all of its stakeholders.

27. ~ The Petitioner's purpose for seeking the initial order is to develop a plan of compromise

or arrangement to present to its stakeholders as part of these CCAA proceedings that would involve a

fair, controlled and orderly wind-down of its business operations.

28. The Petitioner believes that given a reasonable period of time to realize on its Loan

Portfolio, the Loan Portfolio will have greater value to stakeholders, as opposed to an immediate "as is"

liquidation of the Loan Portfolio.

29. The Petitioner's plan will likely involve a sale or partial sale of the Loan Portfolio and

Real Property to pay its stakeholders.
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ASSETS

Loan Portfolio

30. The Petitioner's primary asset is the Loan Portfolio. The total amount of outstanding

debt owed to the Petitioner in the Loan Portfolio is approximately $37.8 million.

31. The Mortgage Loans are secured by registered, unregistered and equitable mortgages

against the property subject to the Mortgage Loan or on other property belonging to the Borrowers or

related parties to the Borrowers. A number of the Mortgage Loans are. also secured by general security

agreements from the Borrower or parties related to tMe Borrower and/or unlimited guarantees from

principals of the Borrower.

32. The Other Loans are unsecured loans.

Land and Other Investments

33. The Petitioner owns five (5) properties registered in its name (the "Real Property"), the

details of which- are described below.

34. In or about July 2000, the Petitioner had advanced a Mortgage Loan to a Borrower with

respect to the development of residential lots in Pender Harbour, B.C. In or about August 2015, the

remaining six (6) lots were transferred from the Borrower to the Petitioner as repayment for the

outstanding loan of $2.7 million owed to the Petitioner at that time. On or about April 20, 2017, the

Petitioner sold one (1) of the six (6) lots for a purchase price of $85,000.

35. The Real Property is managed by AFDI.

36. As part of these CCAA proceedings, the Petitioner plans to sell the Real Property to pay

expected that they will sell for higher purchase prices leading up to and in the summer months. The

Petitioner believes that allowing for more time to properly market the Real Property will result in

increased benefit to all stakeholders.

The Packolen Boulevard Properties

37. Three (3) of the remaining five (5) lots are ocean view and waterfront properties located

on Packalen Boulevard, Pender Harbour, B.C., on PIDs 026-192-993, 026-193-001 and 026-193-019 and

are hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Packalen Boulevard Properties".

38. As of October 13, 2017, the appraised market value of the Packalen Boulevard

Properties is $3.1 million. As per the 2017 B.C. Assessment Notice, the total assessed value of the

Packalen Boulevard Properties is $2,543,000.

39. The Packalen Boulevard Properties are subject to a first mortgage in favour of Fisgard

Capital Corporation ("Fisgard") and a second mortgage in favour of Van Maren Financial Ltd. ("Van

Maren"). The details with respect to these mortgages are described in subsequent sections of this

Petition.
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40. The three (3) lots that comprise the Packalen Boulevard Properties are currently listed
for sale, for a total list price of $3.98 million.

The Garden eay Properties

41. The remaining two (2} of the five (5) lots owned by the Petitioner are located on or near
Lee Road, Garden Bay, Pender Harbour, B.C., on PIDs 027-093-387 and 026-169-436 and are hereinafter
collectively referred to as the "Garden Bay PrAperties".

42. As per the 2017 B.C. Assessment Notice, PID 027-093-387 has an assessed value of
$549,000, and PID 026-169-436 has an assessed-vatue of $66,200, for total assessed value for both lots
of $615,200.

43. The Garden Bay Properties are subject to a mortgage in favour of Van Maren the details
of which are described in subsequent sections of this Petition.

~4. PID 026-169-436 is currently listed for a price of $99,000 and PID 027-093-387 is
currently listed for a price of $629,000, far a total list price of $728,000.

LIABILITIES

45. As of October 31, 2017, the Petitioner has a total of approximately $29,914,702 in

claims against it as follows:

(a) $1,785,702 in secured claims;

(b) approximately $3.96 million in unsecured claims; and

(c) $24,229,000 in equity claims arising from the Equity Redemption Notices received from

its preferred shareholders.

Secured Indebtedness

Fisgard Loan

46. As described earlier in this Petition, as a result of the Petitioner's inability to raise

additional capital, the Petitioner borrowed funds from Fisgard in order to advance loans and continue

with its loan commitment obligations to the Borrowers.

47. Pursuant to a commitment letter dated October 21, 2015, as extended by letter dated

December 19, 2016, between the Petitioner, as borrower, and Fisgard as lender, Fisgard agreed to lend

to the Petitioner the total sum of $1,250,000 (the. "Fisgard Loan"). The Fisgard Loan has an interest rate

of 8.5%per annum calculated daily, compounded monthly.

48. The Fisgard Loan is secured by a mortgage registered against the Packalen Boulevard

Properties and a general security agreement between the Petitioner and Fisgard.

49. The Fisgard Loan matured on June 15, 2017. As of September 30, 2017, the outstanding

indebtedness to Fisgard pursuant to the Fisgard Loan is $1,285,702.
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50. On August 4, 2017, Fisgard commenced foreclosure proceedings seeking to enforce its

security against the Petitioner pursuant to the mortgage and the general security agreement. Fisgard

has registered a certificate of pending litigation against the Packalen Boulevard Properties and

crystalized floating charges against the Garden Bay Properties and six (6) properties on which the

Petitioner holds registered mortgages pursuant to the Loan Portfolio.

51. As of the date of filing of this Petition, Fisgard has not yet obtained an Order Nisi.

Von Mcren Loans

52. To meet its commitments-ta=the Borrowers; the Petitioner required funds in addition to

the Fisgard Loan. Pursuant to a loan agreement dated August 22, 2016, Van Maren agreed to lend to

the Petitioner the total sum of $3,500,000 (the "First Van Maren Loan"). The First Van Maren Loan had-

an interest rate of 3%per month, paid monthly.

53. The First Van Maren Loan was secured by, inter alia, second mortgages on the Real

Property and a general security agreement in favour of Van Maren from the Petitioner. _

S4. The Petitioner paid out the First Van Maren Loan on September 20, 2017 using the
proceeds of sale from a payout of a Loan from a Borrower. This has resulted in a reduction in the
interest burn of the Petitioner but has contributed to further stress to the Petitioner's ability to meet is
current obligations to its stakeholders.

55. Pursuant to a further loan agreement with Van Maren dated October 11, 2017, Van

Maren advanced $500,000 to the Petitioner (the "Second Van Maren Loan"), which funds were used by

the Petitioner to meet its commitment to a Borrower. The funds advanced under the Second Van

Maren Loan is secured by, inter alio, Van Maren's second mortgages on the Real Property and a general

security agreement.

Unsecured Indebtedness

Hancock Loan

56. Pursuant to the terms of a promissory note dated January 30, 2013, the Petitioner is

indebted to James Hancock in the principal amount of $1,000,000 (the "Hancock Loan"). The Hancock

Loan is unsecured.

57. The Hancock Loan matured on May 1, 2013 and interest on the Hancock Loan is payable

at the rate of 6% per annum. As of October 31, 2017, the principal balance of $1,015,123.29 is

outstanding on the Hancock Loan.

AFDlLoan

58. Since 2012, the Petitioner has borrowed funds from AFDI when the Petitioner has faced

shortfalls in operating funds, including for the payment of property taxes on the property owned by the

Petitioner and with respect to legal fees relating to the Petitioner's shareholder matters. These loans do

not accrue interest. As of October 31, 2017, the Petitioner is indebted to AFDI in the total of

approximately $459,265.
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ACIC U Properties Ltd.

59. Since 2015, the Petitioner has borrowed funds from ACIC U Properties Ltd. ("U
Properties") to meet the Petitioner's operating shortfalls. U Properties and the Petitioner are not
subsidiaries of one another. Mr. Bergman is the sole shareholder of U Properties. These loans do not
accrue interest. As of October 31, 2017, the Petitioner is indebted to U Properties in the total of

$24,000.

Debentures

60. The Petitioner has issued Series A Debentures and Series B Debentures to borrow funds

in order to advance loans and loan commitment obligations to Borrowers. Interest on the debentures

are due monthly. As of October 31,.2017, the total debt from the Debentures is $2,350,000, with a total
of approximately $60,000 outstanding in accrued interest as follows:

(a~ Four (4) outstanding Series A Debentures for a total amount of $950,000.. A Series A
Debenture has an 8% per annum yield, with maturity dates ranging from May 2017 to

May 2018. There is a total of approximately $28,666.05 owing in interest on the Series
A Debentures. With respect to the Series A Debentures, a total of two (2) Debenture
Redemption Notices have been received for a total redemption amount of $180,000;
and

(b) Nine (9) outstanding Series B Debentures for a total amount of $1.4 million. A Series B
Debenture has a 7% or 89~ per annum yield, with maturity dates ranging from November
2015 to November 2017. There is a total of $37,333.32 owing in interest on the Series B
Debentures. With respect to the Series B Debentures, a total of five (5) Debenture
Redemption Notices have been received for a total redemption amount of $785,000.

Other Unsezured Creditors

61. As of October 31, 2017, the Petitioner has a total amount of approximately $32,272.83

outstanding to other creditors not described above.

Property Taxes

52. There is an outstanding amount of $11,705.92 owing on account of property taxes in

relation to the Packalen Boulevard Properties.

Shareholders

63. As described in previous sections of this Petition, as of October 31, 2017, the Petitioner

has issued a total of 37,277 preferred shares and 15,647 warrants, for total capital of approximately

$37,277,000.

64. As of the date of this Petition, there have been three (3) actions commenced in the

British Columbia Supreme Court by preferred shareholders against the Petitioner and others, including

AFDI, Mr. Bergman and Wayne Blair (an officer of the Petitioner) with respect to their shares and Equity

Redemption Notices. To date, the claims against the Petitioner pursuant to these actions are in the total

amount of approximately $1,425,000.
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Canada Revenue Agency

65. As of the date of this Petition, there are no known amounts owing to Canada Revenue

Agency with respect to GST and source deductions.

APPOINTMENT OF MONITOR AND CHARGES

66. Boale, Woad &Company Ltd. has consented to 6e appointed monitor in these CCAA

proceedings (the "Monitor").

67. It is contemplated that the proposed Monitor, counsel to the proposed Monitor and

counsel to the Petitioner would be granted a first priority Court-ordered charge on the assets, property

and undertaking of the Petitioner in priority to all claims up to the maximum amount of _$250,000 in

respect of their respective fees and disbursements, incurred at standard rates and charges (the-

"Administration Charge").

68. The nature of the Petitioner's business and operations requires the expertise;

knowledge and continuing participation of the proposed beneficiaries of the Administration Charge in

order to complete a successful restructuring.

69. Mr. Bergman is the sole director and president of the Petitioner and Mr. Blair is an

officer (secretary). During the CCAA proceeding, both Mr. Bergman and Mr. Blair will continue in the

day-to-day operations of the Petitioners business and will remain on the company's books and records

as a director and officers. Both individuals have specialized knowledge and relationships with the

stakeholders and Borrowers.

70. Currently, there is no director and officer liability insurance in place. The proposed

Initial Order provides for a charge on the assets of the Petitioners ranking behind the Administration

Charge but in priority to all other claims as security for the Petitioner's indemnification obligations for

the potential obligations and liabilities the director and officers may incur during the pendency of these

71. In consideration of the extent of the Petitioner's business and liabilities, a directors and

officer's charge in the. amount of $50,000 is proposed, over all of the Petitioners assets, property and

undertaking (the "Directors' Charge').

PART 3: LEGAL BASIS

1. The Petitioner relies upon the CCAA, and the Business Corporations Act, S.B.C. 2002, c.

57 (the "BCA"), the Supreme Court Civil Rules, B.C. Reg. 241/2010, as amended, and the inherent

jurisdiction of this Honourable Court.

2. The Petitioner is seeking protection under the CCAA as it is insolvent and would like to

effect an orderly restructuring for the benefit of its stakeholders. It is contemplated that such a

restructuring will involve an orderly wind-down of the Petitioners operations and presentation of a plan

of compromise and arrangement to its creditors.

3. The CCAA applies to a "debtor company" where the total of claims against the debtor

exceeds $5,000,000. Pursuant to section 2 of the CCAA, a "debtor company" means, inter olio, a

company that is insolvent.
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4. Whether a company is insolvent for the purposes of this CCAA involves a consideration

of the definition of "insolvent person" under the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (the "BIA"), which

defines "insolvent person" as, inter olio, a person whose liabilities to creditors provable as claims under

the BIA, who is for any reason unable to meet his obligations as they generally become due, or who.has

ceased paying his current obligations in the ordinary course of business as they generally become due.

5. At this time, the Petitioner is unable to meet its obligations to its creditors. The

Petitioner is therefore insolvent and is a debtor company to which the CCAA applies.

6. As of October 31, 2017, the Petitioner has a total of approximately $29,914,702 in

claims against it as follows:

(a) $1,785,702 in secured claims; -

(b) approximately $3.96 million in unsecured claims; and

(c) $24,229,000 in equity claims arising from the Equity Redemption Notices received from

its preferred shareholders. -

7. Pursuant to section 11.02 of the CCAA, this Honourable Court may, on an initial

application in respect of a debtor company, grant a stay if the applicant satisfies the Court that

circumstances exist that make the order appropriate.

8. The CCAA can be used for an orderly wind-down of a company.

Re Target Canada Co.; 2015 ONAC 303 (Ont. S.C.J.)

9. Further, the CCAA has been utilized to restructure mortgage investment corporations

where the primary debt has been equity claims, as was the case in the CCAA proceedings of CMIC

": ~geg~ lnv~s~m~nt G~r~~ration

See In the Matter of CMIC Mortgage Investment Corporation,

BCSC No. 5-151241, Petition filed February 13, 2015 and
Initial Order granted February 13, 2015

10. In accordance with section 6(8) of the CCAA, any plan that the Petitioner may propose

will provide that all claims that are not equity claims will be paid in full before the equity claims are to be

paid. The Petitioner is not attempting to affect the priority of payment to the Petitio.ner's other

creditors who are not preferred shareholders.

11. The Petitioners only secured creditors, Fisgard and Van Maren, are fully secured for the

amounts owing to them, by their mortgages on the Real Property and their general security agreements.

Further, the Petitioner believes that it has sufficient assets to meet its obligations to its unsecured

creditors. The only stakeholders that will ultimately be affected by the restructuring will be the

preferred shareholders.

12. The order for a stay under the Initial Order is appropriate in the circumstances. The

controlled wind-down of the Petitioner's business will allow it to provide more value to its stakeholders,

particularly the preferred shareholders, than an immediate "as is" liquidation which will destroy value.
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13. Pursuant to section 11 of the CCAA, this Honourable Court may make any order that it

considers appropriate in the circumstances with or without notice to any person as this Honourable
Court may see fit.

~2

14. Pursuant to section 11.51 of the CCAA, the debtor company may apply, on notice to the
secured creditors who are likely to be affected by the security or charge, for an order that all or part of

the company's property is subject to a security or charge, in an amount that the court considers

appropriate, in favour of any director or officer of the company to indemnify the director or officer

against obligations and liabilities that they may incur as a director or officer of the company after the-

commencement of CCAA proceedings. The court may order that the Directors' Charge rank in priority

over the claim of any secured creditor..

15. Pursuant to section 11.52 of the CCAA, on notice to the secured creditors who are likely

to be affected by the security or charge, the court may make an order declaring that all or part of the
property of a debtor company is subject to a security or charge, in an amount that the court considers
appropriate, in respect of the fees and expenses of the monitor, including the fees of the monitor's legal
advisors, and -the company's legal counsel. The court may order that the Administration- Charge rank in
priority over the claim of any secured creditor.

16. The only parties to be potentially affected by the charges sought in the proposed Initial
Order are the secured creditors, Fisgard and Van Maren. Given that the total amount of their secured
claims is approximately $1,785,702, which are secured against the Petitioner's assets which"have a value
that exceeds the amount of the secured claims, it is unlikely that the secured creditors will be affected
by the charges. Per the 2017 B.C. Assessment Notices, the total assessed value for the Real Property is
approximately $3,158,200. Fisgard and Van Maren are further secured by the additional security they
have taken, including but not limited to, the amounts owing to the Petitioner pursuant to the Loans.

17. Both the Administration Charge and the Directors' Charge are appropriate in the
circumstances and will ensure the continued engagement of the advisors, directors and officers needed
to achieve the orderly wind-down and restructuring for the benefit of the stakeholders.

PART 4: MATERIAL TO BE RELIED ON

Affidavit #1 of Donald Bergman, made November 7, 2017.

2. Such further and other material as counsel may advise and this Honourable Court may

allow.

The Petitioner estimate that the hearing of the Petition will take 1 hour.

Date: November ~, 2017.
Signature o Lawyer for Petitioner
Lawyer: Katie G. Mak

This PETITION TO THE COURT is prepared by Katie G. Mak of the firm of Clark Wilson LLP whose place of business

is 900 — 885 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 3H1 (Direct #: 604.643.3105, Fax #:

604.687.6314, Email: KMak@cwilson.com) (File #:45211-0001).
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To be completed by the court only:

Order made

❑ in the terms requested in paragraphs of Part 1 of this

Petition

❑ with the following variations and additional terms:

Date:
[dd/mmm/yyyy] Signature of D Judge ❑ Master-

13
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No.
Vancouver Registry

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES' CREDITORS ARRANGEMENT ACT,

R.S.C. 1985, c. C-36, AS AMENDED

AND

IN THE MATTER OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATIONS ACT,

S.B.C. 2002, c. 57, AS AMENDED

~I~1~7

IN THE MATTER OF THE CANADA BUSINESS CORPORATIONS ACT,

R.S.C. 1985, c. C-44, AS AMENDED

►_~►17

IN THE MATTER OF A PLAN OF COMPROMISE AND ARRANGEMENT OF
ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION

ORDER MADE AFTER APPLICATION

BEFORE THE HONOURABLE )
Nov/2017

Columbia, on the day of November, 2017 (the "Oder Date"); AND ON HEARING I
Christopher J. Ramsay and Katie G. Mak, counsel for the Petitioner and those other counsel
listed on Schedule "A" hereto; AND UPON READING the material filed, including the First
Affidavit of Donald Bergman sworn November , 2017 and the consent of Boale, Wood &
Company Ltd. to act as Monitor; AND UPON BEING ADVISED that the [secured creditors] who
are likely to be affected by the charges created herein were given notice; AND pursuant to the
Companies' Creditors Arrangement Act, R.S.C. 1985 c. C-36 as amended (the "CCAA"), the
British Columbia Supreme Court Civil Rules and the inherent jurisdiction of this Honourable
Court;
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THIS COURT ORDERS AND DECLARES THAT:

JURISDICTION

1. The Petitioner is a company to which the CCAA applies.

SUBSEQUENT HEARING DATE

2. The hearing of the Petitioner's application for an extension of the Stay Period (as

defined in paragraph 14 of this Order) and for any ancillary relief shall be held at the

Courthouse at 800 Smithe Street, Vancouver, British Columbia at ^.m. on

_, the day of December 2017 or such other date as this Court may order.

PLAN OF ARRANGEMENT

3. The Petitioner shall have the authority to file and may, subject to further order of this

Court, file with this Court a plan of compromise or arrangement (hereinafter referred to as the

"Plan").

POSSESSION OF PROPERTY AND OPERATIONS

4. Subject to this Order and any further Order of this Court, the Petitioner shall remain in

possession and control of its current and future assets, undertakings and properties of every

nature an m w a soever, an

"Property"), and continue to carry on its business (the "Business") in the ordinary course and in

a manner consistent with the preservation of the Business and the Property. The Petitioner

shall be authorized and empowered to continue to retain and employ the employees,

consultants, agents, experts, accountants, counsel and such other persons (collectively,

"Assistants") currently retained or employed by it, with liberty to retain such further Assistants

as it deems reasonably necessary or desirable in the ordinary course of business or for carrying

out the terms of this Order.

5. The Petitioner shall be entitled, but not required, to pay the following expenses which

may have been incurred prior to the Order Date:

(a) all outstanding wages, salaries, employee and pension benefits (including long

and short term disability payments), vacation pay and expenses (but excluding
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severance pay) payable before or after the Order Date, in each case incurred in

the ordinary course of business and consistent with the relevant compensation

policies and arrangements existing at the time incurred (collectively "Wages");

and

(b) the fees and disbursements of any Assistants retained or employed by the

Petitioner which are related to the Petitioner's restructuring, at their standard

rates and charges, including payment of the fees and disbursements of legal

counsel retained by the Petitioner, whenever and wherever incurred, in respect

of:

(i) these proceedings or any other similar proceedings in other jurisdictions

in which the Petitioner or any subsidiaries or affiliated companies of the

?etitioner are domiciled;

(ii) any litigation in which the Petitioner is named as a party or is otherwise

involved, whether commenced before or after the Order Date; and

(iii) any related corporate matters.

6. Except as otherwise provided herein, the Petitioner shall be entitled to pay all expenses

reasonably incurred by the Petitioner in carrying on the Business in the ordinary course

following the Order Date, and in carrying out the provisions of this Order, which expenses shall

include, without limitation:

(a) afl expenses and capital expenditures reasonably incurred and which are

necessary for the preservation of the Property or the Business including, without

limitation, payments on account of insurance (including directors' and officers'

insurance), maintenance and security services, provided that any capital

expenditure exceeding $50,000 shall be approved by the Monitor;

(b) ail obligations incurred by the Petitioner after the Order Date, including without

limitation, with respect to goods and services actually supplied to the Petitioner

following the Order Date (including those under purchase orders outstanding at

the Order Date but excluding any interest on the Petitioner's obligations

incurred prior to the Order Date); and

(c) fees and disbursements of the kind referred to in paragraph 5(b) which maybe

incurred after the Order Date.
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7. The Petitioner is authorized to remit, in accordance with legal requirements, or pay:

(a) any statutory deemed trust amounts in favour of the Crown in right of Canada or

of any Province thereof or any other taxation authority which are required to be

deducted from Wages, including, without limitation, amounts in respect of (iJ

employment insurance, (ii) Canada Pension Plan, (iii) Quebec Pension Plan, and

(iv) income taxes or any such claims which are to be paid pursuant to Section

6(3) of the CCAA;

(b) all goods and services or other applicable sales taxes (collectively, "Sales Taxes")

required to be remitted by the Petitioner in connection with the sale of goods

and services by the Petitioner, but only where such Sales Taxes accrue or are

collected after the Order Date, or where such Sales Taxes accrued or were

collected prior to the Order Date but not required to be remitted until on or

after the Order Date; and

(c) any amount payable to the Crown in right-of Canada or of any Province thereof

or any political subdivision thereof or any other taxation authority in respect of

municipal property taxes, municipal business taxes or other taxes, assessments

or levies of any nature or kind which are entitled at law to be paid in priority to

claims of secured creditors.

8. Until such time as a real property lease is disclaimed in accordance with the CCAA, the

Petitioner shall pay all amounts constituting rent or payable as rent under real property leases

me u ing,#or~r ea mairrt~rranee-eh~g~s, utilities and realty taxes

and any other amounts payable as rent to the landlord under the lease) based on the terms of

.existing lease arrangements or as otherwise may be negotiated between the Petitioner and the

landlord from time to time ("Rent"), for the period commencing from and including the Order

Date, twice-monthly in equal payments on the first and fifteenth day of the month in advance

(but not in arrears). On the date of the first of such payments, any Rent relating to the period

commencing from and including Order Date shall also be paid.

Except as specifically permitted herein, the Petitioner is hereby directed, until further

Order of this Court:

(a) to make no payments of principal, interest thereon or otherwise on account of

amounts owing by the Petitioner to any of its creditors as of the Order Date

except as authorized by this Order;
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(b) to make no payments in'respect of any financing leases which create security

interests;

(c) to grant no security interests, trust, mortgages, liens, charges or encumbrances

upon or in respect of any of its Property, nor become a guarantor or surety, nor

otherwise become liable in any manner with respect to any other person or

entity except as authorized by this Order;

(d) to not grant credit except in the ordinary course, of the Business only to its

customers for goods and services actually supplied to those customers, provided

such customers agree that there is no right ofset-off in respect of amounts

owing for such goods and services against any debt owing by the Petitioner to

such customers as of the Order Date,• and

(e) to not incur liabilities except in the ordinary course of Business.

RESTRUCTURING

10. Subject to such requirements as are imposed by the CCAA, the Petitioner shall have the

right to:

(a) permanently or temporarily cease, downsize or shut down all or any part of its

Business or operations and commence marketing efforts in respect of any of its

redundant ornon-material assets and to dispose of redundant or non-material

assets not exceeding $100,000 in any one transaction or $300,000 in the aggregate;

(b) terminate the employment of such of its employees or temporarily lay off such of its

employees as it deems appropriate; and

(c) pursue all avenues of refinancing for its Business or Property, in whole or part;

all of the foregoing to permit the Petitioner to proceed with an orderly restructuring of

the Business (the "Restructuring").

11. The Petitioner shall provide each of the relevant landlords with notice of the Petitioner's

intention to remove any fixtures from any leased premises at least seven (7) days prior to the

date of the intended removal. The relevant landlord shall be entitled to have a representative

present in the leased premises to observe such removal and, if the landlord disputes the

Petitioner's entitlement to remove any such fixture under the provisions of the lease, such

fixture shall remain on the premises and shall be dealt with as agreed between any applicable
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secured creditors who claim a security interest in the fixtures, such landlord and the Petitioner,

or by further Order of this Court upon application by the Petitioner, the landlord or the

applicable secured creditors on at least two (2) clear days' notice to the other parties. If the

Petitioner disclaims the lease governing such leased premises in accordance with Section 32 of

the CCAA, it shall not be required to pay Rent under such lease pending resolution of any

dispute concerning such fixtures (other than Rent payable for the notice period provided for in

Section 32(5) of the CCAA), and the disclaimer of the lease shall be without prejudice to the

Petitioner's claim to the fixtures in dispute.

12. If a notice of disclaimer is delivered pursuant to Section 32_of.the CCAA, then: (a) during

the period prior to the effectivetime of the disclaimer, the landlord. may show the affected

leased premises to prospective tenants during normal business hours on giving the Petitioner

and the Monitor 24 hours' prior written notice; and (b) at the effective time of the disclaimer,

the landlord shall be entitled to take possession of any such leased premises without waiver of

or prejudice to any claims the landlord may have against the Petitioner, or any other rights the

landlord might have, in respect of such lease or leased premises and the landlord shall be

entitled to notify the Petitioner of the basis on which it is taking possession and gain possession

of and re-lease such leased premises to any third party or parties on such terms as the landlord

considers advisable, provided that nothing herein shall relieve the landlord of its obligation to

mitigate any damages claimed in connection therewith.

13. Pursuant to Section 7(3)(c) of the Personal Information Protection and Electronics

Documents Act, S.C. 2000, c. 5 and Section 18(1)(0) of the Personal Information Protection Act,

S.B.C. 2003, c. 63, and any regulations promulgated under authority of either Act, as applicable

(the "Relevant Enactment"), the Petitioner, in the course of these proceedings, is permitted to,

and hereby shall, disclose personal information of identifiable individuals in its possession or

control to stakeholders, its advisors, prospective investors, financiers, buyers or strategic

partners (collectively, "Third Parties"), but only to the extent desirable or required to negotiate

and complete the Restructuring or to prepare and implement the Plan or transactions for that

purpose; provided that the Third Parties to whom such personal information is disclosed enter

into confidentiality -agreements with the Petitioner binding them in the same manner and to

the same extent with respect to the collection, use and disclosure of that information as if they

were an organization as defined under the Relevant Enactment, and limiting the use of such

information to the extent desirable or required to negotiate or complete the Restructuring or

to prepare and implement the Plan or transactions for that purpose, and attorning to the

jurisdiction of this Court for the purposes of that agreement. Upon the completion of the use

of personal information for the limited purposes set out herein, the Third Parties shall return

the personal information to the Petitioner or destroy it. If the Third Parties acquire personal
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information as part of the Restructuring or the preparation and implementation of the Plan or

transactions in furtherance thereof, such Third Parties may, subject to this paragraph and any

Relevant Enactment, continue to use the personal information in a manner which is in all

respects identical to the prior use thereof by the Petitioner.

STAY OF PROCEEDINGS, RIGHTS AND REMEDIES

14. Until and including December , 2017, or such later date as this Court may order

(the "Stay Period"), no action, suit or proceeding in any court or tribunal (each, a "Proceeding")

against or in respect of the Petitioner or the Monitor, or affecting the Business or the Property,

shall be commenced or continued except with the written consent of the Petitioner and the

Monitor orwith- leave of this Court, and any and all Proceedings currently under way against or

in respect of the Petitioner or affecting the Business or the Property are hereby stayed and

suspended pending further Order of this Court.

15. During the Stay Period, all rights and remedies of any individual, firm, corporation,

governmental body or agency, or any other entities (all of the foregoing, collectively being

"Persons" and each being a "Person") against or in respect of the Petitioner or the Monitor, or

affecting the Business or the Property, are hereby stayed and suspended except with the

written consent of the Petitioner and the Monitor or leave of this Court.

16. Nothing in this Order, including paragraphs 14 and 15, shall: (i) empower the Petitioner

to carryon any business which the Petitioner is not lawfully entitled to carryon; (ii) affect such

investigations, actions, suits or proceedings by a regulatory body as are permitted by Section

11.1 of the CCAA; (iii) prevent the filing of any registration to preserve. or perfect a mortgage,

charge or security interest (subject to the provisions of Section 39 of the CCAA relating to the

priority of statutory Crown securities); or (iv) prevent the registration or filing of a lien or claim

for lien or the commencement of a Proceeding to protect lien or other rights that might

otherwise be barred or extinguished by the effluxion of time, provided that no further step shall

betaken in respect of such lien, claim for lien or Proceeding except for service of the initiating

documentation on the Petitioner.

NO INTERFERENCE WITH RIGHTS

17. During the Stay Period, no Person shall discontinue, fail to honour, alter, interfere with,

repudiate, terminate or cease to perform any right, renewal right, contract, agreement, licence

or permit in favour of or held by the Petitioner, except with the written consent of the

Petitioner and the Monitor or leave of this Court.
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CONTINUATION OF SERVICES

18. During the Stay Period, all Persons having oral or written agreements with the Petitioner

or mandates under an enactment for the supply of goods and/or services, including without

limitation all computer software, communication and other data services, centralized banking

services, payroll services, insurance, transportation, services, utility or other services to the

Business or the Petitioner, are hereby restrained until further Order of this Court from

discontinuing, altering, interfering with, or terminating the supply of such goods or services as

may be required by the Petitioner, and that the Petitioner shall be entitled to the continued use

of its current premises, telephone numbers, facsimile numbers, Internet addresses and domain

names, provided in each case that the_normal prices or charges for all such goods or services

received after the Order Date are paid by the Petitioner in accordance with normal payment

practices of the Petitioner or such other practices as maybe agreed upon by the supplier or

service provider and the Petitioner and the Monitor, or as may be ordered by this Court.

lVON-DEROGATION OF RIGHTS

19. Notwithstanding any provision in this Order, no Person shall be prohibited from

requiring immediate payment for goods, services, use of leased or licensed property or other

valuable consideration provided on or after the Order Date, nor shall any Person be under any

obligation to advance or re-advance any monies or otherwise extend any credit to the

Petitioner on or after the Order Date. Nothing in this Order shall derogate from the rights

conferred and obligations imposed by the CCAA.

PROCEEDINGS AGAINST DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

20. During the Stay Period, and except as permitted by subsection 11.03(2) of the CCAA, no

Proceeding may be commenced or continued against the directors or officers of the Petitioner

with respect to any claim against the directors or officers that arose before the date hereof and

that relates to any obligations of the Petitioner whereby the directors or officers are alleged

under any law to be liable in their capacity as directors or officers for the payment or

performance of such obligations, until a compromise or arrangement in respect of the

Petitioner, if one is filed, is sanctioned by this Court or is refused by the creditors of the

Petitioner or this Court. Nothing in this Order, including in this paragraph, shall prevent the

commencement of a Proceeding to preserve any claim against a director or officer of the

Petitioner that might otherwise be barred or extinguished by the effluxion of time, provided

that no further step shall be taken in respect of such Proceeding except for service of the

initiating documentation on the applicable director or officer.
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DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INDEMNIFICATION AND CHARGE

21. The Petitioner shall indemnify its directors and officers against obligations and liabilities

that they may incur as directors or officers of the Petitioner after the commencement of the

within proceedings, except to the extent that, with respect to any director or officer, the

obligation or liability was incurred as aresult of the director's or officer's gross negligence or

wilful misconduct.

22. The directors and officers of-the Petitioner shah be entitled to the benefit of and are .

hereby granted a charge (the "Directors' Charge") on the Property, which charge shall not

exceed an aggregate amount of $50,000, as security fDr the indemnity provided in paragraph ~1 -

ofthis Order. The Directors' Charge shall have the priority set out in paragraphs 33 and 35 -

herein.

23. Notwithstanding any language in any applicable insurance policy to the contrary, (a) no

insurer shall b~ entitled to be subrogated to or claim the benefit of the Directors' Charge, and

(b) the Petitioner's directors and. officers shall only be entitled to the benefit of the Directors'

Charge to the extent that they do not have coverage under any directors' and officers'

insurance policy, or to the extent that such coverage is insufficient to pay amounts indemnified

in accordance with paragraph 21 of this Order.

APPOINTMENT OF MONITOR

24. Boale, Wood &Company Ltd. is hereby appointed pursuant to the CCAA as the Monitor,

an officer of this Court, to monitor the business and financial affairs of the Petitioner with the

powers and obligations set out in the CCAA or set forth herein, and that the Petitioner and its

shareholders, officers, directors, and Assistants shall advise the Monitor of all material steps

taken by the Petitioner pursuant to this Order, and shall co-operate fully with the Monitor in

the exercise of its powers and discharge of its obligations and provide the Monitor with the

assistance that is necessary to enable the Monitor to adequately carry out the Monitor's

functions.

25. The Monitor, in addition to its prescribed rights and obligations under the CCAA, is

hereby directed and empowered to:

(a) monitor the Petitioner's receipts and disbursements;
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(b) report to this Court at such times and intervals as the Monitor may deem _

appropriate with respect to matters relating to the Property, the Business, and

such other matters as may be relevant to the proceedings herein;

(c) advise the Petitioner in its development of the Plan and any amendments to the

Plan; _ _

(d) assist the Petitioner, to the extent required by the Petitioner, with the holding

and. administering of creditors'_or shareholders' meetings for voting on the Plan; - _ -_ .

~(e) - have full and complete acces to the Property, including the premises,:books, _ _ _-

records,-data, including data in electronic form, and other financial documents of

the Petitioner, to the extent that is necessary to adequately assess the

Petitioner's business and financial affairs or to perform its duties arising under

this Order;

(f) be at liberty to engage independent legal counsel or such other persons as the __

Monitor deems necessary or advisable respecting the exercise of its powers and

performance of its obligations under this Order; and

(g) perform such other duties as are required by this Order or by this Court from

time to time.

26. The Monitor shall not take possession of the Property and shall take no part whatsoever

in the management or supervision of the management of the Business and shall not, by fulfilling

its obligations hereunder, or by inadvertence in relation to the due exercise of powers or

performance of duties under this Order, be deemed to have taken or maintained possession or

control of the Business or Property, or any part thereof, and nothing in this Order shall be

construed as resulting_ in the Monitor being an employer or a successor employer, within the

meaning of any statute, regulation or rule of law or equity, for any purpose whatsoever.

27. Nothing herein contained shall require or allow the Monitor to occupy or to take

control, care, charge, possession or management (separately and/or collectively, "Possession")

of any of the Property that might be environmentally contaminated, might be a pollutant or a

contaminant, or might cause or contribute to a. spill, discharge, release or deposit of a

substance contrary to any federal, provincial or other law respecting the protection,

conservation, enhancement, remediation or rehabilitation of the environment or relating to the

disposal of waste or other contamination including, without limitation, the Canadian
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Environmental Protection Act, the Fisheries Act, the British Columbia Environmental

ManogementAct, the British Columbia Fish Protection Act and regulations thereunder (the

"Environmental Legislation"), provided however that nothing herein shall exempt the Monitor

from any duty to report or make disclosure imposed by applicable Environmental Legislation.

For greater certainty, the Monitor shall not, as a result of this Order or anything done in

pursuance of the Monitor's duties and powers under this Order, be deemed to be in Possession

of any of the Property within the meaning of any Environmental Legislation, unless it is actually

in possession. - -

28. The Monitor shaA provide any creditor of the Petitioner with information provided by

thePe#itioner in response to reasonable .requests for information made in writing by such -__

ereditor addressed to the Monitor. The Monitor-shall not have any responsibility orliability

with respect to the information disseminated by it pursuant to this paragraph. In the case of

information that the Monitor has been advised by the Petitioner is confidential, the Monitor

shall not provide such information to creditors unless otherwise directed by this Court or on

such terms as the Monitor and the Petitioner may agree.

29. In addition to the rights and protections afforded the Monitor under the CCAA or as an -

officer ofthis Court, the Monitor shall incur no liability or obligation as a result of its

appointment or the carrying out of the provisions of this Order, save and except for any gross

negligence or wilful misconduct on its part. Nothing in this Order shall derogate from the rights

and protections afforded the Monitor by the CCAA or any applicable legislation.

ADMINISTRATION CHARGE

30. The Monitor, counsel to the Monitor, if any, and counsel to the Petitioner shall be paid

their reasonable fees and disbursements, in each case at their standard rates and charges, by

the Petitioner as part of the cost of these proceedings. The Petitioner is hereby authorized and

directed to pay the accounts of the Monitor, counsel to the Monitor and counsel to the

Petitioner on a periodic basis and, in addition, the Petitioner is hereby authorized to pay to the

Monitor and counsel to the Petitioner, retainers in the amounts of $50,000 to each to be held

by them as security for payment of their respective fees and disbursements outstanding from

time to time.

31. The Monitor and its legal counsel shall pass their accounts from time to time, and for

this purpose the accounts of the Monitor and its legal counsel are hereby referred to a judge of

the British Columbia Supreme Court who may determine the manner in which such accounts
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are to be passed, including by hearing the matter on a summary basis or referring the matter to _

a Registrar of this Court.

32. The Monitor, counsel to the Monitor, if any, and counsel to the Petitioner shall be

entitled to the benefit of and are hereby granted a charge (the "Administration Charge") on the

Property, which charge shall not exceed an aggregate amount of $250,000, as security for their

respective fees and~disbursements incurred at the standard rates and charges of the Monitor

and such counsel, both before and after the making of this Order which are related to the

Petitioner's restructuring. The Administration Charge shall have the priority set out in

paragraphs 33 and 35 hereof. _

_.
VALIDITY AND PRIORITY OF CHARGES CREATED BY THIS ORDER -

33. The priorities of the Administration Charge and the Directors' Charge, as among-them,

shall be as follows:

First -Administration Charge (to the maximum amount of $250,000); and

Second —Directors' Charge (to the maximum amount of $50,000).

34. Any security documentation evidencing, or the filing, registration or perfection of, the

Administration Charge and the Directors' Charge (collectively, the "Charges")shall not be

required, and that the Charges shall be effective as against the Property and shall be valid and

enforceable for all purposes, including as against any right, title or interest filed, registered or

perfected subsequent to the Charges coming into existence, notwithstanding any failure to file,

register or perfect any such Charges.

35. Each of the Charges shall constitute a mortgage, security interest, assignment byway of

security and charge on the Property and such Charges shall rank in priority to all other security

interests, trusts, liens, mortgages,, charges and encumbrances and claims of secured creditors,

statutory or otherwise (collectively, "Encumbrances"), in favour of any Person, save and except

those claims contemplated by section 11.8(8) of the CCAA.

36. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, or as may be approved by this Court, the

Petitioner shall not grant or suffer to exist any Encumbrances over any Property that rank in

priority to, or pari passu with the Charges, unless the Petitioner obtains the prior written

consent of the Monitor, and the beneficiaries of the Administration Charge and the Directors'

Charge.
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37. The Administration Charge and the Directors' Charge shall not be rendered invalid or ,

unenforceable and the rights and remedies of the chargees entitled to the benefit of-the

Charges (collectively, the "Chargees") shall not otherwise be limited or impaired in any way by

(a) the pendency of these proceedings and the declarations of insolvency made herein; (b) any

applications) for bankruptcy orders) issued pursuant to the BIA, or any bankruptcy order made

pursuant to such applications; (c) the filing of any assignments for the general benefit of _.

creditors made pursuant to th_e=6iA; (d) the provisions of any federal or provincial statutes; or __

(e) any negative covenants, prohibitions or other similar provisions with respect to borrowings, _

incurring dent or the creation of Encumbrances, contained in any existing loan documents,

lease, mortgage, security agreement, debenture, sublease, offer to lease or other agreement

(collectively, an "Agreement")which binds the Petitioner; and notwithstanding any:provision to - .-

the contrary in any Agreement:

(a) the creation of the Charges shall- not create or be deemed to constitute: a breach

by the Petitioner of any Agreement to which it is a party;

(b) none of the Chargees shall have any liability to any Person whatsoever as a result

of any breach of any Agreement caused by the creation of the Charges; and

(c) the payments made by the Petitioner pursuant to this Order and the granting of

the Charges, do not and will not constitute preferences, fraudulent conveyances,

transfers at undervalue, oppressive conduct, or other challengeable or voidable

transactions under any applicable law.

38. THIS COURT ORDERS that any Charge created by this Order over leases of real property

in Canada shall only be a Charge in the Petitioner's interest in such real property leases.

SERVICE AND NOTICE

39. The Monitor shall (i) without delay, publish in the Vancouver Sun a notice containing the

information prescribed under the CCAA, (ii) within five days after Order Date, (A} make this

Order publicly available in the manner prescribed under the CCAA, (B) send, in the prescribed

manner, a notice to every known creditor who has a claim against the Petitioner of more than

$1000, and (C) prepare a list showing the names and addresses of those creditors and the

estimated amounts of those claims, except for the names, addresses and amount of claims of

the Petitioner's preferred shareholders, and make it publicly available in the prescribed

manner, all in accordance with Section 23(1)(a) of the CCAA and the regulations made

thereunder.
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40. The Petitioner and the Monitor are at liberty to serve this Order, any other materials

and orders in these proceedings, any notices or other correspondence, by forwarding true

copies thereof by prepaid ordinary mail, courier, personal delivery or electronic transmission to

the Petitioner's creditors or other interested parties at their respective addresses as last shown

on the records of the Petitioner and that any such service or notice by courier, personal delivery

or electronic transmission shall be deemed to be received on the next business day following _. _

the date offorwarding thereof, or if sent by ordinary mail, on the third business day after ___ -

mailing. °

41. -- Any Person thaf wishes to be served with any application and other materials in these

proceedings must deliver to the Monitor by way of~ordinary mail, courier, personal delivery or <--

electronic transmission a request to be added to a service list (the "Service list") to be

maintained bythe Monitor. The Monitor shall post and maintain an up to date form of the

Service Liston its website at: [INSERT WEBSITE ADDRESS].

~2. Any party to these proceedings may serve any court materials in these proceedings by

emailing a PDF or other electronic copy of such materials to counsels' email addresses as

recorded on the Service List from time to time, and the Monitor shad post a copy of all

prescribed materials on its website at: [INSERT WEBSITE ADDRESS].

43. Notwithstanding paragraphs 40 and 42 of this Order, service of the Petition„ any

affidavits filed in support of the Petition and this Order shall be made on the Federal and British

Columbia Crowns in accordance with the Crown Liability and Proceedings Act, R.S.C. 1985, c. C-

50, and regulations thereto, in respect of the Federal Crown, and the Crown Proceeding Act,

R.S.B.C. 1996, c. 89, in respect of the British Columbia Crown.

GENERAL

44. The Petitioner or the Monitor may from time to time apply to this Court for directions in

the discharge of its powers and duties hereunder.

45. Nothing in this Order shall prevent the Monitor from acting as an interim receiver, a

receiver, a receiver and manager, or a trustee in bankruptcy of the Petitioner, the Business or

the Property.

46. THIS COURT REgUESTS the aid and recognition of other Canadian and foreign Courts,

tribunal, regulatory or administrative bodies, including any Court or administrative tribunal of

any federal or State Court or administrative body in the United States of America, to act in aid

of and to be complementary to this Court in carrying out the terms of this Order where
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required. All courts, tribunals, regulatory and administrative bodies are hereby respectfully

requested to make such orders and to provide such assistance to the Petitioner and to the

Monitor, as an officer of this Court, as may be necessary or desirable to give efFect to this

Order, to grant representative status to the Monitor in any foreign proceeding, or to assist the

Petitioner and the Monitor and their respective agents in carrying out the terms of this Order.

47. ̀ ~ Each of the Petitioner and the Monitor be at liberty and is hereby authorized and = _

empawered to apply to any court, tribunal, regulatory or administrative body, wherever -

-loc,ated, for the recognition of this Order and for assistance in carrying out the terms of this 

-t}rder and the Monitor is authorized and empowered to act as a representative in respect of--' -

-=,..the within proceedings for the purpose of having these proceedings recognized in a jurisdiction -

_ 'outside Canada, including acting as a foreign representative of the Petitioner to apply to the

lJnited States Bankruptcy Court for relief pursuant to Chapter 15 of the United States

Bankruptcy Cocle,-11 U.S.C. §§ 101-1330, as amended.

= 48. The Petitioner may (subject to the provisions of the CCAA and the BIA) at any time file a

voluntary assignment in bankruptcy or a proposal pursuant to the commercial reorganization

provisions of the BIA if and when the Petitioner determines that such a filing is appropriate.

49. The Petitioner is hereby at liberty to apply for such further interim or interlocutory relief

as it deems advisable within the time limited for Persons to file and serve Responses to the

Petition.

50. Leave is hereby granted to hear any application in these proceedings on two (2) clear

days' notice after delivery to all parties on the Service List of such Notice of Application and all

affidavits in support, subject to the Courtin its discretion further abridging or extending the

time for service.

51. Any interested party (including the Petitioner and the Monitor) may apply to this Court

to vary or amend this Order on not less than seven (7) days' notice to all parties on the Service

- List and to any other party or parties likely to be affected by the order sought or upon such

other notice, if any;. as this Court may order.

52. Endorsement of this Order by counsel appearing on this application is hereby dispensed

with.

53. This Order and all of its provisions are effective as of 12:01 a.m. local Vancouver time on

the Order Date.
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T_HE FOLLOWING PARTIES APPROVE THE FORM OF THlS ORDER AND CONSENT TO EACH OF THE

ORDERS, IF ANY, THAT ARE INDICATED ABOVE AS BEING BY CONSENT:

Signature of

= 0 Party Q.tawyer for the Petitioners

Christopher 1. Ramsay /Katie G. Mak

REGISTRAR
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Incorpflration I~Io. 57{k~25

SPECIAL I~ESOL,UrIQN

The fallowing special resolution was passed. by the undermentioned company on the date stated:

Name of Company: t~LL CANADIAN MORTGAGE I~NESTMEN`T CORPORATTQN

Date resc~Iucion passed: December 13, 2g00

Resolution:

RESOLVED as a Special Resolution that:

I. The name of the Company be changed from ALL CANAI]IAN MORTGAGE INVESTMENT
G~PR~RATYON tv ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION.

2. The Memorandum of tl~e Company, as altered by these resolutions, be in the form attaci~ed
hereto as Schedule ~A" so that the Memorancluiil as altered shall, at tl~e time of filing, comply
with the Con2pnny Act (British Columbia).

Cerrified a true copy the I3th day of December, Z00{).

Dir~ctar

This is Exhibit :.. C....,. ~ferred to in ttte affidavit of

..~! Q ~` ~~. ~t .....~:i'~` .M.~,~ ........ suuom (a affirmed)

before me on ::.. ~ ~ ~ ~ ~U 1 } ... [dd/mm~• •~• MYyYY~

......... .~t~T:: • :..... ...................... ............. ....
A Comrrri '.pner for taking Affidavits

within"British Columbia
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SCHEDULE "A"

CORM 1.

(Section ~

_ COIviPANY ACT

MEMORANDUM

{}P

AI,L CAI~IADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION

(as altered by Special Resolution dated T)ecember 13, 2000)

1. ~le Ilil1T1~ Of [I1C COI17~811}~ is "ALL CANAD]AN INVESTMENT CORPORATION".

2. 'I've authorized capital of the eornpanq ~~nsists of 2,D00,000,000 shares without par value
divided into:

(i) ]. ,000,000,00 common shares without par value; and

{u) 1,000~t}OO,E~O preferred shares ~~ithout far value and leaving ~iereto the special rights
and restrictions set forth in the Articles of the Company.
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COMPANY ACT

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

+Certificate of Incorporation
No. 570425

The following special resolution was passed. by the company referred to below on the date stated:

blame of company:

I1ate resolution passed

_570~1?5 B.C. ~,td.

Novernber 12, 1998

"BE XT RESOLVL-D, as a special resolution, that:

1. the naive of the Company be changed from 570425 B.~. LTD. i~ ALL C~INADIAN
I~IORTGAGE INVESTMENT CQRPORATI~N;

2, par~.graph 1 of the Memorandum of the Company be altered to read;

"1. 'Fhe name of the company is "All Canadian Mvrtga~e Investment
Corporation"."

3. the authorized capital o#~ the Company be Increased from t,000,t}04,000 common shares
without paz value, of which 1 share is issued, to 2,000,00O,OOD shares without par value
divided into 1,40~,QQO,OOC} shares designated as common shares without par value of
which I shaze is issued, and 1,000,OOO,Q4Q unissued shares designated as preferred shares
witht~ut par value ~u~►d having attached thereto the special rights and restrictions set forfl~
in the Articles o~f the Company,

4, paragraph ~ of the Memorandum of the Company be altered to read:.

"Z. The authorszed capital of the Company consists of 2,000,OOO,OOU
shares without par value divided into:

(i) 1, 00,000,000 common s}~ares without par value; and

(ii) 1,000,000.,000 preferred shares without par 4~alue and having
$ttached thereto the special rights and. restrictions set forth in
the Articles of the Company:'
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.̀ Lhe Tvlemoran.dum as a]tered by this resolution be in the form attactzed hereto and marked
as Scher~~,tle "A" sc~ that the Memorandum, as It d, shall at tie time of filing comply
witf~ the Gompa~y Act; and

6, the Articles as filed with the Registrar of Companies, be altered by t~eleting them in t~~eir
entirety and replacing them with the Articles which are atta.cl~ed hereto and marked as
schedule "B"."

Certified a true copy November 12, I99$. s'~~~- Jam, ,

Signature

President and Director
Relationship to Company
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Schedule "A"

Altered Mcmaranclum
(As altered by Special Resolution passed: November 12, 199$} .~

FORM. 1
(Scclign S}

CQ1Vi]'AI~IY ACT

MEMORANDUM

I wish to be formed into a company v~~i~h limited Liability under tl~e Company Act in pursc~aitce of
this menl~randum

1. T7~e name of the a~mpany is "All Canadian. M~rlgage Investment Gorporatian".

2. The authorized capital of the Company consists of ?,O~O,~b0,C10~ shares without per
value divided into:

(iJ 1.,00Q,00~,000 common shares without par <<alue; and

(ii) ~,1~00,000,~00 preferred shares ~uitI~out par value and having atCached thereto the
special rights and restrictions set forth ici the articles af'the Company.
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SCHEDULE "g"

ALL CANADIAN MC7RT~AGE INVESTMENT CORPORATION

ARTICLES

TABLE OF Cl'~NTEN?S

This Table of Contents is for r4ference purposes only and is not intended to form part of the
Articles of the Company.

fart ~rt~cl~ Subject P~;~

1. INTERPRETATION .......::....._.. ..........1

1.9. D~finitions ..........................__.............,..................._...............................'1

1.2. F~eference to "INriting„ .....................................,..._..._......................,.....1

1.3. Construction df Words ............... . ........ 2

~.4. Company Act end lnferprefation Act Definitions
Applicable......,.._. .................................................................................. 2

2. SHARES AND SHARE CEFZI"1FICATLS ......................................_.................... ~

2.1. Autf~orized Capita] ...................... .........................................................2

2.2. Form of Gertificate ................................................................... .....,...2

2.3. Member Entitled tee ~ertificate ..............................................................

~.4. Certificate Available within Nfonth ......................................................... ~

2.5. Delivery by Post ....................................................................................3

2.6. Repiacemenf of Lash or Defaced Certificate ......................................... 3

~.7. Recognition of Trusts ................................. ......................................---. 3

2.8. Execution of C~rtificates ........................._..,..........._..,...............,...........4

3. ISSUE QF SHARES ............................................................,.., .......................... 4

3.1. Commencement of Business........ ........................................................4

3,2. Directors Authorized ..........................................................................~.. 4

3.3. Conditions of Ailotment.......,.. ...............................................................4

3.4. Commissions ........... ........................................,..................,........,....... ~4

3.5. ~rokerage .............................................................................................5

3.6. Conditions of Issue ............................................................................... 5
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4. SHARE REGISTERS ....................................~,............,..,........,,,...,...... ..............
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6.3. By Statute or court arder ..................................................................... 8
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7.1. C}rd'tnary Resolution Required ..............................................................8
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7.3. Ctass Meetings of Members ............................................._................... 9
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8.2. Directors to Decide on Shares to be Redeemed .................................. 9
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G4MPANY ~4CT

ARTICLES
(~ F

AtL CAHADtAN MORTGAGE INVESTMENT C~t~PORATIQN ,~
(THE "COMPANY"~

PART 1

1 lNTERPRETATfGyN

1.1. Definitions

In these Articles, un~css the context otherwise requires:

(a) `'Board of Directors'', "`Directors" and °~$oard" meat the directors ar sole director
of the Company for the time being;

(b j "Company ,A~t" means the Corn~crny aet (British Calu~nbia) frarn time to time in
fare and all at~t~endments thereto and rncludes all re~ul~~tians and amendynents
therein made pursuant to that Act,

(c) "M~nth'~ rr~eans ~alenda~r month;

(d} "Register' rrleans the register of members tc> be kept pursuant to the C'arnpuny

~Ic~;

(e) "R~gistered Qwner" and "Registered Holder", when used with respect to a share

in the. authorized capital of the Cc~mpan}~, rnean the person registered in the

Register in respect to That share;

(~ "Re~istercd Address" of a member means his address as recorded Yn the Register;

(g} "Registered Address" of a director means his address as recorded in the

Company's register of I~irect~rs tc~ be kept pursuant to the Compan~tr Act;

(h) "Seal" means the common seal of the Company, if any.

't.2. Ref~r~en~e ~a► "Writing"

Expressions referri~ig to writing shall be cansirued as including; references to printing,
lithography, type~v~-iting, photography, photocopying ~.rrd other modes of representing or

reproducing words in a visible form.
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1.3. Construction t~f Wards

fiords importing the singular include the plural and vice versa; and wards irrrparting a male
person include a female perso►l atzd ~ corpot~tia~i.

'1.4. ~ampany Act and Ir►terprefation Act Definitions ~►ppf icable

The definitions in tine Camparry Act and the definitions and rules of construction in the
In~erpretu~ton Act shall, wit~t tl~e necessary cha»ges, so far a~ applicable, and unless the context
requires atl~~rwise, a~p]y to these Articles. I.f There is ~ conflict between a dei'inition in fhe
Cnmpr~ny :~~c~t and a definition or rule i~1 the Inlerpt-etcrtio~r Act, the definition in the Cornpa;~y Act
shall prevail.

PART 2

2. SHARES AND SHARE CERTIFICATES

2.1. Authorized Capital

The authc~riz~d capital of the Campan}' shall consist of shares of a class or classes, wY►ich may be
divided into ane or mare series, a~ described in the Memorandum of fh~ Company and each class
of'issued shares shall be evidenced. by a disrinet form of certificate_

2.2. Form of Certificate

Ever}r share certificate issued by the Company shaiT be in such form as the Directors approve and
shall comply with the Compu~_y Pict.

2.3. Member Entitled to Cert~f~cate

Every member is entitled, without charge, to oy7e certificate for eac~l class of shares registered in
his name; pro~~ided that:

(a} in respect of a share held jointly by se~era] persons, the Company shall not be
bound to issue mare than. ono certificate, and.. delivery of a certificate for a share to
ane of several joint Registered I-Io}dc:rs Qr to his duly authorized agent; sha11 be
sufficient delivery to X11; and

(b) the Company shad nat be found to issue c~ertificate~ r~~resenting r~deema~le
shares, if such shares are to l~ redeemed within. one month of the date on which
they were ~ll~tted.
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2.4. certificate Available within Month

Certificates shall be available far delivery by the Company within one month after the allotment
of and payment in fuI} far any of its shares, or within ane xnt~nth after tl~e delivery to the
Company of a share certificate a.t~d an instrument Qf transfer, unless the conditions of the share
o#herwise provide, or ~rhere the Company has issued shares with a specie[ .right to cdnv~rk
attached thereto, within one month after receipt by rthe C~mpan~~ vt t11e share certificate far the
s~~axe to be ~anverted properly tendered fir conversion.

2.5. - Delivery by Post

And certificate may be delivered by tk~ Company by mailing the same by r~~istered prepaid past
t~ the member entitled thereto at his Registered address and the Company shalt not be liable for
any ic~ss Qcca.sit~n~d by the member owing t6 any such share certificate so sent being. list in the
ptast ~r stole~i.

Z.6. F~eplacement of Lost or Defaced Certificate

If a share certificate:

(aj is war3r~ out ~r defaced, the Directors shall, upon production to them of that
ceztificate and upon such other t~rn~s, if any, as the}~ may think fit., order the
certificate to be cancelled and they may issue a new certificate in Iieu tl~eret~~

(b) is losf~ stolen or destroyed, then upon proof #hereof to the satisfaction of the
Directors and. upon s~~ch indemnity, if any, as the Directors deem adequate being
given, a new share certificate in place thereof shall. be issued to the person entitled
to the lost, stolen_ or destroyed certificate; or

Vic) represents rrtvre than one share and the F~egisiered C7wner thereof surrenders it to
the Company with. a written request that the Company issue, registered in his
Warne, two or mire certif cotes e~3ch r~presentin~ a specified ~lumher of shares and
in the aggregate representing the same number of shares as the certif cote so
surrendered, tl~e Company shall cancel the certificate so surrendered and issue in
place thereof certificates in accordance with the request.

A, sum, as the I3irectors deem fit and not exceeding that permitted by the C'am~af~}~ ~Ict, shall be

paid to t~-~e Company for each certificate issued under this Article.

2.7. Recognition of Trusts

Except as required by law ar statute or these Al'tICIzS, no person shall lie recognized by the

Compa~l}~ as holding aEny share upon any trust, and the Company shall not be bound by or

compelled in any way to recognize (even when having notice thereo f any eqt► table, contingent,
future or partial interest in any share or and interest in and+ fractional parf~ o~f a share (~xcepi as by

i~
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law ar statute Qr these Artic]es provided or as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction) ar auy
c~th~r rights in resp~cf of any share except an absolute right to die entirety thereof in the
Registered ~IoIder.

2.8. Execution of Certificates

Every' share certificate shall be signed manually by at leas~E ane officer Qr Director of the
Ct~mpany, ~r by or on behalf of a registrar, branch registra~~, transfer agent ~r branch transfer
agent of the Company.

PART 3

~. ISSUE (~F SHARES

3.1. Commencement of Business

The Company .may commence business forthwith upon its incorporation nt~#witt~standin~ that a~ly
part Qf the capital of the Company may remain unallotted or unsubscribed.

3.Z. Direcfiors authorized

Subject. to the Company Act and any provision. contained i~ a resolut v~ passed at a general
meeting authorizing any alteration of the capital of the Company, the unissued shares of the
Company together ~viitl~ any shares of the ~ornpany purchased or redeemed by the Company and
not cancelled sha11 be under the control of the Directors who may, subject t~ the rights of the
holders of the shares of the Company for the time being issued, issue, aJiot, sell, grant options on
ar otherwise dispose of such shares tc~ such persons, including Directors, in such manner, upon
such tern7s and cor~itivns and at such price ar far such consideration, as tl~e Directors, in their
absolute discretion. may' determine.

~3.~. Conditions of Allotment

If the Gompa~iy is, or becomes, a company vvl~ich is not a reporting company and the Directors

are required icy the ~aml~unti~ Ac! befare allattin~ a~~y shares to tsffer them pro rata to the

members, the Directors shal], before allotting any shares, comply with the applicable provisions

4f the Compa~7y Aci.

3.4. Commissions

Tl~e Company, or the Directors on behalf of the Company, may at any time, subject to the

Compcnzy Act, pay a commission or allow a discount to any person in consideration of his

subscribing. or agreeing to subscribe, car procuring car a~recin~ to procure subscriptions, whether

absolutely or conditionally, for any. shares in the capital of the Company, which commission or
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discount, except where the Compa»y is a specially limited campa~y? shall not, in the aggregate,
exc.~d ZS°lo ~f the subscription price. Where the ~ompan}' is a specially timittd eampany, snch
discount or commission shall aot exceed 95°~0 of the subscription price or the par value,
whichever is fl~ze g~re~ter.

3.5. Brokerage

=~~'he Company may pay such brokerage fee or other consideratiot3 as play be lawful for or in
connection with the sale or placement of its securities.

~.6. +Conditions of Issue

Except as provided fvr by the Company Act, no share may be issued until it is fully paid try the
receipt by the Company of the foil consideration therefor in cash, prapect}r or past services
actually performed for the Company. A document evidencing ind~btecjness of the person to
whom the shares are. allotted is not praperiy for tine purpose of this Article. The value of property
o~ services shall lie an amount set by resolution of tie Directors, that is, in all circumstances of
the transaction, no greater than fair marI:ei va]ue.

3.7. Price of Shares 'With and Without Par Value

The Directors may determine tl~e price or consideration at or for which. shares without par value
may be issued and the price including any premiurtY at which shares with par value may be
i,~sue.d.

3.8. Share Purchase Warrants and Rights

The Company may, subject t~ the C`ompcirzy Act, issue share purchase wants and ~ ~hts upon
such terms and conditions as the Directors shall determine, which share purchase warrants and
rights rriay be issued alone or in conj~inction with debentures, debenture stock, bonds, shares or
az~y other security issued ar created by the Company from time to time.

PART ~

~4. SHARE REGISTEE~S

4.'t, Register of Transfers and Allotments

As required by the Comnariy Act, the ~ampany shall keep yr cause to be kept within British

Columbia Registers, registers of transfers and registers of allotments or a combination of one or

more of such registers. If the Company's capital shall consist of mare than one class of shares,

separate Registers, registers of tra~~sfers and registers of allotments may be kept in respect ~f

each clays of shares. The Directors, on behalf of tl~e Company, may appoint a trust company to

~~
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maintain and keep the Registers, registers oi` transfers or re~stei's Qf allotments or, ii' there is
more than one class of shares, the Dirf;ctors may appoint a trust company, which need. not be the
same trust company, to keep the Registers, registers of transfers ar registers of allotments for
each class of shares. The Directors, on behalf of the Gc~mpany, may also appoint one or more
trust companies, including the trust company which keeps tale Register ar any other such register,
a~ transfer agent for its shares or any class thereof, ~s the case -may be, and the same oz~ another
trust eommpany or Companies as registrar fir its sharc;s car such Mass tl~erec~f, as the case may be.
The Directors n ay ternzinate sucYr appointment of any trust compan~~ ~t any time and may appoint
anoti~er #rust company ire its place. ~_

4.2. Branch Registers

Unless prol~ibit~d b~ the C'nm~crn~~.~lcl, the Carr~pany n ay keep or cause to be kept ane ar mare
branch Registers at such place or places as tl7e Directors may from dine to time determilne.

4.3. Closing Register

The Company shall not at any ttn~e close its. Register.

PART S

5. SHARE TRANSFERS

5.1. Transferability end Instrument of Transfer

Subject. to any restrictions set. forth in these Artistes. any member may transfer his s~iares by
instrument in writing executed by or on bel~ali`of such member and de]ivered to the- Company or
its transfer agent. The iilstrun~ent of transf er of any share of the Company shall be in the farm, if
any, on the back of~ the Company's form of sure certificate or in any oiler .form which the
D recurs in their discretion mad approve. If the Directors sa require, each instrument of transfer
shall be zt1 respect of only one class of share.

5.2. Submission +~f Instruments of Transfer

Every instrument of transfer shall be executed by the transf~rc~r and left at the registered affce of

the Company or at tlZe oi`fice of its transfer agent or registrar far registration together r~'ith the

share certificate for the shares to be transferred and such other evidence, if any, as the Directors

ar the transfer a~eni or registrar may require to prove the title of the transferor or his right. to

transfer the shares and the z`ight of the transferee to have the transfer registered. If the transfer is

registered; all instruments of transfer shall Ue retaine.d by the Company or its transfer agent or

registrar. If the transfer is not registered, the instrument of transfer together with a notice of

refusal to registzr and the share certificate which was delivered with the instrument of transfer

~~
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upon application for registration shalt be returned to the applicant within one month of the
delivery Qf the instrument of transfer.

5.3. Execution of instrument of Transfer

The sigt~turc of the Registered CJwner cif ar~y shares, Or Of his d'u1Y audl~rized attorney, upon the
insfruinent of transfer constitutes an authority t~ the Company tt~ register the Shares specified in
the instruanent csf transfer in the name of the person name: in that instrument oi~ transfer as
transferee or, if no person is so named, then in any Hanle desi~~ted in writing by the person
depositing; the share certificate ar~d the. instrument of transfer with the Company or its agent.

5.4. Enquiry as to Title flat Required

~2

ì ~Te th~r tl~c company nor any Director, officer or agent ther~~f s]Zall be bound to inquire into the
title of the person name~3 in the fiorm +~f transfer as transfer~~ ar, if no person is ~~amed therein as
xransferEe, of the person an whose behalf the certificate is deposited with the Company for the
purpose of having the transfer registeret~ c~~ be liable for any claim related to registering the - _
transfer by suclZ Registered t)wner o~ by any intermediate owner Ur holder of the certificate or of
qtly of the shares represented. thereby or any interest therein.

5.5. Transfer F~~

A stun, as tl~e Directors deem fit ~~d nt~t exceeding that permitted by the Company Act, shah b
paid to the Company in respect to the rzgistrat on of an_y transfer.

PART 6

6. TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

fi.1. Personal ~tepres~ntat ve Recognized on Death

in case of the death of a member, gat being one of several joint Registered Holders, the

representative as set out in the eampt~ni~ ,4ct of the deceased-shall be the only person r~co~nized

by the Company as having any title to the shares registered in the name of such member and in

tine case of the death of any one or more of the joint Registered Holders cif any share, the survivor

or survivors shall be tl~e only person or persons recagnize.d bytlie Company as having any title to

or ire#erest in such share, taut n~thin~ herein contained shall release the estate of a deceased joint

holder from any liability in respect o€ any share t~iat had been ,jointly held by him 'uvith ether

persons.
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fi,2. Persons in Representative Capacity

The guardian., cammiftee, trustee, c~ratar, tutor, personal representative or trustee in bankruptcy
of an~~ member who becomes zntitled to a share ss a result of the death or bankruptcy of any
member shall be registered as holder of such share upon production of such. documents as may t~
required by the Caffrpuny Act to the registered office -of the Company ar to its transfer agent.

G.3. By Statute or Court girder ~~ _-

A ny person who becomes entitled to a share by operation ~f statute or ~s a result cif an order of a
court of competent jurisdiction shall, upon production c~F such evidence as is required by the
Cc~nzp~rny .pct or by any other statute or by court order, die registered as holder of 5uc~ sl~arc:.

PART 7

7. ALTERATIOw t?F CAPITAL

7.1. tJrdinary Resolution tequ~r~d

The Company may by ordinary resotutian filed with the Registrar .alter its Memorandum #t~
~tnCmase its authorized capital by:

(a} creating shares with par value or shares without. par value or both; and where the

Company has shares with par value and shares without par value, the shares with

par value shall be a class or classes of shares distinct from the shares without par

value, and shall have atta~l~ed thereto special ~'ig~1T5 in respect of capital ox

dividends or both. capiCal and dividends;

(b) increasing the number of shares with pa~~ value or shares without. par vatue, ar

bath; or

(c) increasing the par value of a class of shares with par value, if no shares of that

class are issued.

7.2. Articles Apply to New CapitaC

Except as otherwise provided by candrtions imptised at tt~e time af~reation of any new shares or

by these Articles, any addition to the authorized ~.apital resulting from t1~e creation of new shares

s~~all be subject to the provisions of these Articles.

53
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7,3. Gta~ss Meetings of Members

Unless these Articles specifical]y otherwise provide, the provisions of these articles retating to
general meetings shall. apply, with the necessary changes and sa fay as they are applicable, tc~ a
meeting of members holding a particular Blass of shares being a class meeting. A quorum fir a
class meetin}~ of members shall he one person ~oldi~j~ shares oC that class present in p~rsan at the
cc~mna~ncement ~f the meeting and holding or representing by proxy nQt less fhan one-third of
the class of sh~rx~s affected, and one person, if h~. Fs a _quorum, may constitute a class meeting.

Pa~Y_ -s-

8. PURCHASE AND REDEMPTl4N ~F SHARES

8.1. Company Authorized to Purchase Shares 'rn i#~ Capital

Subject to the special rights aid restricii~ns attachc;d to any class of shares, the Company may, by
a resolution of the I]ireetors and. in compliance with tlYe Company Act, purchase or otherwise
acquire any of its shares at the price and upon the terms spacifiea in such resolution and the
Company may redeem any class car series of its shares in accordance with. the special rights and
restrictions attaching thereto. l~to such purchase, acquisition or redemption shall be made if the
Company is insolvent at the time of the proposed purchase, acquisition or redemption or if the
proposed purchase, acquisition or redemption would render the Company insolvent. Unless the
purchase is of such a nature that the Conr~~arzy Act exempts such. purchase CYom the requirement
of making the offer to purchase pro rata to every member who holds shares of the class or series
to be purchased, the Company shall make its offer to purchase pro rata. to every member who
holds shares of the class or series to be purchased.

8.2. Directors to Qecide on ahares to b~ Redeemed

If the Company proposes at "rts option to redeem some but not all of t11e shares of any class or
series, the Directors may, subject. to the special right~ anti restrictions atiached to such c]ass or

series, decide the mariner in which the shares to be redeemed. shall.. be st:lected including whether

or not such a partial rederupfion shall be made pry rata.

~.3. Sale anti "~/ot ng Qf Purchased or Redeemed Shares

Subject fo the provisions of the Cai~~a~7y ~fc~, any share purchased or redeemed by t ~ Company

maV be sold.. by it, but, while such. share is held by the Company, it shall not exercise any vote in

respect of such share and shill not pay or make any dividend or other dis ributian in respect of

such share.
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PART 9

9. BC)RR~WING POWERS

9.1. Powers of [lirectar~

The Direc. tars may from time to title on ~bel~lf"fl~tl~e Gompat~y:

(a) borrow money its such manner and amount, on such security, from such sources
acid upon such terms end conditions as they think fit;

(b) issue bonds, debentures and other debt ol~ligatians efher ouiri~ht or as security for
any liability or obligation ofthc Company or any other person; and

(c) martg~gc, charge, whether by way o~ specific Qr floating charbe, ar give other
security on the undertaking, or an the whale or any part of the property and assets,
of the Company both present and future. _

9.2. Issue and Assignmenti of Bonds and Debentures

Any bonds, debentures or other debt ~blx~ations of the Company may be issued as a discount,
premium or athervvise, and with fury special privileges as to redemption, surrender, drawing,.
allotment of or conversion into or exchange far shares ar aiher securities, attendance and voting
~t general meetings of the company, appointment of directors or otherwise end may by their
#erms be assignable free from an}~ equities between the Conipany~ -and the person to whom they
were issued ar any subsequent holder thereof, all as tl~e Directors may determine.

9.3. Registers and Branch Registers ~f Debenturehalders

The Company shall keep ar cause to b~ kept wtkrn British Columbia in accordance with the
Conr~arry Act a register of its debentures, ~ register of debentureholders and such other registers
as may be required to be kepi. under the ~o~~lparzy Act, ~~vhich registers may b~e combined and,
subject to the provisions of the Company Act, may .keep or cause to be kept one ar more branch
registers of its deberrtureholders at such place or places as the Directors may from time to time

determine end the Director$ may by resolution, regui~.tion or €~tllerwise make such provisions as

they think fit respecting the keeping of such bra~~cll registers.

9.4. Execution of Deb# Obligation Documents

Every band, del~e~►ture or other debt t~bligation of the CQrnpany shall lie signed manually by at
least one director or affieer of the Corngan}~ ~r by or on behalf of a trustee, registrar, branch
registrar, transfer agent or branch transfer agent for the bond, debenture or other obligation
appointed by the Company or under any instrument under which the Mond, debenture or other
debt obligation is issued and any additiional signatures may be pi•infed or otl~erwis~ tnecliat~ically

~~
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reproduced thereon and, in such event, a bind, debenture ar other debt obligation sv signed is as
valid as if signed manually notwithstanding that any person wh4S~ Signature is so printed or
mechanical{y reproduced shall have ceased to hold the office that he is stated to hold an such
bond., debenture or other cl~bi abIigati~n at the date of the issue thereof:

_ PART 10

10. GENERAL MEETI~iGS

1Q.'I. Annuat General Meetings

The first annual g~i~eral meeting s}ia11 be 1~eld in accordance ~r~ith the provisions of the Gorrtparzy
Act and thereafter an annuat ge~7era1 meeting shall he held. ai least once in every calendar year and
not mare than 13 months alter the date fhat the Iast a~inu~l general meeting ~~as held, ax was
deemed under fhe Gomperny Act to have he n held, and at such time and place as the Di~zctars
shall determine.

1 Q.2. 11Vaiver of Annual General Meeting

If the Company is not a repc~rtin~; compan}~ and if aid members entitled to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting of the Company consent in writing to the business required tc~ be
transacted at the annual general rneetin~, that business shall be as valid as if transacted. at apt
annual general mee#ing duly converted ~ztd held, and it is not necessary for the Company to hold
that. annual general meeting.

1~.3. Calling of General Meetings

The Directors »toy, whenever the}' think ft, call a general mee~in~; of the Company

X0.4. Notice for General Meetings

Not less than 21 cl~y~' notice of any general meeting specifying the time and place of meeting

and, in case of special business, the general nature ~f that business shall be given. in the manner

mentioned in Part 23 of these Articles, or in such other manner,. if any, as may be prescribed by

ardi.nary resolution whether previous Notice thereof has been given. or not, to any person as inay

by law or under these Articles or other regulations of the company be entitled to receive such

notice tre~m the Company; but the ~cci~iental omission to give notice of any meeting to, or the

non-receipt ~f any such notice by, any o1'suc}~ persons shall not invalidate any proceedings at that

meeting. If the Co~npanv is a reporting company, it shall give such. advance notice of a meeting

of shareholders as may be required by the C'vrr~parry Act.

ArlielesQf Incorporation c~l'All Canadian Mortgage investment Corporst~on
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"10.5.. V1laiver of Notice and Record Date

~~

AIi the members of the Company entitled t+~ attend and vote at a general meeting may, by
unanimous consent in renting given before, during ar after t1~e meeting, or, if they are present at
the m~;eting, by a tart nimous vote. waive or reduce the period of nntice of such meeting, and an
entry in the minute back of such waiver or red~iction shall be sufficient evidence of the due
convening of the meeting. The Directors may, far the purpose of determining members entitled -
to n~rtice of, or to vote at, any general meeting ter class meeting, fia is advance a date as the
record date, which date shall not be more than ~9 days before the date of the meeting. Where no
such retard date is fixed, it sha11 be deemed to be the date on which il~e notice calling the general
meeting or ctasS meeting is mailed for the purpose of determining those members entitled o
notice and to vote at such meeting.

1U.~. Notice of Special Business at General Meeting

VJher~ a►~~~ special business includes the pmsenting, considering, approving, _ratifying ter
authorizing of the execution of any document, then the portion of airy notice relating to such.
document shall he sufficient i f the same states that a copy of the docum~llt or proposed document
is ar will b~ available for inspection by members at a place in British Columbia specified in such
119t1C~ during business hours t~f any specified working day ar days prior to the date of the
meeting.

BART 11

11, PRaCEEDINGS AT G~hIERAL MEETING

11.1. Special Business

,F~t a general meeting the i'ollowing business shall be deemed to be special business:

(a) at ~ general meeting that. is not att annual general meeting, all business except that
relating to the- co~7duct of and. voting ~t snch meeti.n~;

(1~} at an annual general meeiin~, all business except.

{i) b~iness relating to the conduct of ar voting at any such meeting,

(ii) consideration of the financial statements of the Compan}~ presented to the
meeting;

(iii} conszder~tion ofthe respective rcpQrts of the Directors and a~dx#or;

(iv} the passi~~g of 3 C~50IU11011 authorizing the election. of two car mare
Directors by a singly resolution;
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(v} the fixing ofthe number of Directors;

(vi) the election of Directors;

(vii) the appointment v€tt~e auditor;

(viii) the fixing of the remuneration ~f the auditor;

(ix~ such ~t14~~ business which, under these Articles or the Company Act, may -.
be transacted at a genera] meeting or an annual general meeting v~tY~out
prior notice tl~~re~~ being given to the members; and

(x) any business arising Qut of the report of the Directors not requiring the
passing. of a special resolution.

'11.x. Quorum

Save as herein atherw•ise provided, a c}uanun shall be iwo persons present aa~d being, or
representing Uy Froxy, members holding not less than one-tw~entieih o1` the shares which may be
voted at the meeting. If there is only one member, the quorum is one person present and being,
or re~tresenting b}~ proxy, such member. 7~he Directors, the Secretary, or in his absence an
t~,.ssistar►t Secretary, and any solicitor or atller person. invited by the Directors shall be entitled. to
attend. any general meeting but no such person shall be counted in tl~e quorum or ~ entitled to
vote at gray general meeting unless he shall he a member ar praYyl~older entitled to vote thereat.

'f'l,3. Requirement of Quorum

No business, other than the election of a cl~airrnan and the adjournment of the meting, shall ire
transacted. at any general meeting unless a quorum of members entitled to attend and vote is
present at the commencement of the meeting, but such quorum need not be present throughout
the meting.

11.4. Lack of Quorum

If ~~ thin one-half hour from the time appointed fvr a general meeting, a quorum is not present,
the maetin~, iC convened by requisition ~f members, shall be dissolved, but in any other case it
~a11 ~ta~~d adjourned to the same day in the next week at tl~e same time and place. If at ~u~h
adjourned meeting; a quorum is not present within one-half hour from the time appointed, the
person or persons present and being, or representing by proxy, ~ member or members entitled iv
attend and note at the meeiin~ shag constit~rte a r~uorum.

11.5. chairman

The Chairman of the Board, if any, or in his absence the President of t3~e Company shill be
entitled to preside as chairman at e~rery general meeting of the Company.
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11.fi. Se(e~tion t~f Att~rnate chairman

I~ at any general meting neither the Chairman of the Board., if any, gar tl~e President is present
within 15 minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting or if neither is quilling or able
to act as chait-man of the meeting, the Directors pr~senC shall. choose one of their number to b~
chairma~l of the meeting. If no Director is present or if all the Directors present decline to take
tI1e chair ar shah fail to so choose, the persons present and entitled to vote ~ereat shall chase a -
chauma~t.

'1 "I.7. Adjournments

The chairman of the meeting may and shall, if so directed by the meeting, adjourn the ~eeti~g
from time to time and from place to place, but no business shall be transacted. at any adjourned
meeting other ti~an the business ]eft unfinished. at the meeting from which the adjournment took
place. When. a meeting is adjourned for 3Q days or more, notice a1 the adjourned meeting shall
be given as in tl~e ease of a general meeting. Save as ai'oresaid, it shall not be neeessar}~ to give
any notice of an adjournment car ol~the business to be transacted. at an adjourned meeting.

11.x. Decisions by Show of Hands or Pofl

Subject to the provisions of tke Cc~mpatxy Acl, every motion. i'or a resolution. put to the vote of a
general meeting shall be decided Qn a slow of hands unless a pall, before or on the deciara#ion of
the result of the vote by show of hands, is directed by' the chairnlan or demanded by at least one
rnernber entitled to vote w~~ is present in person or by proxy. The chairman shall declare to the
meeting the d~cis can of every question in accordance with the result Hof the show of hands or the
poll, and such decision shall he entered in the book of proceedings of the Company. A
declaration by the chairman that a nl~tian has been carried, or carried unanimously, or by a
particular majority, ar lost or not carried by ~ partictilai- majo►•ity, and. ~n entry to that effect in the
hook containing the minutes of the. proceedings of the Company shall be prrmc~ facie evidence of
the fact afthe number or proportion of tie ~~ot~s recorded in favour of ar against such motion.

'1'1.9. Motion Need Nit be Seconded

No motion pmpased at a general meeting need be seconded unless the chairman of the meeting
-rules otherwise and the. chairman of any meeting shall be entitled to move ~r second a motion.

11.10. ~asfiing Vote

In case of an equality of votes upoi7 a motion., the chairtnai3 shall not, either on a show of hands
or nn a poll, have a casting ar second vote in addition t~ the vote or votes to which he may be
entitled as a member.

tJ ~'
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11.~1'l. Manner of Taking Pall

Subject to t1~e provisions of Article I i.13 if a poll is du]y~ demanded as aforesaid, it shall be taken
in such manner and at such place as tt~e chairman oi~ the meeting directs, but in no event later
than seven days after the meeting. The result of the pall shall be deemed to be the decision of the
mee.iing made afi the rr~~eti~lg at which the poll was demanded. A demand for a poll._may be
withdrawn by the person demanding the same. In tl~e case of any dispute as tc~ the admission car
rejection of a tote, the cha ratan of the meeting shall determine the same end such determination
made in good faith shall be final and conclusive,

't 1.12. Casting of Yates

On a poll., a p~rsc~n entitled to mon, t}~ran one vote need not, if he votes, use all, his votes trr ~a~t
all the votes he uses in the sanYe way.

'11.'13. 13emand for Poll

No pall may be dema~lded o~~ the.. election of a chairman of a meeting and a poll demanded acz a

question of a~jaurnment shall be taken ~t the meeting without adjournment.

'! 1.14. C3emand for Poll Nat to Prevent Continuance of IUleeting

The demand of a pail sl~ll not prevent tl~e continuance cif a meeting for the #ransaction of any

business other than the question on ~~~l~ich a poll has been dema~~ded.

11.'15. Retention of Ballots and proxies

Every ballot cast upon a poll and every prosy appointing a pr~xyholder who casts ~ ballot upon a

poll shall be held in safekeeping by the Secretary of the Company for three months after the

mee#ii~g, or fc~r such longer gerioci as the C`c~nr~~un1! Act may provide, and, during that period,

steal] be open to inspection at the records office of the Company during normal business hours by

any member ar pr~xyholder entitlee~ t~ vote at [lie m~ei i~g from which the ballot and the proxy

came. At the end a~ such period of safekeeping, the Secretary of the Company shall attend to the

destruction of such ballot Qr proxy.

'11.1 fi. Action by ordinary R~so(ution

Unless the Cc~~a~per~~v ~1c1, the 1Vlemorandum ar these, Articles othe~-vvise provide, any action to b~

taken by a. resolution of the members may be taken ~y an ordinary resolution.

~i
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PART 12

'f 2. VaTES OF MEMBERS

12.1, __ -- Numher of Votes by Member car by Shares

Subject to-.art-y special rights ar restrictions for the time bei~~g attached to any shires-_and the
restrictions €gin faint Registered ]-folders of shares, an a show of hands every member present in
persc►n and entitled to vote shall have one vote, and on a pall. every member shall have one vote
f~i• each share of which he is the Registered l~vder and may exercise such vote in perso~i or by
proxyholder.

'12.2. Votes of Persons in Representative Opacity

Any person who is not registered as a ~r►ember bait is e~~titled to vote at any general meting in
respect cif a share, may vote the share in Ehe saTne ma~~ncr ~s if ale were a member; but, prior to
voting such share, he shall satisfy the Directors of his right io vote the share before the time for
holding the meeiin~ or adj~i~rncd meeting, as the case may bz, at ~~hrch he pre~pos~s ko vote.

'~Z.~. Votes by J~oin~ No~ders

In the case cif joint Registered Holders of a share the vote ~f tl~e senior member wl o .exercises a
vats ~~hether in person ar by ~roxyholder, s~a.il be accepted to the exclusion of the votes t~f the
other joint Registered Holders; and for tk~is purpose seiuc~rity slYall be determined by the order in
which the tames stand in the register of members. Several legal personal representatives of a
deceased member whose shares az~ registered in his sole name shall for the purpose of this
t~rticl~ be deemed joint Registered Holders.

'~ 2.4. Representative of a Corporate Memb+~r

AIIy ~flTj30I"dt1021, TlOt ~iil~ ~ 5UE351d1~C~+ t:)f 'CI'~e Company, which is a member of the Company,
mad authorize such person as it thinks fit to act as its representative at any general meeting or
ciass meeting. The person sa authorized shalt ~e entitled to exercise in respect Q#~ and. at such
meeting the same rights on behalf of tl~e corporation which 1~e represents as that corporation
could exercise if it were member of the Company being a natural person personally present,
including, without limitation, the right to appoint a ~roxyholder to represent such corporation
who shall be counted for tl~e purpose of forming a quanim iii present at the meeting, Evidence of
the ~p~ointment of any such representative may be sent to the Company by written instrument,
tc~legrarn, te1~x ar any i~~ethod of transmitting legibly recorded messages- 1'~~twit]lstanding the
foregoing, a corporation. not being a subsidiary of the Company v~~hich is a member of the
Company, may appoint a proxyholder.

~~~
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'12.5. Votes by Committee of a Member

A member for wham a carn~uttec: teas been duly appointed may vote, whether cm a show of
hands ~►r on ~ poll., by his cctrnmittee, cura~~r bc7nrs or other per~~n in the nature of a c€~mmittee
ar curator bc~nis appointed by a court, a.nd ~y such can~i~littee, curata~ banis ar other person.
n1~y appoint a proxyhoider.

12.fi Appointment o~ ProxyF~alders

A mei fiber balding more than one share irr respect of which he is entitled fa vote ~l~al~ be entitled
to appoint one or more prc~Xyholders (bitt not mare than five) to attend, act and vote for him on
the same occasion. Ii' such a member should apgoini more than ane proxyholder for the same
occasion he shall specify tl~e number of shares each. prox~~holder sha]] be entitled to vote. A
n~einber may also appai.nt one or more altenlate proxyhc lders iv act in the place and stead of an
absent proxyholder.

12.7._ Execution of Proxy Instruments

A proxy or ~n instrument appointing a duly authorized reprzsentative of a corporation shad be in
writing, under tt~e lxand of the appointor or o€his attorney duly authorized in writing or, if such
appointor is a corporation, either wider its seal car under tfle land of an ofi car or attt~r~ey so duly
t~uthorzed.

12.8. Deposit o~ Proxy

A proxy and pov~er of attorney ar other authority, if any, under which it is si~~ned ar a nc~tariaily
eertifi~d eapy thereof shall be deposited at tl~e registered office afthe company or at such ether
place as is sgeci~ed fc~r that purpose in the notice calling the meeiing, not less than 48 hours
(excluding Saturdays, Swtdays arrd statutory holidays) befc~r~ the #ime for holding t~~e meeting in
respect cif which the person. named in the instrument is appointed, or shall be deposited with a
Director ~r oi~f cer ~r f]~e solicitor of the Company at such meeting prior to its commencement.
Tn addition to any other m~thoc3 of depositing proxies provided for in these Articles, the Directors
may from time to Lime by resolution fix ~ time, not exceeding ~8 hours {excluding Saturdays,
Sundays and statutory holidays) preceding at~y meeting or adjourned meting of members, before
which time proxies to be used at the tneetiilg must tie delivered to the Company or its agent, and
any perrod of time so fixed shad be specified in the notice calling the electing or in the
information circular rela#ing to it. Any such resolution of the Directors may provide that.
particulars of such prr~xies may be sent to the Company ar any agent of the Company in writing
by letter, telegram, telex ar any method of transmit[ing legibly recorded messages so as to arrive
before the commencement of the meeting or adjourned meeting at the office of the Company or
of any agent of the Company appointed fnr tie purpose of receiving such particulars and may
also provide that proxies so deposited may be acted upon as (hough the proxies themselves were
deposited as required by this Part. Votes given in accordance ~~~ith and such resolution shall be
valid and shall be counted.

s2
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1~.~. Validity of Proxy Vote

A vote gi~~en in ~,ecordance with the ternzs of a pz~xy is valid noturithstanding the previous depth
or insanity of the member diving tt~e pr€~xy or revocation of the pro~ry ar of the authority under
which the proxy is given, unless no#ice in writing of the death, insanity, revocation as aforesaid
sha11 have been received at thy: registered office of the Company or by the chairman of the
meeting or adjourned mcetin~ for which the proxy ~.uas gTvert before the vote is.taken.

12.10. form 4f Proxy

Unless the Campan}~ .1cc or an_y other statute nr taw wl~icP~ is applicable to the. Company or to any
Mass of its shares requires any tither farm. of proxy, ~-proxy, whether for a specified meeting ar
Qtller~~ise shall he in the form. fallawin~, but may also.be in any ether ~`orm-that the I?irectors car
the cl~airnlan of the meeting shall appro~~e:

(Marne of Company)

The undersigned, being a member of the above named Company, E~ereby
appoints _ or failing him as
pro~yholder for the undersigned to ~ttcnd, act and vote for and nn behalf of the
undersigned at the general meting of the Company to be held on the day
of ___, 19_,. and at any adjournment thereof.

signed this day of , 19_

(Signature of member)

(Namz of member -printed:)

'12.11. Revocation t~f Proxy

Euery proxy may be revoked. by sn instrument in writing:

(a) executed by the member giving the proxy or by his attorney authorized in writing

or, where the member is a corporation, Uy a dul}' authorized officer ar attorney of

_ the corporation; and

(b) deli~~ered either afi the registered office of the Company at any tame up to and

including the last business day- preceding the day of t11e meeting or ary

adjournment thereof at wJ~icl~ tl~e proxy is to be used or to tl~e chairman of the

meeting on the day of Ylie meeting ar any adjournment thereof before a~iy vote in

respect of ~vllich the proxy is t~ be used. shall 17ave been taken,

ar in atiy otl~~r manner provided by law.

s~
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12.12. Production of Evidence of Authari~y #o Vate

'i'}ze chairman of any general meeting ar ~~ual general. meeting ma}r, but is nest under any
obligation. ta, ~~quire into the authority of a~~}~ person to ~t~te at such meeting and to demand
from that person production of evidence as t~ the existence of such authority to vote.

PART 13

't 3. DIRECTORS

'~3.'1. Number of Directors

The first Directors are the subscribers to the IVlen~orandum or the persons sp~cif ~d in the
amalgamation agreement or in the instrumen[ of contrrivanc~, as the case may be. The number of
Directors and the persons named to succeed the first Directors as Bisectors nay b~ detettn ned in
wri#ing by a majority of fhe subscribers to the Memorandum, or the persons specified in the
amalgamation a~ne~2ncnt ~r i~ the instrument ~f eontinuai~C~, as the case may be. The number of
Directors, excluding additional directors, tray be changed from time to time by ardinar}~
resolution, whether previous notice thereof has been given or not, Maui shall never ~e less than one
while the Company is not a reporting; company and three while ilie Company is ~ reporting
company.

'! 3.~. Share C~ualificatians of Dfr~ctars

A Director shall not be required to hold a share in the capital of the Company as qualification far
his office but shall be qualified as required by the ~'n»rpan}~ Act to beco►ne, to act or continue to
act a5 a Director.

13.3. Remuneration end Expenses of Qirectors

Tl~e remune~ati~n, if any, of the Directors as such inay from time to time be deterni tied by the
Directors ar, if the Directors shad so decide, by the members. Such remuneration may be in
addition to any sa~azy or Qther remuneration paid to an~~ off cer or employee of the Company as
such, who is also aDirector. - The Directors shall be repaid such reasonable expenses as they may
incur in and about the business Uf the COIll~]3riy and if any Director shall perform any
professional car other services for the Company tJ1at in the opinion c~fihe Directors are outside the
ordinary duties of a Director or shall otherwise b~ specially occupied in or about the Company's
business, }~c tnay be paid remuneration to be fixed by the Boazd, or, ai the Option of such
T)irector, to be fixed by the Company in general meeting, anti such remuneration relay be either in
edition t~, ar in substitution for, az~y other remuneration that he znay be entitled to receive.
Unless otherwise deternlined by ordinary resolution, the Directors an behalf of the Company may
pay a gratuity ar pension or allo~~~ance on retirement to any Director who has held any salaried
a~ff'ice or place of profit with the Canpany or ~o his spouse or d+~pendants and niay make

i,
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GontTibutions t~ any fund. att~~ pay premiums for the purCl~ase ar provision of any such gratuity,
pension or allowance.

PART 14

94. E~ECTfC3N ANC ~EMQVAL (~F DIR~~CT~R~

14.1. Election at Annual General Meeting

At each annual general meeting of the Company all the fli.reciors shalt retire immediately prior to
the election cif Directors and the members entitled t~ vate tl~ereai shall. elect a Boax+d ~f Directors
consisting of the number of Directors fir the time being fixed pursuant to these Articles. If the
ComFany is or becomes a company that is not a reporting cantpany and the business to be
transacted at any annual gezteral meeting is consented to in «~riting by ~ll tine members who are
entitled to attend and vt~te thereat, such annual general meeting shall be deemed for the purpose
of this Part t~ have been held on such wr#t~n consent becoming effective.

14.x. Eligibility #or Election

A retiring Dire~ctar shall be eligible for ic-electi~rz~

"~4.3. Failure to Hold ~4~nua! Nfeeting

Where the Company fails to hold art annual general meting in accordance with the Company
Aet, the Directors tl1~n in office shall be deemed to have been elected. or appointed. as I3irectors
an the last day on which tY~e annual general meeting could have been held pt~rsuazit to these

Articles and t}ley may hold a~fice until other Directors are appointed ar elected or until the day

on which the next annual general. meetinc is held.

'l4.4. Places of Retiring Directors Not filled

If at any general meeting at which there should be an electign of I3irectars, the places of any of

the retiring directozs are not filled by such election, such of the retiring Directors why are not

re-elected as may be requested by t}te newly elected Directors s11a11, if willing to do so, continue

in office to complete the number ai' Directors for the time being tix~d pursuant to these Articles

until further new Directors are elected at a general meeting cc~nvenec~ for that purpose. If any

such el~etion ~c continuance ~►f Direc~to~rs does not result i1~ the election ox continuance of ~e
numt~er of Directors for the time being fixed pursuant to .,these Articles, such number shall be
fixed at the number of Direcic~rs actually elected car continued in office.

~~
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't~4.5. Casual Vacancies

Any casual vacancy occurring in the Board of llirectars may be filled by the remaining Directors
or I3irectar.

14.x. Additional Directors

L~l~;

Between annual genera] nieetin~s the Directors shall have Bower to appoint one or more
additional Directors, but the num~ier of additional Di~~ector~ shall not at any time emceed
one-fhird of the number of Directors elected at the Iast annual general m.~eting of the Cc~mpa~y.
Any Director so appointed shall hold office c►nly until. the next. annual general mc.ec ng of the
Company butt shall ~e ~li~ible fir elution at such ~n~eting and sc~ long as Me is axt additional
Director the numl~r of T~irectors shall ~ deemed to be increased acccyrdingly.

'14.7. Alternate Directors

Any Director may by instrument in wr~tn~ de]ivered to ih~ Company appoint any person ~o be
his alternate to act in his place at meetings of the Directors at which he is not present unless the
Directors shat] have re~sanably disapproved tl~e appointment of such person as an alternate
Director az~ci shall have given notice to that effect to the Director appointing the alternate
L?irector within a reasonable time after delivery aFsuch instrument io the Company. Every such
alternate shall be entitled to notice of meetings of the Directors and to attend ana vote ~.s a
I3irector at a meeting at which the person. appointing him is nflt ~rsonally present, and, ifhe is a
Director, tc~ have a separate vo#e on behalf of the Director he is representing in addition to his
c~wn vgte. A Director may at any time by instrument, telegram, telex or any method. of
iransmittin~ legibly recorded messages delivered to the Company revoke the appointment of an
alternate appointed by him. The remuneraY.ion parable to such are alternate shall be payable otrt
of the remuneration of the Direcic~r appointing hi1n.

'f4.8. Vacating Uffice of Director

T`he office of flirector shall be vacated-if the Director:

(a) resigns l~s office by notice; in wvritiin~ iielivered to the registered office o#' the
company; or

(b) is Convicted of an indictable offence and the=other Directors shall have resolved to
rerrtove him; or

(c) is not, or ceases to be qualified tc~ act as a Director pursuant to the Company ~1ct.

'14.9. Removal of Director

The Company nay by special resolution r~mo~re any Director before the expiration of his period
of office and may ley an ordinary resolution appoint anther person in his stead.
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PART 15

15. ROWERS AND ~]UTIES t~F DIRECTORS

15.1, Powers of IVlanagement

The Directors shall manage, or su~rvise the management of, the affairs and business of` the
Company and shall. have the authority to exercise all- such powers of the Company as are not, ~y
the Cc~mparxy At•! ter ley the Men~arar~dum or these Articles, required. to b~ exercised by the
Company in general meeting.

1~.2. Appointment of Attorney cif Company

The IZireetors may ftom time to time, by power of_attorney or ether insr.runlent under the Seal, ,,.
apps nt any person to be the. attorney of the Company for such purposes,. and with such powers,
autho►-ities end discretions (not exceeding those . vested in or exercisable by the Directors under
these Articles and excepting the powers of the Directors relating to the corns#itution of the Board
and ~f any of its committees and the appaint~~nent or removal of officers and the power to declare
+dividends) and for such period, and wit] such remuneration and subject to such conditions as the
Directors may think fit, and any such appc~intmclrt may t~ made in favour or any corporation,
~irn~ or person or body of persons, and any such power cif attorney may contain such provisions
far the protection or con~renience of persons dealing with such attorney as tL1e Directors think fit.
Any such attorney inay ~ authorized by the Directors to sub-delegate all or any of the powers,
authorities and discretic~ns for the tine being vested in him..

BART 16

16. DISCLf~SURE f?F fI~TEREST t7~ DIRE~TQRS

16.7. Declaration of Interest

A Direci~ir who is, in any way, directly or indirectly interested iman existing or proposed contract
or transaction with the Company or who holds any office ax gc~ssesses any property whereby,
directly or indirectly, a duty car interest tni~hi 6e created. to cot~~icfi with his duty or interest as a
Director shall declare the nature and extent of his interest in suc1Y contract or transaction or of the
conflict or potential conflict with his duty and interest as a director, as the case may be, in
accordance with the provisions of the Cvmpan>> ,4ct.

7 fi.2. Restrictions on Voting by Reason t~f 1nt~rest

A Director, other tIYan a sole Director, shalt not vote in respect of any such contract or transaction
with the Company iia which he is interested v~d if he shall dv so his rote shall not be counted,
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but he shall be eo-unted in the quorum present at the meeting at which. such vote is taken. Subject
to the provisions of the Cornpernif pct, the foregoing prohibitions shall not apply ta:

(a} any such contract or transaction relating t4 a lt~an to the Company, which a
Director ar a spec fieci corporation or a specified arm in which he has an interest
has guaranteed ar joined in guarante~in~ the repaymet~.t of the loan of arty part. of
the loa~1.

(b) any such contract or transaction made or to be made ~~•ith, or for the benefit of,
affiliated corporation of which a Director is a Director;

t •

(c) any such contract ter transaction'evidencing the exercise of a right cat option
granted to a F~ rzctor to purchase shares in the capital of the Company or securities
of the C~mp~ny or 1~ su~iscrih~ fir or underwrite the issue of such snares 4r ,.
securities;

(d) any such contrast or transaction. in which a Director is directly or indirectly
interesteE~ if a71 the other Direcrors ire also directly ~~r indirectly interested in such
contract or transaction}

(e} d~termirfing the z~emuncration of the Directors as such;

(#} purchasing and maintaining insutanc~ to cover Directors against Liability incurred
by tk~~m as Directors; or

(g) the indemnification of an}~ Director by the Company.

These exceptions may frc~ttl time to time be suspended or amended to any extent approved ley the

Company iz~ genera] meeting and. permitted ~y the C.'ornpan}~ ~1c1, either generally or in respect of

any particular contract or transaction ar :for tiny particular period:

16.3. Director Haldir~g t~ffice ~n Company

A Director may hold any office or place of profit with fhe Company (other than the office of
auditor of the Con~pany~ in conjunction with his a ce of Director for such period and on such

terms has to remuneration or otherwise) as the Uirectars may detern~ine and no Director a~

intended Director shall`be disgtaalified by his af~ce from contrac#ink; with the Company either

v+~ith regard to his tenure ar any Such. other office or place of profit or as vendor, purchaser car

otherwise and, subject to compliance with the previsions of the Company Act, no contract or

trans~etion entered irtta by or on behalf of the Company in which a Director is in any way

inter~:sted shall be liable to l~~ voided by reason ilTereof.
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'ifi.4. nirector Acting in Professional Capacity

Subject Lo compliance with the provisions of the Cvrr~ptxnt~' Ac=t, a I~irector or his firm may act in
a pro#'ess ona.I capacity fir the Company (except as auditor of the Company} and he ar his firm
shall be entiiled to remuneration for professional services as if he were not a Director.

16.5.. Director or C?fficer rr Other iCarparations

A Director may be or became a Director_dr other ofrcer or employee of, az otherwise interested .
in, any ct>rporation or fu•m in which -̀ the Coinpa~~y ~~ay be interested as a shareholder car
otherwise, and, subject to compliance with the provisions t~f the Compa~zy Act, such Director__
shaII not be a~cour~taf~le to the Company for any remuneration ar other benefits received by him
as Birec~or, vffice~~ of em~Io~ee of, or ~~rc~~n hip int~.rest in, such other corporation or firm, unless
the Company [n ~encral meeting otherwise directs.

PART 17

'~7. PROCEEDINGS +C)F t}1f~ECTOF7S

17.'I. Chairman of Meetings

The Chairman of the Board, if any, or in his abs~alce, the President of the Company shall preside
as chairman at every rneetin~ of the Directors or if there is nn Chairma» of the Board or if neither
the Cl~airnzan of the Board nor suoh President is present within 15 nunu es of the time appointed
for holding the nleeiing or is willing t~ aet as chairman or if the Chairman of the Soard, if any,
and the Yresid~nt of tl~e Company have advised the Secretary of the Company that they will not
be present at the meeting, the Directors pr~se~~t shalt choose one of their number ~o be chairman

of the meeting.

17.Z. Voting at Meetings

Thy I~rrectors tnay meet togethez for tl~e dispatch of business, adjourn and. otherwise regulaCe

their meetings as th ey think fit. Questions- arising at any meeting shall be decided by a majariry

of votes. In case of an equalifiy of votes the chairman shall not have a second or casting vote.

I~~Ieetings of the Board held at regular ij ter~als may be held at such place, at such time and upon

such notice (if an}'} as the Board may by resolution from time to time detern~ine,

'17.3. Nfeetings ley Conference Telephone

A Direciar may participate in a meeting of the $Hard or of any committee A#` the Directors by

means of coz~fer~nce telephones or other communications facilities by mans of which all

Directoes participating in the meeting can hear each other and provided that alI such I3irectors

agree to such pariicipatian. A Dzrector participating in a meeting in accordance with this Article

r~
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shall be deemed to be present at the meeting and to have so a4gre~3 and sha11 b~ counted in the
quorum therefor and. be entitled to sp~alc and vote thereat.

97.x. Calling and l~otice of Meetings

A Diz'ect4r rr►ay, and the Secretary or ~n Assistant Secretary of the company upon request of a
Director sP~a.l1 caI] a 3z~eeting of the>~oard at airy time. Reasonable notice of such meeting -
specify~iil~; the place, day aiYd hour_ of such meeting shall be given by mail, postage prepaid, _
addressed to each of the Directors anci alternate Directors at his address as it appears on the
books of tl7e Company or ley 1ea~~in~ it at his us~l business dt` residential address or by
telephone, telegram, telex. or any rnc;tljaci Qf transmitting legibly recorded messages. It shall not _ -
be necessary to-give notice of a ineciing ofDirectors to any Director ar alternate Director if_such
meeting is ~v k~e held i~»m~diately _following a general meeting at wk~ich such Director sha~~-have
been. elected or is the meeting of Directors al ~~hich such Director is appointed.

'17.5. Waiver of Notice of Meetings

Any Director af'the Company may file with the Secreiar}~ of the Company a document executed
by him wai~~in~; notice of any past, present ar futtirc meeting or meetings of the Directors being,
pr required to have been, sent to him and may at any time withdraw such waiver with respect to
meetings held thereafter. After filing such waiver u=ith respect to future meetings and. until stych
waiver is withdrawn, no natic~ need be given to such Director and, unless the Director otherwise
requires in rr~-itii~g to the Secretary, to his alternate Director• of any meeting of Directors and all
meetings of the Directors so held shall. be deemed. not to be iinproperly~ called car constituted. by
reason of notice not I~avin~; been given to su~ll Director or alternate Director.

17.6. quorum

The quorum necessary fc~r the transaction. of the business of the Directors nay be fixed by the
Directors and fz~at sa fined shall be t~~o Directors or, if the number of Directors is fYed at one,
shah be one Director.

'f7.7. Continuing Directors Power too Act

The continuing Directors may ~Gt noi~viihstandiiig any vacancy in their body, but, if and sv lcmg
as the slumber is reduced below the number fixed pursuant to these Rrl:icles as the necessary
quorum ofDirectors, the continuing:. Directors may act i'or the purpose of increasing the number
of I?irectors to that number, or of stun~nonin, a et.neral meetin,~ of the Company, but for no other
purpose.

17.8. Validity of Meeting Vllhere Appointment Defective

Subject to the provisions of the Cvn~pani~ ~(et, all acts done by any meeting cif the Directors or of
a cUn-imittee of Directors or ~y any person actin° as a Director, shall, notwithstanding that it be
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afterwards discovered that these w~ some defect in the qualification, election ~r appointaaenl of
any such Directors or o€ the members of ~ueh cornn~itte~e ar person acting as aforesaid, or that
they or ar►y of them were disqualified, be as va13d as if every such gersan had been duly elected
or appointed and was qualified to be a Director.

17.9. Consent l~~so~utians in Writing

A resc~]ution consented to in writing, whether by doc~ernent, telegram, telex or any method of _ -.-~
transmitting legibly recorded :messages or other znean~, by all of t11e directors shalt be ~s v d :_ __.
and eff'ecival as if it had beer~asseci at a ztaeeting c~f'tlie Directors duly called and held. Such
resolution n ay be in two ar More counterparts r~+hicli together shall he deemed to cons#itute one _
resolution in writing. Such resolution shall be filed with the minutes of the proc~ewdi~gs of the
Directors ate sha[I be eflecti~~e an the dale Mated thereon or on the latest date :stated on any
counterpart.

._.

18. EXECUTNE .AND QTHER ~C~MMITT~ES

'l8.1; Appointment and Powers of Executive ~orr~mittee

The Directors may by resolution appoint an executi~~e committee (the "Committee") to consist of
such member ar members of their body as they think f t, which Committee shall have, a.~d may
exercise during the tntervaLs between the meetings of the Board, the power. to change the
membership of, or (.ill. vacancies in, the Committee or any crt~ier committee of the Board and such
other powers, if any, as may be specifir;d in the resolution. The Coi~n~ittee shall keep regular
minutes of its transactions and shall cause them to b~ recorded in books kept for that pur~aose and
shall report the same to the Board ~F Directors at such times as the Board ~f Directors may from
time to time require. The I~oard sha11 have the power at any time to revoke or override the
~.utl~ority liven to or acts done by the Cnrnmittee except as to acts done before such ,revocation. or
overriding and to terminate tine appointment ar ctzange the membership of the Committee and. to
fill vacancies in it. The G4rrtmittee may make n.~~s for the candu~t of its business and may
appoint such assistants as it may deem necessary. A majority of the members of the Committee
shall constitute a quorum thereof.

18.Z. Appoin~mer~t -and Powers cif C?ther Committees

The Directors may ~y resolution. appoint one or mare committees consisting of such member ar
members of their body ~.,s they think fit end may delegate tc~ any such committee tt~tween
meetings of the Board such powers o{~ the $oard (zxcepi the po~~ver to fill vacc~nncies in tike Board
and the power to change the m~~nbership of or fill vacancies in any committee of the Board and
the power to appoint ar remove officers appointed by the Board) subject to such conditions as
rn~y be prescribed in such resolution and all committees so appointed shall keep regular minutes
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of their transactions and shall cause them tt~ be recorded to bc~ak~ kept far that purpose and shall
report the sane to the Board of Directors at such times a~ the Board of Directors may from time
to time require. The I3irectors shall also have power at any time to revoke ar override any
auth~riry given to or arts to be done by any such committees except as to acts done before such
revocation or overriding and to terminate the ap{~ointn~ent or GI1321Q~ tl~e membership of a
committee and to fill vacancies in it. C~rnmitiees may made zvles for the conduct cif their.
business and may appoint such a.$sistants as they may diem n~c~ssary. A majority of the
members of ~ comnlittee~sl~11 constit~rte a quorum thereof.

18.x. Meetir~g~ and Consent Resolutions of Committees

Thy Comm ttec and at~y ~tller camrnittee may meet and adjourn as it thinks proper. Questian~
a~isin~ at arty meeting-shall be r~~termined by a majority cif 'votes of the-members of the
committee present and, in case a~ an equality vi votes, the cliairmai~ s~iall not have a second o~
c~.sting vote. A resolution approved in vvritinb by all. the members ~f a ~om~ ttee shall be as
valid and efCeciive as if it had been passed ~t a meeting of such cammi~fee duly called and
constituted. Such resc~luti~n may be in two or n1or~ counterparts which together shall he deemed
to constitute one rr:solution in writing. Such resolution shall 1~ filed ~+ th the minutes of the
proceedings of the committee and shall be effective on the date ~tatad thereon. or on die Iai~st_
date stated in any counterpart.

PART 19

1 ~. 4FFIGERS

19.1. President and Secretary Required

The I]irectors shall, f`ro~n #nee t~ time, appoint a President and a Secretary and such other
officers, if any, as tine Direc:iors shall d~etennine and. the Directors may, at any time. tern~inate any

-such appointment, No officer shall be appointed unless he is qualified in accordance ~~vith the

p~ovisians of the Cr~mpa~7}~ flc1.

'19.2. (~uaiificaton and f~emunerati~n

(3ne person ma}F hold mare than one of such offices except that the offices of President and

Secretary must be held by different persons unless the Go~npany has only one member. ~tny

Son appointed as the Chairman of the $card, the President or the Managing Director shall be a

Director. Tl~e other officers need not be Directur~. The remuneration of the officers of the

Company as such and the terms axrd conditions of their tenure of office or employment shall from

time to time be determined 6y the directors; such remuneration may be by way of salary, fees,

wages, commission or participation in profits or any ether means or all of these modes and an

officer may in addition to such remuneration be entitled to receive, after Ise ceases to field such

office ar leaves the employment of the Company, ~ pension or gratuity, The Directors may
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decide what functions anc~ duties each officer shall perf'orn~ and r ay entrust to and confer upQ~
him any of the powers exercisable by Them upon such terms and conditions and with such
restrictions as they think fit and inay from time to time re~~oke, withdraw, alter or vary all or any
of such funetion~, duties and powers. The Secretary of the Company shall, inter atia, perform the
functions pertaining to such officer specified in the C'ompuny Act.

'{9.3. Disclosure of Conflicting Interests

Every officer of the Company who I~alds any office Qr pcyss~sses any property whereby, whether.
directly or indrectl~~ duties or interests might be creatLd in conflict with his duties or interests as
an officer of the Company shall, in writing, disclose to ~e President of the company the fact end
the nature and e~cten of file ~nilict.

19.4. C~~ficer Acting in Professional Capacity

~t~bject to compliance w7th the provisia~ns of the Company Ac[, an o~e~r or his firm tnay act i.it ~
prof~essianal capacity for the Company (except as auditor of the Company) and he or his firm
shall t~ entitled to remuneration Ft~r professional services as if he were not an officer.

PART 2Q

20. 1hIDEMNIFICATION 0►F DIRECTORS,
OFFICERS ANC7 EIV~PLOYEES

20.'1. Party to Leaf Proceedings

_Subject to the provisions of the Camp~rny rice, the Directors steal! cause the Company to
indemnify a Director or former Director of the Company end the Directors tray cause the
Company to indemnify a Director or former director of a corpnratiort of which the Company is
ar way a shareholder and the heirs and personal re~Yesentatives of any such person against all
costs, charges and expenses, including an amount paid to settle an action or satisfy a judgment,
actually and reasonably incurred by him or ahem, including an ~rnpunt paid to settle an action ox
satisfy a judgmeni in a civil= criminal or administrative action or proceeding to which he is ar
they aye made a party by reason of his being or having been. a Director of the Company or a
i~ rector of such corporation, including any action brauglit by the company ar any such
corporation.. Each "~ir~ctar shall be deemed to have contracted with the C~n~pa~iy on fhe terms
of the foregoing indemnity.

24.2. 4ffic~rs and Employees

Subject to the provisions of the Cc~rnpanv .~1ct, the Directors shall cause the Company to
indernnify~ any o~eer, employee ar agent of il~e Company or of a corporation of which the

Company is err was a sh~rehoider (notwithstanding that lle is also a Director) and his heirs amid
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personal representatives against all actual at►d proper costs, charges and expenses whatsoever
incurred by h.im or them and. z~sulring from Ytis acting as an oi~ficer, erupioyee +~r agent of the
Company or such corporation. Ire addition the Company shall indemnify the Secretary or an
Assistant Secretar}~ of the Carnpan}~ (if he shall not be a fu[l-time employee o~ tie Comp~t►y and
natwithstanding that he is also a Dixector) and 11is respective heirs and legal representatives
against all casts; charges and expenses whatsoever incurred by tum or them and arising out ~f tl~e
fuzrctions assigned to the Secretary by t~~e Canzpa»y.act or these Articles and eztch such Secretary
and Assistant Secretary shall on being appointed be dee~n~cl to have contracted with, the
Company an_ the teems of the foregoing indemnity, provided such Secretary crr Assistant
Secretary has ~c~ed hc~nesily and in good faith with a view do the best in~eresis of the Company,
or he his hats: re~~sonable grounds fpr, believing that his conduct was law~Eil.

2a.~, Nan-Compliance with CampanyAct

the failure of ~ Director or officer of tf~e Company t~ con~~ly ruith the provisions of t~t~
eompcxny Acr or of the Memorandum ar these Arti~.le~ s~iall rtc~l invalidate any indemnity to
wl~ch he ~s cntitied under this Part.

20.x. Company May Purchase in$urance

The Directors may cause the Compa~~y to purchase and maxniain insurance fox the benefit of any
person who is or was s~cving as a Director, officer, empl~y~e or agent of the C~m~~y ar as a
director, officer, employee or went of any coiporati~~n of which the Company is or was a
shareholder and his heirs ar personal. representatives against any liability incurred by him as such
Director, oi~icer, employee tart agent.

PART 2'I

2'[. DIVIDENDS AND RESERVES

21.'1. Declaration of Dividends

The Directors may from time to time declare and authorize paym~e~t of such dividends, ifany, as
they may deem advisable and need not give r~c~tice of such declaration to any member. 1*To
dividend shall tie paid atherwi5e than out ref funds or assets properly available far the payrneni of
dividends anc~"a declaration by the Directors as to the amount taf such funds or assets available for
diwidenc~s shall be conclusive that such are properly available. The Company may pay any such
dividend wholly or in part by ttre distribution of specific assets at~d in particular by paid-up
shares,. bonds, debentures or other securities of the Corngany or any other corporation, or izl any
one ar more such ways as may be authorized by the Company or the Directors. Where any
difficulty arises with regard to such a distribution the Directors may settle the same as they think
expedient and, in particular, may ,fix the value for distribution of'such specific assets or any part
thereof and may determine that. cash payments in substiriition for all or any part of the specific

~~
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assets to w~ c~ any members are entitled shall be made to any members on the basis of the value
so fixed in order to adjust the rights of all parties and may vest any such specific assets in trustees
for the persons entitled. to the dividend as may seem ~x~diei~t io the Dir~ctars.

21.2. Basis. and Payment
~.

Sub1~ct ~o the rights, if any, of membec-s holding shires with special rights as to dividends:

Via) a~ly dividend declaxed un shares ~f any cuss by the Directors may tie made
- payable nn such date as is fixed by the: Directors;

(b) all dividends nn shares of any class shall be declared and be laid according to the
n~zn~ber of such shares held.

21.3. Reserves

The Directors nay, before d~clating eery dividend, set aside aut of the Minds properly available
€or the payrrnent of dividends ~uc~1 sums as they think proper as a reserve ~r reserves which shall,
~t the discretion of the D~irec#ors, be applicable for meeting contingencies or for equalizing
dividends car for any oiher pur~ase to which such funds of the Compa~iy may b~ properly applied,
at~d pending such application such funds rnay, in the discretion of the Directors, either be
employed in the business of t}le Compairy or be invested in such investments as the Directors
may from time to timz think fit, Tlie Directors may also, wiihotit placing the same in reserve,
carry forward such funds which they think prudent net to divide.

21.4. Receipt by Joint ~iegister~d Holders

If several persons are joint Registered Holders of any share, any one of them. may give an
effective receipt for any dividend, bonus or other moneys payable in respect of the share.

2'1.5. Dividend Bears No Interest

No dividend shall bear imcrest against t1~e Gampany. Where the dividend to which a member is
entitled includes a fraction of a c ent, such fraction shall be disregarded in making payment

thereof and such paymern shall he deemed to be payment in full.

2't .f . ' - Payment at Dividends

Any dividend, bonuses ar ether moneys payable in cash in r~s~ect of s~iares maX be paid by

cheque or warrant sent through the post directed to the Registered t~ddress of the Registered

Holder, or in the case of joint Kegistered Holders, to the Registered Address of that one of the

joint Registered Holders who is first named oil the Register, or to such person and to such

address as the Registered Holder ~r .joint Registered Holders may direct in ti~~riting. Every such

cheque car warrant shall be made payable to the order of the person to whom it is sent. The
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mailing cif such cheque car w,~rrant shall, to the extent of the sum represented thereby (plus the
atriaunt of the t.~x required by iaw to b~ deducted), disc~~arge all liability for the dividend, tu~ess
such cheque pr waxrant shall not b~ paid on presentation or the amount cif tax sv deducted shall
not be paid to the appropriate taxing authority.

~'t.7. Capitalization of Undistributed Surplus

Nntwithsianding anything contained ui these Articles, the Directors may _frost dime to time
capitalize any undistributed surplus on hand. of the Company and may ITorn time to ,time issue as
fu~Iy paid and non-assessable airy unissued shires, ter any hands, debeniures ~~ debt obligations
of tY~e Company as a dividend representing such undistributed surplus on hand oz' any part
tlzereoC.

PART 22

~2. DC)CUMENTS, RECORaS AND REPClRTS~

22.'1. ~Geeping documents, Minutes, etc.

The Company shall keep at its records office, ar at such other place as the Comparry Act may
permit, the documents, copies} registers, minutes and records 4vhich the Company is required ~iy
the Company ~Ict to keep at its records office or such other place, as the case may be.

22.2. Keeping Books of Aecaunt

The Company shall cause to be kept proper books of accowlt and accounting records in respect
cif ail financial and other transactions of the Compa~~y in order properly to record the financial
affairs and condition of the Company and to comply with the Company Act.

22.3. Inspection of Accounting Records -

Unless the I~ rectors detern~ine o#herw se, or unless otherwise detern~ined by an ordinary

resolution, no member of the Company shall be entitled to i~sp~ct tl~e accounting records of the

Company.

22.4. preparation end Presentation of Financial Statements

The Directors shall from. time to time ~t the expense of the Company cause to be prepar~l and

Laid before the C~tnpany iii general. meeting such financial. statements and reports as are required

by the Campnny ,Act.

~~
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22.5.. Members Er~titl~ment to Financial Statements

On demand, every member sha]1 be entitled without charge, to a copy of t~i~; latest angual
financial statement of the Company and, if s~ required by the Cornpanv Act, a copy of each .such
annual financial statement and interim financial statement shall be mailed to each member.

~3. NOTICES

PART 23

23."i . Method of Giving Notice

A nvtic~, statement or report may be given or delivered by t17e Company to any member or
T}irector either by d~.Civery to l~im personally or'by sending it by trail to him t~ his address ~s
recorded in ffi~ register a~t members. V~aere a notice, statement rar r~part i~ sent by mail, service
or delivery of the notice, statement or report sha11. be effected by properly addressing, prepaying
and mailing the notice, statement or rzport and shall be deemed to have been given on the day
(Saturdays, Sundays and statutor y holidays excepted) following the date of mailing. A certificate
signed by the Secretary or other of icer of t11e Company or of any other ec~rporati~n acting in that
'behalf four the Company stating that the letter, envelope or upper containing the notice,
statement or report vas so addressed, prepaid ~d mailed. shall be conclusive evidence thereof.

23.2. Notice to Joint Registered Holders

A notice, statement or report may be given or delivered by tl~e Company to the joint Registered 
-Iolders of a share by giving tll~ notice to thy. joia~t holder first named in t}le register of members
in respect of the; share.

23.3. Notice to Personal Representative

A notice, statement or report may be given or delivered by the Company to the p~r~ons endued to

a share in consequence of the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of a merrxbet` by sending it through

the mail prepaid addressed to them by name a~' by t ie title of representatives of the deceased ~r

incapacitated ~ersan ar trustee of the ra~zkru~t or by any like description, at the address (if any)

supplied to the Company for the purpose by the persons claiming to tie so entitled or (until such

address has been so supplied) by giving the notice in a manner in which the same might have

been given if tk~e death, bankruptcy ar incapacity had nai occurred.

23.4.. Persons to Receive Notice

Notice of every general meeting or meeting of members holdi~b a class of shares shall be given

in a manner here nbefc~t•~ authorized to ever} member haldui~, at the time of the issue of the

notice or the date fixed for d~termnin~ the members entitled to such notice, whichever is the

~~
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earlier,. shares wEuch confer the right to notice of and to attend and vote at any Bch meeting. No
other person shall be entit~eci tp 3~eCei~Je notices of any such meeting except the auditor ~d
Directors of the Company artd any regulatory autharity to which the Ct~mpany is required by law
to give any such notice.

PART 24

24. RECURa QAT~S

X4.1. Fixing Record Date

11~e Directors may ftx in advance a date, which skill not be motes t}~an tl~e maacimum number gf
days pern~itted by the Company Act, preceding the date of any meeting of members or any class
thereof ar of the payment of any dividend or of the proposed taking cif any other proper action
requiring the determination of members, as tkie record date far tine determination of the members
entitled to naticc of, or to attend and ~~ote'at; any such meeting and any adjournment thereof, or
entitle-d to receive payment of ~zy such dividend or for any atheF proper purpose attd, in such
case, notwithstanding an}rth ng elsewhere co~ltained in these articles, only members of rect~rd on
the gate so fxed shall be deemed to be members far the purposes aforesaid.

X4.2. Vllhere ~!o Record Date Fixed

Where no record date is sa fixed for the c~etem~inatioil of members as p~uided in t]Ze preceding
Article, the date on which the notice is mailed or an which the resolution declaring the dividend
is adopted, as the case- may be, sl~a]} be the record date for such determination.

PA1~T 25

~5. SEAL

.25.1. Custody and Use of Seat

The Directors may provide a Seal for the Company and, if they do so, shall ~rovitie fir its safe

cu~tvdy and it shall not be impressed o1i any instrument except when suett impression is attested

by the signature or signatures of

(~.) any tw'o directors;

(b~ any officer together urith any director; ar

(c) such one or mare directors ~r officers or persons as may be prescribed fmm time

to time by resalutian of the Directors.
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Provided that, for the purpose of certifying under seal true copies of any resolution yr other
document, the Seal may be impressed tin such copy attested by the signature of any Director or
officer.

X5.2. Mechanics[ Reproduction of Sea!

To enable the Se~I to b~ at~ixed to any bands, d~t~entures, share certificates or other securities of
the Company, whether in definitive nr inferim form, on which facsimiles of any of the signatures
of the Directors or officers of tl~e pomp ~ are, 'tn ~ccazdance with tl~e Compa~ry Act or these
Articles, prinfed or otherwise mechanically reproduced, the~+e may b~ delivered to the firm or
carnpany employed to engrave, lithograph ter print such de#initive or interim bonds, debentures,
share certificates or other securities one or more unmounted dies reproducing the Seal and the
Chairman cif tl~e Board, the President; the Ma17a~ing DirEctar o1• aVice-President 'together with
tl~e Secretary, Treasurer, Secretary-Treasurer, an Assistant Secretary-, an Assistant Treasurer or an
Assistant Secretary-Treasurer may in ti~~riting authorize such. firm or company to cause the Seal to
be affixed tc~ such definitive. or nieri~n t~onds, debentures, share certificates ar other securities by
tie use of such dies. Bonds, debentures, sl~ar~; certi.~cates or tither s~eurities tc~ which the Seal
has been so affixed sha[1 for all purposes be deemed to be under end to bear the Seal lawfully
affixed thereto.

25.3. Official Seel

The Company may lave for use in any either province, state, territory or country ata official seal
which shall }lave on its own face the name of the province, state, territory ~r country where it is
to be used and alI of the powers conferred by the Compa~ry Act with respect thereto may be
exercised by the Directors or by a duly authorize~I agent of the Company.

PART 26

26. RES7RICTIQNS

2fi,'i. Safe of Shares and bebt Obligations to Public

If the Company is not a reporting eompan}-, no shams or debt obligations issued by the Comgar~y

sha11 be offered for sale to tl~e public unless any such offex .for sate has been authorized by the

Directors.

~fi.2. Transfer of Shares

If the Company is not a reporting co~n~airy, no shares shall be transferred wit}►aut the previous
consent of the Directors expressed by a resolution of the Board and the Directors shall not be
required to give any reason for refusing to consent to any such proposed transfer.

Arlieies of Incorporation of .Ali Canadian Mc~rt~ag~ lm~estmcnt Ccx~oratian



35-

Pi4RT 27

27. ~'HE PREFERRED SHARES

27.'l. Defir~ition~:
The foll~owin~ terms have tl~e fallowing meanings whe~1 used in this Part 27:

"Borro~vcr" means a person that has received a Mortgage Investment from the
Company; _

"Common Shareholders" means t}~c persons who are-ft~~: registered holders of the issued and
outstanding Commons Shares;

"Cammorl ~}lar~s" means "the com~not~ shares without par value in the capital of the
Comp~iny;

"I~~ortgage Investment." means an investment made by the Company that is z~ the form of a
Loan to a person} such that the Company becomes a creditor of the
person and ~ucl~ investment is secured by a mortgage, yr secured.
oth~en~ise as inay be permitted, that 1s granted by the person to the
Company against assets of the person;

"Mortgage Ynvestment
A~r'eement" mea~zs a written a~Treement bctweei~ the Company a~~d a E~orrc~wer

that sets out the terns and conditions pursuant to which the
Company has made a M~ort~ace Investment with the Borrower;

"Mortgage investment
Income" meats X11 monies that the Company receives, dzrect~y and for its

c~wn benefit, from a Borrower under any Mortgage Investment

Agr~emcnt. This includes all interest payments, principal payments

aiad any bonus fees or interesi that may be paid to the Company by

a Barr~t~•er under a Mortgage A~reernent;

"Preferred Shareholder' means the persons wlio are the registered holders ofthe issued and

outstanding Preferred Shares; and

"Prefen~d Shares" means tl~e prefe_ned shares without par value in the capital. of the

Company.

X7.2. Priority Over Common Shares

Each Preferred Share v~nll entitle its registered holder to participate on a pro rata basis with the

other Preferred Sh~.reh~lders, to tl~e exclusion of the Common Shareholders, in the distribution of

100°~o cif the Mortgage Investment Income chat remains aftez• the deduction of any management

fie or fees determined by die Directors i» their sole. discretion. Such distributions Qf Mortgage

Investment Income tv the Preferred Shareholders, if any, tivi11 be made by way of dividends

~~~~~
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declared can the issued and autstanding Preferred Shares. Thee Corr~rnc~n Shareholders wi11 not be
entitled to participate in any dividends dec]ared by the I3irectors on the Preferred Shares.

27.3. Voting Rights

The Ptefezred Shares shad be non-voting. 'T`he Preferred Shaxeholders '~vvil ti►e entitled to receive
ntrtice of and to attend, but not vote at meetings of sl areliolders of the Gampany.

27.x. Redemption ~f Preferred shares

A preferred Share wilt be redeemed by tI~ Compa~~iy if anc3 only if:

~~} the Company has received wri#ten notice from the registered balder of the
Preferred Share that he wishes the Coinpan_y to redeem the Preferred Share;

(b) tY►e Direct~r~, in their sole discretion, canseni to the redemption by the Company
of the Preferred Share pursuant ia_terms and conditions set by the Directors in
their sole discretion; and

f~3 ~~ Preferred Shareholder whc~ requested that his PreFened Share be redeemed,
accepts the terms and conditions of redemption set by the Directors. ~~

The Directors will not be obligated to provide any reasons for not consenting to a Preferred
Shareholder's request to have his Preferred Shares redeemed by the Company.

27.5. Winding Up ar Liquidation of the Company

Upon the winding up or dissolution or liquidatio~i of the C~ii~pany, the Company's assets will be
distributed to the Preferrcc~ Shareholders in priority to the Common S1lareholders as follows:

• first to the Preferred Shareholders an a pro rata basis among the Preferred
Shareholders until each greyerred Shareholder has received the lesser af: (i) the
origir►al subscriptio~l price for each :Preferred Sh,~re for which the preferred
~harehalder is tl~e registered ho~ld~r and all dividends that have been declared bud for
which tl~e Preferred Shareholder has yet io be paid; and (iii) the book value of the
Preferred Shares, for which the Preferred Shareholder is the registered holder, as
determined in the upcoming year-end audited finazzcial statements; and

• the Y~alance to the Common Shatehc~lders on a pro rata basis among the Common
Shareholders, to the eeelusion cif the Preferred Shareholders. rf

27.6. Clarification afi Rights and Restrictions

T11e Directors may at any time clarify the rights a~ld restrictions of the Preferred Shat`es that axe
set ou# in this past 2'l or elsewhere in t}~ese Articles.
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27.7. Equal Ranking with Camman Shares

Except as provided far in this Part 27, the Preferred 5liares and lli~ Common Shares steal! rank
equally in aI1 respects.

DATED: Novemr 12, 1998 - -

{These are new articles of the Company pursuant to a Special Resolution of the me~rtb~~rs~ of tie
Company passed ~n November I2, 1998. These Articles replace the Company's Articles that
were filed. upo» its incsarparation) _ .

Articles of incorporation of All Canadian Mortgage Investment C~r~,oraiic~n



ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORP.
(the "Company")

REDEMPTION POLICY

Redemption of Preferred Shares:
The Company has adopted a policy regarding the redemption of Preferred Shazes.
A copy of such policy is available €rom the Company upon request.
Pursuant to such policy, a Preferred Sure will be redeemable by the Company in certain
circumstances. Although the Company will use its best commercial efforts to ensure that all
requests for redemption are fulfll~d; depending on such circumstances the Company
cannot guarantee that any or all of the Preferred Shares in respect of which requests for
redemption are received will b~ redeemed in any given fiscal year.

Pursuant~to the Company's policy regarding the redemption of Preferred Shares, a holder of
Preferred Shares (a "Requesting Shareholder") may request the Company to redeem the whole::-
or any part of his Preferred Shares by giving notice ("Notice") to the Company. The Notice must
be in writing and delivered to the Company not later than the last business day of a calendaz
quarter {quarter ends being March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31) in each year.: . _
The Notice must specify the number of the Preferred Shares which the Requesting Shareholder-
wishes to have the Company redeem{the_ •'Requested Shares") and the address to which the
Requesting Shareholder wishes payment to be delivered by the Company. Finally, the Notice
must specify-that the Requesting Shareholder has received, read and understood the Company's
redemption policy.

The Company will not redeem any Preferred Shazes if at the time of such redemption the
Company is insolvent or if such redemption will render the Company insolvent, if such _,_
redemption will reduce the Company's cash reserves below a level which the Company's
directors (the •'Directors") determine, in their sole discretion. to be prudent, or if such
redemption will cause the Company to breach the requirement that at least 50% of the cost
amount of its property must consist of bank deposits or mortgage loans made in respect of
residential properties.

Further, in any calendar quarter, the Company will not redeem any more than that number of
Preferred Shares which is equal to 2ii 2% of the outstanding Preferred Shazes at the end of the
immediately preceding calendaz quarter. If the Company is not able to generate cash reserves
sufficient for the redemption of 2u z% of the outstanding Preferred Shares at the end of the
immediately preceding calendar quarter. it will redeem only that number of Preferred Shares
which the Directors determine in their sole discretion to be prudent. The Company will use its
best commercial efforts to generate cash reserves (through the repayment of mortgage loans made
by the Company or otherwise) sufficient for the redemption of all of the Requested Shazes in a
calendar quarter.

If the aggregate number of Requested Shares is equal to or less than 2v s% of the outstanding
Preferred Shares at the end of a calendar quarter. then subject to the Company being able to
generate sufficient cash reserves to do so it will redeem Requested Shares in respect of which

Notices have been received in a calendar quarter on a day selected by the Company in the

following calendar quarter (the •'Redemption Date").
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The price paid for each Preferred Share which is redeemed in each calendar quarter
(the "Redemption Amount") will be the fair market value thereof calculated by the Company's
auditor in conjunction with the annual audit of the Company conducted as at the immediately
preceding September 30th. For any Preferred Share which is being redeemed within two years
after the Preferred Share was initially issued by the Company, the Company will pay to the
Requesting Shareholder the Redemption Amount less 2°/a. For any Preferred Share which is
being redeemed after two years-after the Preferred Share was initially issued by the Company, the __
Company will pay to the Requesting Shareholder the Redemption Amount per Preferred Share. _
The Company will pay the Redemption Amount by cheque mailed by first class mail to the _ -
Requesting Shareholder on~the Redemption Date at the address of the Requesting Shareholder set
out in his, her or its Notice. - -

If the aggregate number of Requested Shares is more than 2v z°/a of the outstanding Preferred..-
Shares at the end of a calendar quarter or if the Company is not able to generate cash reserves
sufficient for the redemption of the aggregate number of Requested Shares, the redemption of
Preferred Shares will be made pro rata to the number of Preferred Shazes in respect of which
requests for redemption have been made.

The adoption of its policy regazding the redemption of Preferred Shares does not fetter the
discretion of the Directors of the Company from time to time to amend or cancel such policy
in whole or in part or to adopt. an alternative policy with respect to the redemption of _ __
Preferred Shares, or to refuse to consent to a Requesting Shareholder's request to have
their Preferred Shares redeemed by the Company.

There are times when redemption requests may not be processed in a timely manner and
shareholders may have to wait longer than ezpected to receive their redemption request. The
source of funds used to process redemptions may be from new capital raised and/or loans being
repaid. There is no guarantee that funds will be available to meet all redemption requests.
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This is Exhibit ....~,.... referred to in the ~ffAdavit ~
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

'This Agreement made as of the 18 day of September, 2003 (the "Effective
Date',

BETWEEN:

ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION, a
British Columbia company, of 1540 - 70I West Georgia
Street, Vancouver, BC V7Y 106

(the "Company'

OF THE FIRST PART

AND:

ACIC FINANCIAL DEVELOPMENT INC., a British
Columbia company, of 1500 - 701 West Georgia Street,
Vancouver, BC V7Y 1 C6

(the Manager's

OF TIC SECOND PART

WHEREAS: .

A. The Company is a mortgage investment corporation and has been established for
the purpose of making of or investing in loans (the "Loans") in respect of mortgages
("Mortgages' of real property;

B. By way of an Offering Memorandum dated January 6, 2003, the Company is
offering its preferred shares ("Preferred Shares' for investrnent by investors in the
Provinces of British Columbia and Alberta, and in such other jurisdictions where it may
be permitted to do so, far the purposes of raising funds for the business of the Company;
and

C. The Manager has agreed to provide certain ongoing management services to the
Company in connection with the Loans and the business of the Company-,

NOW THEREFORE this Agreement witnesses and it is hereby covenanted, agreed and
declared as follows: -

ARTICLE 1-DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definitions

In this Agreement, the following terms have the meaning given to them:

DgASl364165.1
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{a} "Assets" means the total assets of the Company as reflected on the
Company's financial statements from time to time;

{b) "Gross Revenue" means all intec~est, fees, and other amounts received by
the Company and arising out of the conduct of its business from time to
time;

•

(c) "Offering Memorandum" means the Offering Memorandum of the -
Company dated January 6, 2003;

(d) "Offering" means the offering of the Preferned Shares described in the
Offering Memorandum; ~ -.:~-

(e) "person" includes an individual, corporation or partnership, trust, joint
venture, unincorporated organization, body corporate, personal
representative, co-operative association or governmental or regulatory
authority, agency, commission or board.

ARTICLE 2- SERVICES

21 Appointrnent of the Manager

The Company hereby appoints the Manager to provide to the Company the financial,
syndication, sales, administrative and management services described in this Agreement
(collectively, the "Sen+ices"), and the Manager hereby accepts such apgoinhnen~

22 Smdication and Sales Services

The Manager will syndicate and implement the Offering, and in connection therewith wilt _
provide the following services to the Company: -.

(a) coordinating and overseeing the offering and sale of the Preferred Shares, -.--
the printing and distribution of the Offering Memorandum and the - .... .
completion of all matters related to the closing of subscriptions for -, ..
Preferred 'Shares, including appointing, acting as liaison with and - .--~-
supervising financial agents, negotiating and paying referral fees and . - ..
commissions to such agents, and paying other sales costs; . _

(b) responding to inquiries from financial agents, investors and others as they
may arise firom time to time; ._

(c} preparing and filing all reports required in the jurisdictions in which
Preferred Shares have been sold in order to comply with applicable
securities legislation; and

(d) completing all such other tasks and matters as may be necessary in respect
of the foregoing.

UIJAS/464165.1



-3- ~~

23 I.flan Management Services

The Manager will administer the Company's portfolio of Loans, including without
limitation:

(a) providing instructions to legal counsel with respect to the preparation,
execution, and registration of security documentation;

(b) _ overseeing the receipt by the Company of interest payments on the Loans
-- and the payment thereof by the Company to the holders of PrefeiTed

Shares;

(c)' maintaining ongoing liaison with the borrowers of the Loans;

{d) conducting ongoing analysis of market conditions to monitor tl~►e
Company's investment in Loans;

(e~ assisting the Company in taking all such actions pertaining to the I:oans
and the enforcement of all security granted in respect of the Loans as may
be requisite and providing instructions to and liaising with the Company's
legal counsel in that regard; and

(fl advising the Company with respect to the disposition of Loans, and
negotiating and carrying out the. disposition of Loans on such terms and

--_ ,. . .. conditions and at such times as the Company may determine. -_-

2.4 Investor Communications and Reporting

The Manager will provide the following investor communication and reporting services
to the Company:

(a) establishing and maintaining a register for all holders of Preferred Shares;

(b~; ~ processing all documentation relating to transfers of Preferred Shares,
including corresponding with.former and new holders of Preferred Shares_

-_ . - - in that regard;

"~c~~ - ̀  re~rting on behalf of the Company to holders of Preferred Shares on gin
ongoing basis;

(d~` preparing and mailing financial and other reports to holders of Preferred
Shares;

(e) attending to alI arrangements necessary for meetings of the holders of
Preferred Shares;

(fl responding to all inquiries by holders of Preferned Shares; and

ni~Asrasa~ss.~



(g) providing holders of Preferred Shares with detailed statements for income
tax purposes.

2.5 Service Requirements

In providing the Services, the Manager will use reasonable commercial efforts to perform
its duties and responsibilities under this Agreement and will:

(a) act in a conscientious and reasonable manner, honestly and in good faith,

(b) comply with and observe all laws and regulations which apply to the
Company, the Loans and the security gianted for Loans;

(c) comply with and observe all instructions and directions given to it by the
Company;

(d) devote suff cient time and attention to carry out its duties as required
hereunder; and -

(e) engage a sufficient number o~ employees to carry out and fulfil the
Manager's obligations to the Company under this Agreement.

2.6 Appointment as Agent

The Company confers on the Manager 3t~e authority to act as the Company's agent, for the ~- ~-~
purpose of making all agreements, signing all documents and doing all other acts and
things that will be necessary for the Manager to discharge its responsibilities, duties and
obligations under this Agreement 'fhe Company agrees to be bound by all agreements,
documents and acts made or taken by the Manager pursuant to the provisions of this=.
Agreement

2.7 Powers of the Manager

The Manager nay take such actions ~=may be necessaiy or desirable in its discretion fo ~ ~ ~= ~ ~ ::
administer the. Loans. In the admini~tiaian or collecrion or enforcement of any Loan, the- : : -
Manager ~a~, •but shall pat be:-~l~ti~ated to, retain for the account of the Company~.-;~,. _ _._-
solicitors, counsel and other expe~#s-: ̀and ,receivers and advance such funds of the :-= -t
Company as it considers reasonable-er necessary in order to preserve, pmtect, defend of
improve the Company's interest in any Loan. The Manager shall endeavor to collect the
amount of all costs incurred or advances made from the borrower but, in all events, the
Company shall indemnify the Manager for and shall pay to the Manager any such costs
advanced by the Manager out of the funds of the Manager, or to the extent that the
Company holds only a ~rcentage interest in any such Loan, the Company's percentage
share of such costs, within 30 business days of demand by the Manager, plus interest at
the rate set out in Section 4.5, to the date of payment both before and after judgment

D/JA5/4G4 L65.1
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2.s offer

The Manager will provide the Company with offices within the Ivlanager's office
premises free of rent, utilities and basic telephone charges for the purposes of carrying out
the Company's business.

ARTICLE 3 -TERM

3 1=-~ Term -

This Agreement will continue in full force and effect until the 10th anniversary of the
Effective Date (the "Term'''). Unless either _party provides written notice to they other ~o
terminate this, Agreement, the Term will be automatically extended for successive terms
of five years each. -_ -

3.2 Termination by the Compan

This Agreement may be terniinated by the Company in the event that: ~ -

(a) a bankruptcy, receivership.- or liquidation order is issued against the
Manager;

(b) the Manager makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or commits
_. any act of bankruptcy within the meaning of the Bankruptcy and

Insolvency Act (Canada};

(c) the Manager assigns this Agreement or its rights or obligations hereunder
to any person who is not an affiliate of the Manager without the prior
written consent of the Company;

(d) the Manager commits a breach or default under this Agreement not~related
._- _ _ to the payment of any money to be paid by the Manager to the Company

.and the same is not cured within 90 days of the Manager receiving notice
_ : - thereof; - = _

(e) the Manager commits a breach or default under this Agreement related to
the payment of any money to be paid by the Manager to the Company and

- ~ the same is not cured within 15 days of the Manager receiving notice
thereof; or

_ ~` (fl the Company gives the Manager one year prior written notice of intention
to terminate this Agreement.

3.3- Termination by the Manager

This Agreement may be terminated by the Manager in the event that:

D/JASI464165.1
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(a) a bankruptcy, receivership or liquidation order is issued against the
Company;

(b) the Company makes an assignment for the benefit of the Company's
creditors or commits any act of bankruptcy within the meaning of the
Bankruptcy and Lisolvency Act (Canada); or _ ..

(c) the Manager gives the Company one year prior written notice of intention
to terminate this Agreement, ---

3.4 Payment on Termination -

Upon the termination of this Agreement, the Company will continue to be responsible far
the payment to the TVianager ~of, and upon the Manages demand therefor will pay to the - .- -.
Manager, any and all fees payable under this Agreement and all Expenses (as defined "-
herein} incurred and paid by the Manager during the Term in accordance with the
provisions of this Agreement _

ARTICLE 4 -FEE AND EXPENSES

~4.1 Fees _ .

In consideration of the provision of the Services, the Company will pay to the Manager an
annual fee {the "Management Fee") in the amount which is the aggregate of -

(a) the product of 2%multiplied by the Assets; plus

{b) the product of 15% multiplied by the Gross Revenue. _._

4.2 Payment of Management Fee - _ _

The Management .Fee. will be paid to the Manager monthly, on the last day of each month,

and will be calculated`based on the average daily balance of the Assets and the average -~ _....
4 -~ = =daily Gross Revenue =in such month, pro rated on a daily basis forpartial-:months during . _- . _ .. .-..

- the Term. - . . ~ - -
. .Y:~~. - .-.. - _ ._ ~ _ .

4.3 Maya erg 's Expenses _ =

:The Manager will ga~c all of its own costs of ofFiceis and employees and of its own __ _ -_
expenses and overhead relating to the provision by the Manager of the Services. ._

4.4 Company's Expenses

Except as set out in Section 4.3, the Company will reimburse the Manager immediately
upon the request flf the Manager-for all costs and expenses (the "Expenses' incurred by
the Manager on behalf of the Company in respect of the following:

D/JAS/464165.1



-~-
~~

(a) the third party legal, accounting, audit and other consulting fees, costs and
expenses incurred by the Company in coimection with the preparation of
the Offering Memorandum;

(b) all legal, audit, and shareholder meeting costs, and all legal fees and
disbursements of collecting ar attempting to collect any amounts owing ar
in arrears oa any of the Loans, including foreclosiue or other court
proceedings.

The Manager shall. not be under any obligaxion to incur or to gay any Expenses or to
spend or risk its own money or otherwise incur financial liability in tl~e payment of the

_°"-'~~ Expenses. -- -

= 4.5 -~ Interest

.Any portion of the Management Fee or the Expenses payable under this Agreement which
are not paid when due, or any amount referred to in Section 2.7, will bear interest from
the date due to the date paid at a rate equal to the prime rate of interest charged by the
Royal Bank of Canada at its main branch in Vancouver, British Columbia to its most
creditworthy borrowers and designated as its "Prime Rate" plus three percent per annum,
calculated and compounded monthly.

4.6 Lien in favour of the Manaeer

The Company does hereby grant to the Manager a lien over the Company's interest in any
Loans for the payment of the Management Fee, the Expenses and any other amounts due
to the Manager by the Company under this Agreement

ARTICLE 5 —INDEMNITY AND RELEASE

- 5.1 Release

:._ The Company will not hold the Manager liable for any loss, damages or costs:.arising out
of a failure to collect any amount owing on any particular Mortgage after it has been
acquired by the Company. The Manager and its shareholders; directors, officers, agents

-~ and employees will have no liability in respect- of any act or omission~aregarding, 
--:>._- tesgecting or relating to the services, duties, and powers performed or to tie delivered or
• = ~ -' performed by it pu~uant to this Agreement except ̀to the extent such' act or omission

constitutes gross negligence or wilful misconduct.

5.2 Indemnity

The Company does hereby indemnify and holds harmless the Manager, its officers,
directors, employees, shareholders, and agents, from and a~;nct any and all liabilities,
losses, claims, damages, penalties, actions, suits, demands, casts and expenses including,
without limitation, the omissions which the Manager takes under this Agreement,

D/JAS1464165.1
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provided that such action or onussion is taken or not taken in good faith and without
gross negligence or is taken pursuant to and is in compliance with this Agreement

5.3 Survival

This terms of Section 5.1 and 5.2 will survive the removal or resignation of thelvianager
in connection with any and all of its duties and obligations under this Agreement

ARTICLE b - NIISCELLANEOUS

6.1 - _ Headings• .Etc• = _ - _ _

1~he division of this Agreement into Parts, Sections and subsections and ntliEr
subdivisions, the provisions of a table of contents and the insertion of headings are -for_

-. convenience of reference only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation
_ hereof.

6.2 Rules of Conshvction

Unless the context otherwise requires:

words importing the singular number only shall include the plural and vice
versa and words importing any gender shall. include all genders and shall
include individuals, firms and corporations and any other incorporated or

< unincorporated entity; and ~ ~ -~

(a}

reference herein to any agreement, indenture or_other instrument in writing
means such_ -agi~eement, indenture or other instrument in writing as
amended, modified or supplemented from time to time to the extent
permitted by the terms hereof. __

- 6.3 • . Governing Law and Attornment

- ~_ - This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws ~f the Province of B~i~ish~~
Columbia and shall be treated in all respects as British Columbia contracts. The. par ties.- _=~
hereby -irrevocably submit to the jwisdiction of any court ~in the Province of Bri~ash~.--.
Colu%nt~ia: ~~for the purposes of any legal or "equitable suit, action or proceed ifg-gin
connection~with this Agreement. ~ =.. _.

6.4 -- . Notices - -.

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any notice required or permitted to be
given to the Manager or the Company under this Agreement shall be sufficiently given if
in writing and served personally on an officer of the Manager or the Company or sent by
delivery, fax or by fetter, postage prepaid, addressed to the addresses as set forth on page
1 of this Agreement (unless at the time of mailing or within four days thereafter there
shall be a strike, interruption or lockout in the Canadian postal service, in which case the

DlJASlA64165.1
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notice shall be given by personal delivery or fax). Any notice, if delivered or sent by fax,
shall be considered to have been given on the next business day following the date of
delivery or the date of sending of the fax, as the case may be or, if sent by letter, on the
third business day following the date of mailing the letter in aregularly-maintained
receptacle for the deposit of mail.

5.5 Enurement

This Agreement will enure.to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties and their
respective successors, and assigns. _ -~-.

6.6 Further Assurances _ -=-.--_

The parties will execute and deliver all such fiuther documents, do or cause to be done all -.--=
such further acts and things, and give all such further assurances as may be necessary to
give full effect to the provisions and intent of this AgXeement.

6.7 InvaliditYof Provisions - _ - __

Wherever there is any conflict between any provision of this Agreement and any present

or future statute, law, ordinance, or regulation against which the parties have no legal -

right to contract, the latter will prevail; but in such event the provision of this Agreement

thus affected will be curtailed and limited only to the extent necessary to bring it within - --
the requirements of the law. If any term, provision, covenant, or condition of this

ment or the a lic~ron-th~reof to an nor circumstance will at an-- trine or to , -=~~~-'~ ~ PP Y Pew ~-'
any extent, be invalid, illegal, voidable, or unenforceable, then the remainder of this =~~

-Agreement or the application thereof to persons or circumstances other than fihose as to ----
-who~ it is held invalid, illegal, voidable, or unenforceable will not be affected°thereby,
-=and each term, provision; cflvenants, and condition of this Agreement will be and remain - -- ~-
valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. =

6.8 - No Waiver::=

'~~is -Agreement may not- ==amended except by a writing executed by the parties:

~~-~_. - Arbitratia~=~=~ = -_. _-_

Should there be a disagreement or a dispute between the parties hereto with respect to this ~•.-=_

Agreement or the inter~~etation thereo f the same will be referred to a single arbitrator

pursuant to the Commercia~,Arbitration Act (British Columbia), and the determination of -
such arbitrator will be final and binding upon the parties hereto. This Section 6.9 will be _
deemed to be a submission to arbitration in accordance with the Commercial Arbitration
Act.

I]~l]AS/d64165.1
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day
and year first sst out above.

ALL CANADIAN MENT CORPORATION

Per. ~ .. ~-
Authorized Si ory

ACIC FINAN VELOPMENT ING

Per: , 
... - - --

.Authorized S' story -_.- --

w~asrabai~s.i



FORM 45-lU6Fl
Amended &Restated Offering Memorandum for Non-Qual~ing Issuers

(restricted to residents of British Columbia)

ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION

Dated:
The Issuer
Name

Head Office

Currently listed or quoted:
Reporting issuer:
SEDAR filer:

The Offering

June 22, 201 ~

ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION
(the "Company")
825 Lakeshore Drive, Salmon Arm, British Columbia VIE 1 E4
Phone: l-866-772-?242 Fax: 250-804-0601
Email: info@acicinvestor.ca
No. These securities do not trade on any exchange or market.
Na
Na

Securities offered: Offering of Units of the Company. Each Unit is comprised of one
preferred share of the Company (a "Pmfcrred Share")and one
warrant ("Warrant") having the rights described in this Offering
Memorandum.

Price per security: $1,000 per Unit.

Mtnimum/lbiaximum oi'~ering: There is no minimum. You may be the only purchaser.
The maximum offering is $50,000,000.
Funds available under the o[fering may not be sufficient to
accomplish our proposed objectives.

Minimum Snbscription The minimum amount each investor must invest is $25.000.
amounh

Payment terms: Cheque or bank draft payable to '`All Canadian Investment
Corporation '.

Proposed closing dates(s): On the 15th and last day of each month.

Income Tax consequences: There are important tax consequences to these securities. See
ITEM 6.

Selling agent: Yes. See ITEM 7.

Resale restrictions•
You will be restricted from selling your securities for an indefinite
period. See ITEM 10.

Purchase's rights: You have ?business days to cancel your agreement to purchase
these securities. If there is a misrepresentation in this offering
memorandum, you have the right to sue either for damages or to
cancel this agreement. See ITEM 1 I .

No securities regulatory authority has assessed the merits of these securities or reviewer! this
offering memorandum. Any representation to the contrary is an offence. This is a risky
investment. See ITEM 8.

This is Exhibit ...~...... refiecred to in the affidavit of

.'J.~ :Q.at(~.....~.`.•':-~.~~. .'~:`~ ~!1...... sworn (or affirmed).....

before me on . 

............Q~~~~:•••r•,~• ...................... ........................
A Commissioner for taking Affidavits

within British Columbia
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FORWARD-LUOKING STATEMENTS

CeRain statements in this Offering Memorandum as they relate to the Company and its operations may
constitute "forward-looking statements''. Any statements that express or involve discussions with
respect to predictions, expectations, beliefs, plans, projections, objectives, assumptions or future
events or performance (often, but not always, using words or phrases, including, but not limited to,
expects, does not expect, is expected, anticipated, does not anticipate, plans, estimate, believes, does
not believe or intends stating that certain actions, events or results may, cou{d, would, might or will be
taken, occur or be achieved) are not statement of historical fact and may be forward-looking
statemenEs. Forward-looking statements are based on expectations, estimates and projections at the
time the statements are made that involve a number of risks and uncertainties which could cause actual
results or events to differ materially from those presently anticipated. These include, bui are not
limited to, the risks of the business of the Company identified under "Risk Factors". See ITEM 8.

The Company does not undertake any obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or othenvise, except as expressly
required by Iaw.
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Item 1 Use ofAvallable Funds

1.1 Funds

Assuming
mia. offeriu

Assuming
mai. offerin

A Amount to be raised b this offerin $0 $50,400,000
B Sellin commissions and fees $0 $0
C Estimated offerin casts (e. . le al, accountin ,audit) $0 $50,000
D Net roceeds: D = A — B + C $0 $49,950,000
E Additional Sources of fundin re wired $0 $0
F Workin ca ital deficienc - - - $4 $0
G Toial: = D-FE - F $0 $49,950,000

1.2 Use of Available Funds

Intended use of available funds listed in order of priority
Assuming
min. offering

Assuming
max. offering

Mort e Loans &Other Investments $0 $49,950,000

Total $0 $49,950,000

Funds received from subscriptions for Units pursuant to this Of'f'ering Memorandum will mostly
be used in the manner described in the table above.

A portion of the proceeds raised under the current offering may be used to fund dividend
payments, autstaading and future redemption requests as well as debt repayment .

The Company has borrowed and may continue to borrow tunds in order to meet financing
obligations. See Item 3.4 "Loans" on page 17.

13 Reallocation

We intend to spend the available funds as stated. We will reallocate funds only for sound business
reasons.

Item Z Business otthe Company

Z.1 Structure

All Canadian Investment Corporation (the "Company') .vas incorporated under the laws of
British Columbia on August 19, 1~I98 under the name of 570425 BC Ltd. On November ]3, 1998,
the Company changed its name to A{I Canadian Mortgage Investment Corporation and on
December 21, 2000 to All Canadian Investment Corporation. The Company was transitioned
under the Business Corpora~ions Act (British Columbia) on July 23, 2005. The registered office
of the Company is located at 900-885 West Grorgia Street Vancouver, BC, V6C 3H1. The

5



10~

Company intends to qualify as a "mortgage investment corporation°' pursuant to the Income Tax
Act (Canada} (the "Tax Act").

2.2 Our Business

The Company is a mortgage investment corporation ('`MIC"). Its business is to provide loans
("Mortgage Loaas") to owners and _developers of single and multi-family residential,
commercial, office and industrial real estate properties (collectively, the "Borrowers"), which are
secured by mortgages ("Mortgages") of the_property. In most cases, because these Ioans do not
meet the standard financing criteria for institutional mortgages, MoRgage Loans are made to
Borrowers at higher interest rates than generally charged by more conventional providers of
Mortgage Loans. As such. interest charged by the Company to Borrower on the Mortgage
Loans is generally at higher rates than on .conventional first mortgage loans from conventional
lenders. As well, Mortgage Loans by the Company to Borrowers generally represent a higher
ratio of loan to the value of the property secured by the Mortgage, leaving less of the Borrower's
equity in each pro~erry than would be the case under a conventional loan.

The Company may also make other loans and investments From time to time, which may include
equity loans and interim financing for construction, development, redevelopment or renovation.
These loans may be unsecured and could pose a greater risk in the event of a default.

The Company's lending rates currently range from 6% to 12% for Mortgages and 10% to 12% for
unsecured loans. The interest rates are set by the Company to be fair to both the Borrower and
the Company. In this lo~v interest rate environment and with more competition from other
lenders, the Company may have to adjust the interest rates lower.

Investment Guidelines —Mortgage Loans

All ivlortgage Loans will be made pursuant to the following investment guidelines that have been
established by the Company:

(a) the Company will make loans so as to maintain its status as a "mortgage
investment corporation'' under the Tai Act;

(b) atl Mortgage Loans will be secured in favour of the Company or its agent, either
as sole mortgagee or co-mortgagee, and each Mortgage will be registered in the
appropriate land title office as a charge against the real property subject to the
Mortgage;

(c) the Company will make. Mortgage Loans only to Borrowers which the Company
approves, based on a combination of their income, net worth, credit rating and
history of repayment and the value of the property or properties available as
security for the MoRgage .Loan. Mortgage Loans will not be made to any
shareholder, director or officer of the Company;

(d) Mortgage Loans will not be made to anyone (a "Trust Party") who is both an
annuitant beneficiary or employer under a registered retirement savings plan,
deferred profit sharing plan or registered retired income fund as defined under the
Tax Act and a shareholder of the Company, or to any. other person who is a
relative of or otherwise does not deal at arm's length with the Trust Party, or to
anyone ease who would cause shares in the Company not to be a qualified
investment under Regulation 4900(1 xc) of the Tax Act;

6
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(e) security for the Mortgage Loans will consist of tither:

(i) a first Mortgage against real estate having a principal amount not more
than 100% of the appraised value of such real estate as at the date of
initial advance of the Loan or, in the case of real estate under
development or redevelopment, having a principal amount not more than
100% of tl~e appraised value of such real estate upon completion of the
development or redevelopment. Appraised value is determined by the

Company at the.time of the initial advance of a Mortgage Loan, based on
an appraisal -of -the subject property from an accredited appraiser or, if
such an apprsEsal is not available (as in the case in some remote
communities) an estimate of value from a realtor who has not less than

_= five years of relevant sales e~cperience. Where a mortgaged property is -
under development, the value used is the appraised or estimated value

prior to development plus the estimated cost of the improvements;

(ii) a subordinated Mortgage against real estate having a principal amount
which, when added to the principal amount of the prior mortgages, will

not exceed IQO% of the appraised value of such real estate as at the date

of initial advance of the Loan or, in the case of real estate under

development or redevelopment, having a principal amount not more than

100% of the appraised value of such real estate upon completion of the

development or redevelopment; or

(iii) in the case of loan renewals, a first or subordinated Mortgage, as the case

may be, against real estate having either a principal amount or, in the

case of a subordinated Mortgage, a principal amount which, when added

to the principal amount of the prior mortgages, is not more than 100% of

the estimated value of such peal estate as at the date of renewal of the

Loan or, in the case of real estate under development or redevelopment,

having a principal amount not more than l00% of the estimated value of

such real estate upon completion of the development or redevelopment.

For these purposes, the Company bases the estimate of the property's
value on evidence provided to the Company by the Borrower, including

one or more of the initial appraised or estimated value of the properly,
current property tai assessment information, current third party

information about the local market, financial information relating to the

property and other Third party estimates;

{~ before funding any Mort~agc Loan, the Company will obtain a written valuation
with respect to all real property charged by the Mortgage;

(g) the term of a Mortgage Loan will generally not exceed 24 months and the total of
any renewals or extensions of the term will gene[ally not exceed an additional 24
months:

(h) the Company will only make investments in Canada and other jurisdictions in
which the Company is lawfully authorized to make investments; and

7
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(i) the Company's director may waive the provisions of paragraphs (e~, (~ or (g)
above in relation to any Mortgage Loan, but will not otherwise deviate from the
investment guidelines set out above.

Investment Guidelines —Other Loans and Investments

The Company may also make other loans and investments from time to time, to a maximum of

50% of the Company's total capital. These other loans and investments which include the -_

following:

(a) equity loans taprovide funds to developers to supplement the amount of equity
which hes been provided by them and that in addition to first and- second
mortgage financing. is necessary to complete the construction and development of
new or existing residential, commercial and or industrial projects;

(b) interim loans to finance the construction, development, redevelopment or
renovation of new or existing residential, commercial, office or industrial
developments; and

(c) advance loans to finance the development of land that is suitable for development
(this includes the clearing of land. road construction. installation of sewer, water
and utilities and other improvements to the land). As such, the Company's
investment may be made to fund bonds, plans, permits or progress advances for
servicing.

The Company may also invest in term deposits, treasury bills, government bonds or corporate
debentures.

The Company bas made, and may continue to make mortgage loans and investments to
related parties. See Item 2.8 "Related Party Transactions".

In any case, the Company will not make any such loan or investment if it would result in the

Company ceasing to be a M IC under the Tax Act.

23 Development of Business

The Company commenced business in 1998 and established its year-end as September 30. The

Company has qualified as a MIC under the Taa: Act since inception.

Shareholders have received the following annual cash return on an investment in Preferred Shares

over the past 10 years:

Year Annual Dividend Rate Net Income / (Loss)

2014 7.0% $(97,662)

2013 ~ 6.5% $2,094,736

2012 6.25% $1,513,498

2011 7.25% $1,413,758

8
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?010 8.0% $2.171,276

2009 8.0% $1.591,1 I 1

2048 8.0% $1,103,3 77

2007 - 8.0% $b80,998

2006 8.4% $480,b05

2005 8.0% $382,452

The rate of return may fluctuate due to market demand for real estate financing, prevailing market
interest rates at the time of financing and the amount of the cash reserves that earn a nominal rate
of interest. Past history is no guarantee of future performance.

The source of funds used to pay dividends may come from the combination of interest income,
..new capital raised, debt financing or repayment of existing loans.

ACIC may provide financing on an interest accrual basis. This means the company-advances
€unds and collects the accrued interest when the loan is paid out. Since the interest is earned but
not collected dividend payments may be funded from these other sources as described above.

The following table illustrates the company's Gross Revenues, Operating Expenses, Assets and
Liabilities over the past 10 years.

Fiscal Year Gross Revenue O~erating
E~ enses

Assets Liabilities

2014 $3,525.734 $ I ,? 15,145 $37,196,826 $4,340,451

20 ] 3 $3,215,326 $1,2Q0,590 $34,299,488 $2,306,863

2012 $3,013,117 $955,498 $28,822,974 $1,030,500

2011 $3,440,615 $957,333 $30,945,968 $5,500

2010 $3,006,330 $835,054 $33,851,492 $5,500

2009 $2,204,708 $613,597 $24,222,493 $5,500

2008 $1,642;?43 $538,865 $19,002,493 $5,500

2007 $1,030,185 $349,187 $11,941,357 $5,500

2006 $851,083 $370,478 $9,010,394 $1,558,648

2005 $688,535 $306,083 $6,509,396 $1,011,340

►7



~~

During the yeah of 2004 and 20Q5 the Company established a marketing program to raise capital.
The results of this program are indicated in the growth of the company's assets from 2005 to
2010. [n July 2010 the BCSC issued a Cease Trade Order ('`CTO") and the company was not
allowed to raise capital for a period of 28 months. Please refer to Item 3.3.

Due to the Company's inability to raise additional capital during this time, the company's -
ces~rves have declined and the company had to borrow funds to meet its financing obligations. In
2013 the company once again started to raise additional capital.

In 2014 the company decided to recognized impairment losses on its mortgages and loans in the
amount of $3,188,251. This decision was made after consulting with the borrower and our
auditors as we purse recovery. Please refer to Item 2.7 (d). This impairment loss was deducted

-̀`from our 2014 revenue creating a net Toss for year in the amount of $97,662.

2.4 Long Term Objectives

_The primary objective of the Company is to provide shareholders with dividend payments. The
Company will- continue to raise capital by offering Units to investors in order to build its
corporate assets to $50,000,000.

2.5 Short Term Objectives and How We Intend to Achieve Them

What we must do and
how we will do it

Target completion date or,
number of months to com lete

Cost
to com lete

Issue 10,000 Units 12 Months $50~000~ '
Place $10,000,000 of new loans 12 Months $0`'

Notes:

~ ~~ The amount shown represents the estimated costs of the maximum offering, including legal,
accounting and audit cosu.

~'~ The costs of documenting loans are paid by the Borrowers.

2.b Insufficient Proceeds

Not applicable

Z.7 Material Agreements

a) 1l~lortgage Portfolio Schedule us a! Ju»e 1, 2015

Property Priority Interest Payment Property
T e Location Rankin Rate Terms~'~ Due Date~2j Balance Value~~f LTV~'~
Residential Sunshine I st 12% 10 On demand $ 2,700,000 ' $ 3.364,000 80.0`/0

Coast,, BC
Hotel/Motel Su~nhine ist 6°'0 10 On 51.159,155 51,540,000 75.3%

Coast, BC Demand
Residential Lower 2nd 12% 10 On 5973,()00 $3 SSO,000 67.9%

Mainland, BC Demand

10



Property Priority Interest Payment Property
T Location Rankin Itatc Terms~'~ Due Qate~Z~ Balance Value~3~ LTV~3~
Residential Vancouver and 12% 10 30-Nov-16 5600,000 $2,190,000 82?%

Residential Lower and 13% 10 31-Mar-17 $8,813,863 $47,000,000 803%
Mainland, BC

Residential Estevan, Sask lst 12% 10 30-Sept-16 5360.000 $480,000 75%

HoteVMotel Northern lst 12% 10 10-Aug-l6 $290,000 $575,OOD 54.1%
AB :. -

Residential Lower 2nd 12% 10 On demand 55,690,892 $ 18.90~.00U 75.8%
Mainland, BC

Commercia) Lower 2nd 13% 10 1-tune-6 $708.000 $2,700,000 74.0%
Mainland, BC

Residential Lower and 12% 10 30-Apr-16 - 5946.000 $3,730.000 89.7%
Mainland, BC

Residential Lower 2nd 12% 10 30-Mar-16 x2,140,037 $9,850,000 87.4%
Mainland. BC

Total Balance $ 2480,947

Notes:

_ _ "' IO refers to interest only.

~''~ The Company seeks to maximize the amount of funds invested in Mortgage Loans at all
times. As a result, the Company may clect to extend the terms of Mortgage Loans as they
come due, rather than requiring repayment. Factors which are considered by the Company
when determining whether Mortgage Loans should be extended include loan-tavalue ratio,
the Borrower's intended use of the property and proposed timeline, loan payment history, the
length of the Borrower's working relationship with the Company and other factors.

''' Property Value and LTV (loan to value ratio). The Company obtains an appraisal or other
third party evidence of value (such as an assessment issued by the British Columbia
Assessment Authority) of each property prior to or as of the date of the initial advance of
each Mortgage Loan. As well, where the Company takes collateral security for the Mortgage
Loan in the form of mortgage security on other property, the Company obtains an appraisal or
other third party evidence of value in respect of such other property. The Property Value
shown above is the aggregate value of the property taken as primary and collateral security as
at the date of initial advance of the Mortgage Loan or, in the case of real estate under
development or redevelopment, the value of such real estate upon completion of its
development or redevelopment, as estimated at the time of the initial advance of the
Mortgage Loan. The LTV shown above is the percentage obtained by dividing: (a) the
outstanding amount of the Monga~e Loan as at June 1, 2015 plus the outstanding amount of
any financing which has priority over the Mortgage Loan; by (b) such the aggregate value of
the property taken as primary and collateral security.

"' This Mortgage Loan was to assist the Borrower in developing ocean view and waterfront
residential dots in Pender Harhour, BC. The project was designed in four phases. The loan -
was initially funded on July 31, 2000 with subsequent advances on an ongoing basis to a
maximum of $5,600,000. The loan .vas subsequently reduced to $2,700,000 through the
payment of sales proceeds by the Borrower to the Company, and as at June I, 2015 the
balance is $2,700,000. The loan is secured by three waterfront lots on approximately 2.5
acres with a total of 1,300 feet of waterfront and three upland residential lots, with an
aggregate assessed value of $3,364,Q04. See Item 2.8 ̂ Related Party Transactions" and Item
2.7(d) "Provision fw non-performing loans".
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~S~ See Item 2.8 "Related Party Transactions''.

The tables below provide additional information about the Mortgage Loans by type, province
and priority:

Amount Count Perccata e Av .Rate Av .LTV
T e
Residential $ 21.?77,79? 7 873% 12.4'0 78.-8°lQ-
Commercial $ 1,654,400 2 6.8% 7.6% 9a9°!o

HoteVMotel $ 1,449, l S S 2 5.9% 7.2% 68:3%-
Tota1 ~ 24,380,947 11 100.0%

Province - _'
British
Columbia

$ 24.380.947 9 97.7% 11.7% 79.$%

Alberta $ 290,400 1 I.2% 12.0% 54.1
Sask $360,000 1 I.1 % ] 2.0% 80.0%
Total $ 24,380,947 11 100.0%

Rank
1 ° $ 4,509, l 55 4 18.5°/n 10.4% 73.
2 $19,871792 7 81.5% 12.0% 80.0%

Total S 24,380,947 11 100.0%

b) Loan and 01her Inveslme►t! Schedule as a1 Juite 1, 20I S

The Company may also make other loans and investments from time to time, including equity
loans, interim loans, advance loans, and non-mortgage loans to Borrowers, to a maximum of
50% of the Company's capital. For a description of these types of loans see Item 2Z -Our
Business. Such loans and other investments may not be secured by Mortgages, due to the
nature of the loan, the fact that they ma}' be advanced prior to the Borrower completing the
acquisition of the respective property, or that they are intended as temporary loans. !n all
cases, such unsecured loans are made to regular Borrowers of the Company who at the time
of advance have a history ofnon-defaulting loans with the Company.

Type of Priority Interest Payment
Loan lflcation Rankin Rate Terms~~~ Due Date Balance
P-Note Lower Unsecured 12% 10 On demand $4,013,b04

Mainland, BC
P-Note Gulf Islands. Unsecured 12% 10 On demand $1,655,500

BC
P-Note Lower Unsecured 12% 10 On demand $358.748

Mainland, BC
P-Alote Lower Unsecured 10% 10 On demand 51.500,000

Mainland. BC
P-Note Lower Unsecured 13% 10 On demand 53,189,414

Mainland. BC
P-Note Lower Unsecured 10% 10 On demand $700,000

Mainland, BC
P-Note Lower Unsecured 12% 10 On demand $150.000'

Mainland, BC
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Type of Priority Interest Payment
loan Location Rsnkin Rate Terms~'~ Due Date Balance
P-Note Lower Unsecured 12% 10 On demand $100,000

Mainland, BC
P-Note Lower Unsecured 13°/a 10 On demand $100,00

Mainland BC
P-Note Lower Unsecured 13% l0 On demand $10,000

-- Mainland. BC
P-Note Lower Unsecured 13% [O On demand 570;000

Mainland, BC
P-Note Lower Unsecured 12% IO On demand fi64;723

Mainland, BC
P-Nate Lower Unsecured 13% IO On demand 554,800

Mainland, BC
P-Note Lower Unsecured l3% PSI On Demand 537,856

Mainland, BC
P-Note Vancouver Unsecured I?% IU ~n Demand `Sl{30;000

Island, BC
Total Bslsnce 11,869~~I1
Notes:
t~~ 10 refers to interest only; P&I refers to principal and interest.

S2' The loan noted is in default. The Company has commenced action to recover the amount due

under the loan.

As of June 1.2015 six of our Demand Loans where interest is paid quarterly are in arrears.
The Company considers a loan to be in arrears if more than 3 payments have not been
received. The total principle amount of our affected loans is $658,000.

The tables below provide additional information about the loans and other investments by
ryQe, province and priority:

Amount Count Percents e Av .Rate

T
P-Note $ 11,8b9,411 14 100.0% 11.5%

Total 5 l 1,869 411

Province
British Columbia $ 11,864,41 l 14 100.0% 1 I.5%

Tots! S 11 869 411

Rank
E ui $ 11,869,411 14 100.0% 11.5%
Total S 11,869,411

c) Cash Reserves

As at June 1, 2015, the Company held $58,000 of liquid cash reserves at a Canadian chartered
bank.
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d) Prov~s~on for Non perJormi~rg Loans

The company's policy is to make an allowance for impaired loans. As of September 30, 2014
there are two loans that management considered impaired and wrote off $550,000 in principal and
$2,220,114 in accrued interest (see Item 2.8 (d)). Management is currently negotiating with the
borrowers to either re-structure the debt or sel I the property. Managemcnt also made a provision
of $418,137 which represents the adjustment to the fair value of mortgages and promissory notes
receivable determined by discounting future cash flows at the company°s prevailing rate of return
on new mortgages and promissory notes. The total amount of principle and accrued interest
charged against net income as a provision for impairment is $3, ] 88,251.

e) Land and Bulldl~rg Acgrdsition

During the 2014 fiscal year the company entered into a contract to purchase land and buildings
-̀  which included anon-refundable deposit of $100,000. Subsequent to our tis~al year-end this

contract was assigned to ACIC Financial Development Inc. as payment towards the deferred
management fees of $113,313.

2.8 Related Party Transactions

a) Financial Manageme►rl Agreement

Pursuant to a Financial Management Agreement made as of September 18, 2003 behveen the
Company and ACIC Financial Development Inc. (the '`Financial Manager"), the Financial
Manager is responsible for syndicating, coordinating and implementing the of'f'ering contemplated
herein, and for all aspects of the management of the Company and its assets, including making all
material business decisions, and for investor communication and investor reporting. These
services include:

• providing overall management, financial, and business planning;
• reviewing potential investments in Mortba6e Loans and advising the Company on the terms

and conditions to attach to Mortgage Loans;
establishing appropriate legal and accountinb systems;

• liaising with Borrowers;
• conducting regular visits to the properties securing the Mortgage Loans;
• establishing and maintaining a register for holders. of Preferred Shares and of the Warrants;

and
• processing all documentation relating to the issuance of Units.

In consideration of these services, the financial Manager receives an annual fee
(the "Management Fee") equal to 2% of the Company's assets and l5% of the Company's gross
annual revenues, with such fee to be payable monthly.

Don Bergman is a shareholder and the sole director of the Company. Mr. Bergman is also the
sole shareholder and director of the Financial Manager. The Company and the Fnancial
Manager are atTiliates and negotiations between them have not been, and will not be,
conducted at arm's length. Reter to Item 8 Risk Factors "Conflicts of Interest".
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b) Loan from Financial Manager

In order to assist the Company to fulfill its obligation to make advances under an existing
construction loan during the period of the cease trade order referred to under Item 3.3 —Penalties,
Sanctions and Bankruptcy, in 2012, the Company borrowed the total sum of $640,000 from the
Financial Manager. As of January 2l, 2Q14, the amount outstanding under the loan was
$530,000. Interest accrues on the outstanding balance of the loan at the cats of 8% per annum and
is paid quarterly. The loan was reduced by $?00,000 in July 3014, reduced again by $200,000 in
August 2014 and paid out in full in September 2014 with a final payment of $130,000 plus

"- interest of $23,658.66. A portion of the funds used to repay the loan"came from funds raised
= through the issue of the Series ADebentures. -

c) Loans to Parties 1n whiclr 1J~e Financial Manager lras a Joint Venture Irrlerest

The Financial Manager is a participant in a real estate joint venWre financed by the company.
The Financial Manager is entitled to a 25% share in any profits which may arise from the sale of
the joint venture property, and is responsible for a similar percentage of-the costs associated with
such sale. The Financial Manager does not have any interest in the annual rental income from the
properties, all of which is paid to the other joint venturer, and is not obligated for any portion of
the operating expenses of the properties.

The Financial Manager received its interact in the joint venture in consideration of
providing financial advisory services and due to its ability to arrange mortgage iinanciag
for the joint venture. Such interests were in addition to the Management Fees payable to
the Financial Manager by the Company under the Financial Management Agreement. Don
Bergman arranged for financing to be provided to the joint venture by the Company,
rather than through third parties. Details of the joint venture are as follows: On August 1,

2000, a joint venture in which the Financial Manager has a 25% profits interest acquired

a property in High Level, AB. The purchase and upgrade of this 22 unit motel was
financed in part by a second mortgage in favour of the Company in the amount of
$290,000. Interest .vas paid to the Company at a rate of 12% annually. The first
mortgage of the property was amortized over 10 years and was paid out on August 1,
2010 leaving the Company's mortgage in first priority position. As of June 1, 2015, a
total of $476,9U1.82 in interest has been paid to the Company in respect of the mortgage,
which currently matures on August l 0, 2016. Based on its current estimated value, if the
property were sold today the joint venture would receive a gain of approximately.
$285,000 of which the Financial Manager's share would be approximately $71,000. This
loan is identified by Note (5) in the Mortgage Loan portfolio table under Item 2.7(a) —
Mortgage Loan Portfolio as at June 1, 2015,

d) Loans to allon-Related Pnrt~+ in which the Financial Manager has a Profrls Interest

Daniel Point, Pender Harbour, BC

In July, 2000, the Company advanced a Mortgage Loan in respect of the development of ocean
view and waterfront residential lots in Pendcr Harbour, QC (For additional information about this
loan, see Note (4) to the Mortgage Loan Schedule as at June 1, 2b 15 under item 2.7(A) and (d).

The borrower offered to the Financial Manager (a company controlled by Don Bergman as
described herein), a SO%share of any net profits generated from the sale of any phase tour
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lots remaining after the repayment of all casts incurred in the development, including the
repayment to the Company of all outstaeding principle of the Mortgage Loan, together with
all outsffinding interest The loan as at the date of this ORering Memorandum remains at
52,700,000. The loan is secured by three waterfront lots oo approximately 2.5 acres with a
total of 1,300 feet olwaterfroot and three upland residential lots, with an aggregate assessed
value of $3,364,000. Management considers this loan to be impaired and has written off the
aceruetl interest of 51,766,917. In order to avoid the high cast of foreclosure the borrower is
co-operstittg with management to restructure the debt or sell the properties. The Financial
Manager has waived the 50% profit sharing participation so a#~ -the proceeds frnm the sale
of the lots will go directly to the company. The Financial Manager, to date, has received uo
compensafion from this arrangement

e)Land and Building Acquisitio~r -

During the 2014 fiscal year the company_eniered into a contract to purchase land and buildings
which included anon-refundable deposit of $100,000. Subsequent to our fiscal year-end this
contract was assigned to ACIC Financial. Development Inc. as payment towards the deferred
management fees of $113,3 l3.

Item 3 Interests otDirector~ Management, Promoters and Principal Holders

3.l Compensation and Securities Held

Compensation paid by the
Company in the most

Position held (e.g. recently financial year (or Number, type Number, type
director, officer, if the Company has not and percentage and percentage
promoter and/or completed a Cnancial of securities of of securities of

Name and principal holder) year, since inception) and the Company the Company
municipality of and the date of the compensation Geld after held after
principal obtaining that anticipated to be paid in completion of completion of
residence sitioa the current financial ear min. offerin max. otferin

Don Bergman, President, Director None l Common, 25% 1 Common, 25%
Salmon Arm
Wayne Blair, Secretary None None None
Kelowna
Andrew Bennett, Shareholder None 1 Common, 25% 1 Common, 25%
Delta
Meredith Shareholder _ None I Common, 25% l Common, 25%
Chemerika,
Lions Ba
Ed Robinson, Shareholder None 1 Common, 25% 1 Common, 25%
Sicamous

Don Bergman is the sole director of the Company. Each of the other shareholders of the
company are passive and do not participate in the management of the Company.

The Financial Manager provides services to the Company pursuant to the terms of the Financial
Management Agreement (See Item 2.8Related Party Transactions"). In consideration of such
services, the Company has agreed to pay to the Financial Manager the annual Management Fee in
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an amount equal to 2% of the Company's assets and 15% of the Company's gross annual

revenues. However, in order that income after payment of the Management Fee has been

sufficient to pay dividends to preferred shareholders in an amount equal to 8% per annum from

2002 to 2010, 7% per annum from March 31, 2011 to March 31, 20i2, 6% per annum from

March 31, 2012 to March 31, 2413, and 7% per annum from March 31, 2013 to present, the

Financial Manager has waived a portion of the Management Fee in each year.

The following tab{e shows, for each of 2008 to 2014, inclusive, the net income from operations

prior to payment of the Management Fee, the annual Management Fee calculated in accordance

with the Financial Management Agreement, the Managemerri Fee actually paid, net income after

payment of the Management Fees and the amount of the Management Fee waived by the

Financial Manager in such year. The net income from operations has been distributed to the

shareholders by way of dividends in each year.

Year

Net Income From
Operations Before

Payment of
Mana ement Fee

Management
Fee

Entitlement
Management
Fee Faid

Net Income
from

O erations
Management
Fee Waived

2008 $1,628,317 $541,000 $525,000 $1.103,377 $16,000

2009 $2,179,356 $703,000 $588,245 $1,59 I ,1 I 1 $1 ] 5,000

2010 $2,981, 114 $971,000 $809,83 8 $2,171,276 $162,000

2011 $3,417,620 $1,115,000 $934,338 $2,483,282 $181,000

2012 $2,984,000 $997,000 $927,279 $2,057,619 $69,721

2013 $3,Q71,099 $1,082,000 $1,056.363 $2,014,736 $25,637

2014 $3,183,902 $1,240,617 $873.313 $2,310,589 $367,304

3.2 Management Experience t̀°̀

Municipality of

Name Residence Princi al occu ation for ast Cve ears

Donald F. Bergman Salmon Arm, BC 1998 to present: Founder, President and
Director of the Com an

33 Penalties, Sanctions and Bankruptcy

(a) On July 13, 2010, the British Columbia Securities Commission

(the "Commission") issued a cease trade ..order (the "Order") against the

Company in respect. of all securities of the Company, including the Preferred

Shares. The Order was issued due to the Commission's finding that previous

ofil'ering memoranda of the Company had not been completed in accordance with

the provisions of the Securities Act (British Columbia).

In accordance with a settlement made between the Company and the

Commission, the Company prepared and delivered anon-offering Offering

Memorandum to all of its shareholders, setting out required disclosure similar to

that included in this Offering Memorandum. The Company also offered to all of

its shareholders the right to redeem and receive payment in respect of their

Preferred Shares. The shareholders had until November S, 2012 to elect to

redeem their Preferred Shares. The Commission partially revoked the Order to
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allow this offer of redemption to be made to the holders of the outstanding
Preferred Shares of the Company.

A total of 53 shareholders elected to redeem for a total of 1,402 preferred shares
with a total value of $1,402,000. The redemption amount vas repaid in full by
February 2013.

On August 12, 2010, the Commission issued a cease trade order against AC1C
Marketing Limited Partnership ("ACIC_LP"). Don Bergman is the president of
the general partner of ACIC LP. The~Order was issued due to the Commission's
finding that ACIC LP's offering memorandum had not been completed in
accordance with the provisions of the-Securities Act (British Columbia). The
cease trade order remains in effect as at the date of this Offering Memorandum.

AC1C LP was wflund down in 2013. with all unitholders receiving a return of
their capital and an approximate 41 7%o return on investment over the 5 year
investment period.

(b} There are no declarations of bankruptcy, voluntary assignment in bankruptcy, -
proposal under. any bankruptcy or insolvency legislation, proceedings,
arrangement or compromise with creditors or appointment of a receiver, receiver
manager or trustee to hold assets, that has been in effect during the last 10 years
with regard to any

(i) director, executive officer, promoter or control person of the Company,
or

(ii) issuer of which a person referred to in (i) above was a director, executive
officer or control person of that time.

3.4 Loans

The Company may choose to borrow funds in order to advance loans and loan commitment
obligations, which funds will be borrowed on standard commercial terms. As of June 1, 2Q15, the
Company has outstanding. debt _in the amount of $2,080,000. See Item 2.8(c) for information
regarding a loan from the Financial Manager ►vhich the Company borrowed in order to fulfill
funding commitrnents.

Debenture Series A

On September I5, ?014 _the.-company issued 7 Series A Debentures 1br a total amount of
$1,550,000. The debenture has an 8% annual yield-maturing on May 31, 201 S. The maturity
date has subsequently been modified and now matures on May 31, 2016.

Debenture Series B

On January 21, 2015 the company issued 4 Serbes B Debentures in the amount of $1,350,000.
The debenture has a 7% yield and matures on November 30, 2Q15, The $3 Million offering
wilt close on April 30, 2015 so there is the potential for another $1,650,000 of debentures that
could be issued subsequent to the date of this Offering Memorandum.
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Item 4 Capital Structure

4.1 Share Capital

Number Number
- outstanding outstanding

Number = _ - assumieg assuming
Description authorized to Number outstanding completing of completing of
of securi be issued as at June 1, _2015 min. offerin max. offerin

Common 1,000,000,000 - 4 4 4

Preferred 1,000,000,400 36,639 36,639 86,639

Warrants 1,000,000,000 17,395 17,395 67,395

4Z Long Term Debt

Description of long berm debt
includin whether secured

Interest
rate

Repayment
terms

Amount outstanding
at June 1 2015

No Lon Term Debt $0

43 Prior Sales

The Company issued the following securities within the last 15 months:

. Date of Issuance
Type of
securi issued

Number of
securities issued

Pricc per
securi

Total funds
received

Feb 12, 2014 to Units (Preferred b23 $1,000 $623,000

June 1, 2015 Shares and
Warrants)

Feb 12, 2014 to Preferred Shares 3,324 $1,000 $3,324,400

June 1, 2015 (from the
Exercise of
Warrants)

Item 5 Securities O!Pered

5.1 Terms of Securities

The Oiferine: The Company hereby offers for;sale up to SO,000 Units at a price of $1,000 per

Unit Each Unit consisu of one Preferred Share and one Warrant.

The Preferred Shares: The Preferred Shares are non-voting. Therefore, even though Preferred

Shareholders will be entitled to notice of and to attend at meetings of the Company's
shareholders, Preferred Shareholders will not be entitled to vote at any such meetings unless it is
specifically provided for otherwise.

Each Preferred Share entitles its registered holder to participate on a pro rata basis with the other
Preferred Shareholders, to the exclusion of the common shareholders, in the distribution of 100%
of the net income of the Company that remains after the payment of expenses of the Company
and the Management Fee. Such distributions to the Preferred Shareholders will be made by way
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of dividend declared on the issued and outstanding Preferred Shares, subject to the Busiiess
Carporalions Act (British Columbia). Such dividends, if any, will be declared and paid on a
quarterly basis within 30 days of the end of each quarter of the Company's fiscal year. Upon the
winding up or dissolution of the Company. the Company's assets will be distributed to the
Preferred Shareholders in priority to the common shareholders as follows:

(a) lint to the Preferred Shareholders, on a pro ra~u basis, until each Preferred
Shareholder has received the lesser of: (i) $],000 for each Preferred Share for
which the Preferred Sharei~older is the registemd holder and all dividends that
have been declared but for which the Preferred Shareholder has yet to be paid;
and._ (ii) the book value of the Preferred Shares for which the Preferred
Shareholder is the registered holder as determined in the audited financial
statements of the Companyfor the most recently completed fiscal year, and

(b) the balance to the common shareholders on a pro rata basis among the common
shareholders to the exclusion of the Preferred Shareholders.

The Warrants:.The Warrants are non-transferable. Each Warrant entitles the registered holder
thereof to purchase up to 10 additional Preferred Shares of the Company at a price which is the
lesser of: (i) $1,000 per Preferred Share, and (ii) the book value per Preferred Share as determined
by the Company's auditors as at the fiscal year end of the Company immediately preceding the
date the Warrant is exercised. Each Warrant will be exercisable at any time for a period of l0
years from the date of issuance of such Warrant. After 10 years from the date of issuance, the
Warrant will expire and be of no further force or effect. The Warrants provide that they will be
cancelled upon a holder of the Warrants selling or otherwise disposing of all of his, her or its
Preferred Shares.

Redemution of Preferced Shares: The Company has adopted a policy regarding the redemption
of Preferred Shares. A copy of such policy is available from the Company upon request.

Pursuant to such policy, a Preferred Share will be redeemable by the Company in certain
circumstanees. Although the Company will use its best commercial efforts to ensure that all
requests for redemption are fulfilled, depending on such circumstances the Company
cannot guarantee that any or all of the Preterred Shares in respect of w6ic6 requests for
redemption are received will be redeemed in any given Tiscal year. See Item 8 "Risk Factors
Limited Redemption Rights".

Pursuant to the Company's policy regarding the redemption of Preferred Shares, a holder of
Preferred Shares (a "Requesting Shareholder") may request the Company to redeem the whole
or any part of his Preferred Shares by giving notice ("Notice'') to the Company. The Notice must
be in writing end delivered to the Company not later than the last business day of a calendar
quarter (quarter ends being March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31} in each year.
The Notice must specify the number of the Preferred Shares which the Requesting Shareholder
wishes to have the Company redeem (the "Requested Shares") and the address to which the
Requesting Shareholder wishes payment to be delivered by the Company. Finally, the Notice
must specify that the Requesting Shareholder has received, read and understood the Company's
redemption policy.

Thc Company will not redeem any Preferred Shares if at the time of such redemption the
Company is insolvent or if such redemption will render the Company insolvent, if such
redemption will reduce the Company's cash reserves below a Ievel which the Company's
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directors (the "Directors") determine, in their sole discretion, to be prudent, or if such
redemption will cause the Company to breach the requirement that at least 50% of the cost
amount of its property must consist of bank deposits or mortgage loans made in respect of
residential properties.

Further, in any calendar quarter, the Company will not redeem any more than that number of
Preferred Shares which is equal to 2~/,% of the outstanding Preferred Shares at the end of the
immediately preceding calendar quarter. [f the Company is not able to generate cash reserves
sufficient for the redemption of 2-_`/_%o of the outstanding Preferred Shares at the end of the
immediately preceding calendar quarter, it will redeem only that number of Preferred Shares
which the Directors determine in t#~eir sole discretion to be prudent. The Company will use its
best commercial efforts to generate cash reserves. (through the issuance of further Preferred
Shares, the receipt of repayment of mortgage loans made by the Company or otherwise) sufficient
for the redemption of al! of the Requested Shares in a calendar quaver.

if the aggregate number of Requested Shares is equal to or less than 2'/,% of the outstanding
Preferred Shares at the end of a calendar quarter, then subject to the Company being able to
generate sufTieient cash reserves to do so it will redeem Requested Shares in respect of which
Notices have been received in a .calendar quarter on a day .selected by the Company in:-the _
following calendar quarter (theRedemption Date-').

The price paid for each Preferred Share which is redeemed in each calendar quarter
{the "Redemption Amougt") will be the fair market value thereof calculated by the Company's
auditor in conjunction with the annual audit of the Company conducted as at the immediately
preceding September 30th. For any Preferred Share which is being redeemed within two years
after the Preferred Share was initially issued by the Company, tl~e Company will pay tQ the
Requesting Shareholder the Redemption Amount less 2%. For any Preferred Share which is
being redeemed after hvo years after the Preferred Share .vas initially issued by the Company, the
Company will pay to the Requesting Shareholder the Redemption Amount per Preferred Share.

The Company will pay the Redemption Amount by cheque mailed by first class mail to the
Requesting Shareholder on the Redemption Date at the address of the Requesting Shareholder set
out in his, her or its Notice.

If the aggregate number of Requested Shares is more than 2~1,% of the outstanding Preferred
Shares at the end of a calendar quarter or if the Company is not able to generate cash reserves
sufficient for the redemption of the a~regate number of Requested Shares, the redemption of
Preferred Shares will be made pro rula to the number of Preferred Shares in respect of which
requests for redemption have been made.

The adoption of its policy regarding the redemption of Preferred Shares does not tetter the
discretion of the Directors of the Company from time to time to amend or cancel such policy
in whole or in part or to adopt. an alternative policy with respect to tfie redemption of
Preferred Shares, or to retuse to .consent to a Requesting Shareholder's request to have
their Preferred Shares redeemed by the Company.

There are times when redemption requests may not be processed in a timely manner and
shareholders may have to wait longer than expected to receive their redemption request. The
source of funds used to process redemptions may be from ne~v capital raised and/or loans being
repaid. There is no guarantee that funds will be available to meet all redemption requests. If
liquidity is important the purchase of preferred shares may not be suitable for you. Please review
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Item 8 —Investment Risk (vii) ̀ Limited Redemption Rights'' The following table shows the
current history of redemptions honoured and deferred during the past 3 fiscal years.

Fiscal veer Amount
Re nested

Paid Out Outstandine
Balance

Redem tions Received Oct if l2- Se t 30/ 13 $ 3,020,000 $ (1,907,000) $ 1,113,000

Redem tions Received Oct U 13 — Se t 30/l 4 $ 2,047,000 $ (I ,086,000 $ 2,074,00(!

Redem tions Received Oct 1/1~4--J~ne 1/15 $ 2,461,000 $ 393,000} $ 4,142,OOfD

5.2 SubscMption Procedure

A person wishing to subscribe for Units must deliver the following documents to the Company:

_ ._ (a) a signed Subscription Agreement;

(b) iwo signed copies of a risk acknowledgement form (Form 45-106F4);

(c) a signed Eligible Investor Questionnaire, if applicable;

(d) a cheque or bank draft made payable to '`All Canadian Investment Corporation"
in payment of the full subscription price of the Units subscribed for, and

(e) any other completed document reasonably requested by the Company to
complete the subscription.

The Company will hold all subscription funds in trust until midnight on the second business day
after the day on which the Company received the signed Subscription Agreement.

Item 6 Income Tax Consequences & RRSP Eligibility

6,1 General

You should consult your own professional advisers t~ obtain advice on the income tax
consequences tbat apply to yon.

6.2 Material Canadian Income Tax Consequences

Management of the Company is of the opinion that, the following is a summary of the principal
Canadian federal income tax considerations generally applicable to persons who acquire Units
pursuant to this Offering Memorandum. This summary is applicable to a holder of Units who, at
all relevant times, For the purpose of the Tai Act: (i) is resident of Canada, (ii) deals at arm's
length and is not affiliated with the Company within the meaning of the Tax Acts and (iii) holds
the Shares (as defined below) as capital property. The summary does not take into account tax
laws of the province or territory of Canada or any jurisdiction outside of Canada.
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(a) Governine Leeislation And Policv

The Company is incorporated under the Business Corporations Ac1(British Columbia), is
subject to applicable legislation in British Columbia and is also subject to special rules
under the 7'ax Act.

(b) Tax Act

The Tax Act.im~oses certain requirements in order for a company to qualify as a MIC
thereunder. These requirements generally will be satisfied if it engages solely in the.
business of in~e-Ming its funds, if it neither manages nor develops real property, if at all
times it has at least twenty (20) shareholders, if no shareholder holds more than twenty-
five (25%) percent of the issued common shares or Preferred shares (collectively called
for the purposes of the section the "Shares") of the Company and if none of the property
consists of specified types of foreign property.

(c) Income Tax Considerations

The income tax consequences may not be the same for all investors .but may vary
depending on a number of factors, including whether the investor is an individual, a trust
or a corporation, the province of residence of the investor, and whether the investors'
Shares are characterized as capital property. The following discussion of the income tax

_ consequences is therefore of a general nature only, is not intended. to constitute a
complete analysis of all the income tax consequences and should not be interpreted as
legal or tax advice to any particular investors.

This summary is based upon the current provisions of the Tax Act. There. is no assurance
that future legislation changes will not affect the following commentary.

(d) Scheme of Provisions

The Tax Act contains a number of provisions that enable investors to "pool" their funds
through investing in special corporations which are treated in a manner that avoids the
two-tiered taxation normally applicable to shareholders of a company in respect of
distributions of that company's profits. This result is achieved by effectively treating
these special corporations as a conduit so that an investor is put in the same position from
an income tax perspective as if the corporation's investment had been made directly by
the Investor.

A MIC is one of these special types of corporations.

(e} Definition o! a 1VIIC _

A number of requirements must have been met throughout the year in order for a
corporation to qualify as a MiC under the Tai Act for that year. If the following --
requirements are met throughout a particular year, a corporation will qualify for MIC
status that year:

(i) Canadian Corporation
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The corporation must have been a Canadian corporation, which generally means
a corporation incorporated and resident in Canada.

(ii) Undertaking

The corporation's only undertaking was the '`iflvesting of funds of the
corporation". The corporation cannot have managed or developed any real ,r_.,._
ProPertY-

(iii) 50% Asset Test

At least 50% of the "cost amount", as defined in the Tax Act, to the corporation
nf. all of its property must have consisted of the corporation's money, debts
owing to the corporation that were secured whether by mortgage or in any other
manner on houses (as defined in Section 2 of the National Housing Act) or on
property included within a housing project (as defined in that section) and any
deposit standing to the corporation's credit in the records of a bank or other
certain specified financial institutions, any of whose deposits are insured by the

Canadian Deposit Insurance Corporation or a credit union..

(iv) 25% Asset Test

The "cost amount" to the corporation of all of its real property including
leasehold interest in such property, other than real property acquired by
foreclosure or otherwise after default made on a mortgage, hypothecation or

agreement for sale of real property, must not have exceeded 25% of the '`cost
amount" to the corporation of all of its property. The limit is designed to ensure
that the primary intention of the corporation's investment was directed towards
residential mortgages.

(v} Prohibited Foreign Investment

None of the property of the corporation consists of debts owing to the
_corporation that were secured on real property situated outside of Canada, debts

owing to the corporation by non-resident persons unless secured on real property
situated in Canada, shares of the capital stock of corporations not resident in
Canada, real property situated outside Canada, or any leasehold interest in real

- property situated outside Canada.

(vi) Shareholder Requirements

The number of shareholders of the corporation was not less than 20, and no one
shareholder held more than 25% of any class of the issued shares of the capital
stock of the corporation. For the purposes of this requirement, a registered
pension plan or a deferned profit sharing plan is counted as four shareholders. A
trust governed by a registered retirement savings plan is counted as une
shareholder.

For the purpose of the 25% test, a person will be considered to own not only
shares which that person actually owns, but also:
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(1) any shares owned by the taJ:payer, their spouse, children, grandchildren
and great grandchildren that are under the ale of 18;

(2) a proportionate number of shares held by a trust or partnership of which
a person noted in (1) is a beneficiary or member, and

_ (3) any shares held by a registered retirement savings plan of which a person
noted in (1) is an annuitant.

Failure to meet the 25%share ownership limit test described above would result

in the Company losing its status as a MIC, and therefore, not being an eligible
investment for a registered retirement savings plan. For this reason, the

Company may choose to reject requests for share subscriptions made by certain
persons.

(vii) "Common" and "Preferred" Shareholders

Any holders of preferred shares (as defined in the-Tax Act) of the corporation
must have the right after payment to them of their dividends, and payment of

dividends in a like amount per share to the holders of common shares of the

corporation, to participate pari passu with the holders of the common shares in

any further payment of dividends.

A common share is defined as a share the holder of which is not precluded on the

reduction or redemption of the capital stock from participating in the assets of the

corporation beyond the amount paid thereon plus a fixed premium and a defined

rate of dividend.

(viii) Debt to Equity Ratio

The "liabilities'' of a company (all obligations of a company to pay an amount

outstanding at that time) at any time in the year must not exceed three times the

excess of the "cost amount" to a company of all of its property over such
liabilities, if at the time in the year the "cost amounC" to a company of the

properties referred to above under subheading (iii) '`50% Asset Test" is less than

two-thirds of the "cost amount" to a company of its property. However, where
any time in the year the "cost amounf' to a company of the properties referred to

above under subheading (iii) "50% Asset Test" is equal to two-thirds or more of

the ̀'cost amount'' to a company of all of its property, the liabilities of a company
must not exceed five times the excess of the "cost amount to a company of all of
its property over such liabilities.

These restrictions may be summarized as follows: the borrowing by a company
is restricted to a maximum of three times its equity capital unless at least hva
thirds of the book value of its investments are mortgages secured on Canadian
residential property, the company's money, and specified deposits, in which case
the maximum borrowing is five times its equity capital.
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(~ Taxation of the Comaanv

This discussion, and the discussion that follows under subsequent headings, is based on
the assumption that the Company qualifies as a M{C under the Tax Act at ali relevant.
times.

A M1C, as a general rule, is subject to tax on the same basis as any Canadian private
corporation. However, special rules relating to a MIC enable it to reduce its federal
taxation income in the year if, during the year or within 90 days after the end of the year,
it distributed all of its capital gains arising in the year by ~vay of "capital gains dividends"
and all of its other income by way of taxable dividends. More specifically, the Company
is entitled to deduct from its federal taxable income the total of:

(i) all taxable dividends, other than capital gains dividends, paid by the
corporation during the year (to the extent not deductible in computing
income of the previous year) or within 90 days after the end of the year
to the extent that those dividends will not be deductible for the Company
in computing its income for the preceding year, and

(ii) one-half of all capital gains dividends paid by the corporation during the
period commencing 9l days after the commencement of the year and
ending 90 days after the end of the year.

If all of the Company's federal taxable income for the year is distributed in this manner,
no federal tax is payable by the Company for that year. The elimination of provincial
tax depends on relevant provincial legislation. For example, in British Columbia no
corporate income tax would be payable if the Company's federal taxable income was
zero because the Company's income taxes for British Columbia's income tax purposes
is calculated by reference to iu taxable income for federal tax purposes.

Because of the permiried deductions outlined above, the Company is not entitled to the
deduction in respect of taxable dividends the Company receives from other taxable
Canadian corporations.

The Company must elect in order to distribute its capital gains as capital gains
dividends. The election must be made in a prescribed manner and by a prescribed time.
The total capital gains dividends that may be paid by the Company for a year is limited
to the extent of two times the Company's "taxable capital gains" for the year less its
allowable capital losses for the year and any "net allowable capital losses'° of prior
years that are carried forward and deducted in the year. A special tax is imposed on the
Company if the capital gains dividends exceed this limit. However, there is a special
election procedure, whereby this tax can be avoided in certain circumstances if the
excess of the dividend is elected to be treated as a separate taxable dividend.

(g) Taxation of Shareholders

(i) Capital Gains Dividends

A capital gains dividend received by a Canadian resident shareholder is not
included as dividend income of the shareholder, but rather to be a capital gain of
the shareholder for the year from '`a disposition of capital property".
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Thus, with respect to capita! gains realized by the Company. the Company serves
effectively as a conduit only interposed between the investor and the underlying
investment. The result is only achieved, however, if the proper capital gains
dividends are paid by the Company within the required time, and the proper
elections are made by the Company in the proper manner and by the proper time.
if the capital gains dividends are nat paid in this manner, the capital gains
realized by the Company are taxable to the Company as they would be in the

case of any public company. 8ccause the Company will ha~+e- no "capital
dividend account°, the combined corporate and shareholder =tax {when the

-° amounts are paid out to the Investor as ta.~able dividends) could be significantly
_- greater than if the conduit mechanism was used.

(ii) Taxable Dividends (Other than Capital Gains Dividends)

Dividends other than capital gains dividends paid by the Company are not
included in the income of a shareholder as taxable dividends, but rather are

deemed to have been received by the shareholder as interest income payable on a
bond issued by the Company after 1471, The "gross-up/dividend tax credit"
mechanism provided in the Tax Act does not apply to taxable dividends paid by
the Company to Canadian resident individual shareholders. Canadian resident

corporate shareholders are not entitled to deduct the amount of a taxable dividend

received from a M1C in computing taxable income.

if the Company distributes all of its income. it is again effectively treated as a

conduit benveen the investor and the underlying investment, at least with respect
to rental and interest income earned.

As is the case with capital gains dividends, if the Company does not distribute all

of its income within the required time by ~vay of taa:able dividends, the income

remains taxable in the Company in the same manner as any other public

corporation. When amounts are subsequently distributed to the shareholders
through the payment of taxable dividends, the combined corporate and
shareholder tax may be significantly higher than if the conduit mechanism was

used.

(iii) Disposition of Shares

Assuming the Shares are capital property to the investor, the usual rules apply on
the disposition of those Shares as would apply on similar shares of any other
public corporation. Certain taxpayers,'such as securities dealers -and those who
have acquired the Shares in the course of a business of buying and selling share
or in a transaction that is nn "adventure in the nature of trade", would not be
considered to be holding the Shares as capital property.

Dispositions to third parties (i.e. other than a company) would yield capital gains
or capital losses according to the usual rules contained in the Tax Act. A capital
gain (or capital loss) will arise to the extent that the proceeds of disposition of the
Shares exceed (or are exceeded by) the adjusted cost base (as defined for income
tax purposes) of the shares and any disposition costs.
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Redemptions or other acquisitions of the Shares by the Comparry (for example,
on a winding up) may result in taxable capital gains or allowable capital losses or
deemed taxable dividends to the shareholder/investor. The treatment for income
tax purposes will depend on the paid-up capital of the Shares redeemed or
otherwise acquired by the Company. If a taxable dividend results, it will likely
be characterized as interest received in the hands of the shareholder. (It may not

- - be possible for the Company to elect to treat -such a deemed dividend as a capital
gains dividend). Any amount that represents the payment €~f a declared but
unpaid dividend that is distributed on the redemption or other. acquisition of the

-- share by the Company, and which is not a capital gams- dividend. will be
characterized as interest received by the shareholder.

-- One-half of any capital gain that is realized on the disposition. of the Shares will
be included in the shareholder's- income. Any amount that is deemed to be
interest or a capital gains dividend on the redemption or other acquisition of the
Shares by the Company is nit included in determining the proceeds of
disposition of the Shares for capital gains purposes.

(iv) . Interest Ezpense

Except for money borrowed for the purposes of paying a premium or making a
contribution to one of the deferred- income plan trusts described above to enable
such a trust to hold the Shares, a reasonable amount of interest paid or payable
.(pursuant to a legal obligation) by an investor on money borrowed to acquire
Shares should be deductible in computing income for purposes of the Tax Act.

(v) Non-resident Shareholders

Shareholders who are considered to be non-resident of Canada are subject to the
following rule in the Tax Act:

Any taxable dividends paid from the Company to anon-resident shareholder
would be subject to Canadian non-resident withholding tax at a maximum rate of
25% of the taxable dividend paid. This rate may be reduced if Canada has
ratified a bilateral income tax treaty with the country in which the shareholder is
resident.

63 RRSP Eligibility

The Company qualifies as a MIC under the Income-.Tax Act of Canada._ Therefore, except as
discussed in the following paragraphs, the PreferFed Shares are RRSP eligible.

The Preferred Shares are qualified investments for trusts governed by Registered Retirement
Savings Plans ("RRSPs"), Deferred Profit Sharing Plans, Registered Retirement Income Funds
("RRIFs") and Tax Free Savings Accounts at the particular time if the Company qualified as a
MIC under the Tax Act, and if, throughout the calendar year in which the particular time occurs,
the Company does not hold as part of its property any indebtedness. ~~rhether by way of mortgage
or otherwise of a person ~vho is an annuitant, a beneficiary or an employer, as the case may be,
under the governins plan trust, or of any other person ~vho does not deal at arm's length with that
person•
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On March 22, 2011, the Government of Canada introduced new anti-avoidance rules for RRSPs
and RRIFs. These rules are intended to prevent individuals from holding certain types of
investments in their RRSPs or RRIFs. Under the ne~v rules, individuals are prohibited from
holding in their RRSP or RRIF:

(a) investments in entities in which they or a non-arm's length person has a
significant interest (generally 10% or more), whether that interest is held wholly
or partially in their RRSP or RRIF; or --.

(b) inveshnents in entities with which they (or any entity. in which they have a
significant interest) do not dea{ at arm's length.

_ _- As a result, an investment in Preferred Shams will not be a qualified. investment for trusts
governed by RRSPs or RR[Fs for investors who, on their o~vn or together with anon-arm's length
person, has a significant interest {generally 10°/a or more}, whether that interest is held wholly or
partially in their RRSP or RRIF or investors who do not deal at arm's length with the Company.

Dividends received by such deferred income plans on the Preferred Shares while the Preferred
Shares are qualified investments for such plans ~vili be exempt from taa:ation in accordance with
the provisions of the Tax Act governing those plans. Such a deferred income plan trust is subject
to a special tax under Part XI of the Tax Act, if the "cost amount" of its investment in foreign
property (as defined in the Tax Act) at the end of a month exceeds a certain percentage of the
"cost amount" of all property then held by it. On the assumption that the Preferred Shares do not
derive their value from portfolio investmentsby the Company in foreign property, shares held by
such a deferred income plan trust wiU not be subject to tax under Part XI of the Tax Act.

Item 7 Compensation Psfd to Seller and Winders

The Company does not pay any commissions or finders fees. The Financial Manager has agreed
to pay, from the Management Fee, to persons who locate and introduce investors to the Company
cash finder's fees equal to 2% of the gross proceeds of this offering. Directors, officers and
employees of the Financial Manager will- not be paid finder's fees.

Item 8 Risk Factors

The purchase of Units involves a number of significant risk factors. Any or all o! these risks, or
other as yet unidentified risks, may have a material adverse e6ect on the Company's
business, the value of the Preferred Shares and/or the return to Preferred Shareholders.

(a) Investment Risk -

(i} Speculative Nature of Investment

This is a speculative offering. The purchase of Units involves a number of
signifcant risk factors and is suitable only for Subscribers who are aware of the
risks inherent in mortgage investments and the real estate industry and who have
the ability and willingness to accept the risk of the total loss of their invested
capital and who have no immediate need for liquidity.
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(ii) Return on Investment

There is no assurance that sufficient revenue will be generated by the Company
from which dividends can be declared by the Director of the Company and paid
to the Preferred Shareholders.

(iii) No Guaranteed Dividends

The dividends in which the Preferred Shareholders are entitled to participate arc
not cumulative and will not be paid unless such dividends have been declared by
the Director. T-he Director has the sole discretion as to whether or not any such
dividends are declared. Therefore, there is no guarantee that dividends payable to
Preferred Shareholders ~viN be declared.

(iv) No Review by Regulatory Authorities

This Offering Memorandum constitutes a private offering of the Units by the
Company only in those jurisdictions where and to those persons to whom, they
may be lawfully offered for sale under exemptions in applicable securities
legislation. This Offering Memorandum is not, and under no circumstances is to
be construed as a prospectus, advertisement. or public offering of these Units.
Subscribers to this Offering Memorandum will not have the benefit of a review
of the material by any regulatory authority.

(v) Restrictions on the Transferor Assignment of Units

The Units cannot be transferred or assigned, unless such transferor assignment is
approved by the Directors and is in compliance with applicable securities laws.

(vi) No Market for Units

There is no market through ~~hich the Units may be sold and the Company does
not expect thai any market will develop pursuant to this offering or in the future.
Accordingly, an investment in Units should only be considered by Subscribers
who do not require liquidity.

(vii) Limitcd Redemption Rights

The Company will use its best commercial effoRs to generate cash reserves
(through the issuance of further Preferred Shares, the receipt of repayment of
mortgage loans made by the Company,.. or otherwise) sufficient for the
redemption of all of the Preferred Shares in res}~t of which the Company
receives requests for redemption in a calendar quarter. However, the Company
will not redeem any Preferred Shares if at the time of such redemption: (i) the
Company is insolvent or if such redemption will render the Company insolvent;
(ii) such redemption wilt reduce the Company's cash reserves below a level
which the Directors determine, in their sole discretion, to be prudent; or (iii) such
redemption will cause the Company to breach the requirement that at least 50%
of the cost amount of its property must consist of bank deposits or mortgage
loans made in respect of residential properties.
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Further, in any calendar quarter of the Company it Zvi Il not redeem any more than
that number of Preferred Shares which is equal to 2'/,% of the outstanding
Preferred Shares at the end of the immediately preceding calendar quarter. [f the
Company is not able to generate cash reserves sufficient for the redemption of
2~/2% of the outstanding Preferred Shares at the end of the immediately
preceding calendar quaRer, it ~vil1 redeem that number of Preferred Shares which
the Directors determine ie~ their sole-discretion. in that case, the redemption of
Preferred Shares will be made pro rata- to the number of Preferred Shares in
respect of which requests for redemption have been made.

As at June 1, 2015 there were $4,142,000-outstanding redemption requests —see
page 22.

(b) Camaanv Risk

{i) No Insurance

The Loans wrFl not usually be insured by the Canada Mortgage and Housing
Corporation norany private mortgage insurer.

(ii) Changes-in-Investments

The information contained in this Offering Memorandum is current only as of the
date of this Offering Memorandum. Therefore, any non-material changes to the
Company's investments that may occur or have occurred subsequent to the date
of this Offering Memorandum are not described herein.

(iIi) Payment of Management Fee

If the income- from operations is insutTicient to pay the Management Fee to the
Manager, then any portion of the Management Fee not paid from the income
from operations may be paid from the proceeds of this Offering that have not yet
been invested~in a Loan. If this happens the amount of proceeds available for
investment into Loans will be reduced thus reducing the amount of any potential
income from operations.

(iv) Conflicts of Interest

Conflicts of interest may occur between the Company, Preferred Shareholders
and the Director and Officer of the Company. Conflicts of interest may arise
which may -not be resolved in a- manner most favourable to Preferred
Shareholders.

Donald Bergman is the sole directae and the president of the Company. As such,
he has complete and sole responsibility._and authority for aq aspects of the
operation of the Company, including the offering and issuance of Preferred
Shares, the administration of the Company's funds, the determination and
approval of Mortgage Loans and other investments, the monitoring of the
Mortgage Loans and other investments, and the use of the Company's funds for
investment, reinvestment, redemption of Preferred Shares or other uses.
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Mr. Bergman is also the sole shareholder, director and officer of the Financial
Manager. Pursuant to a Financial Management Agreement made as of
September 18, 2003 between the Company and the Financial Manager, the
Financial Manager is responsible for syndicating, coordinating and implementing
the offering contemplated herein, for all aspects of the management of the
Company and its assets, including making all material business decisions, and for
investor communteation -and.._ investor reporting. In consideration of these
services, the Financial Manager receives an annual fee of 2% of the Company's
assets and 1 S% of the Company s~~oss revenues, with such fee payable monthly.
Neither Mr. Bergman nor the Financial Ivlanager has any obligation to account to
the Company or the preferred shat-eholders for the amounts received in respect of
such fee. See item 2.8 "Related Party Transactions —Financial Management
Agreement".

The Company and Financial Manager are affiliates and negotiations between
them have not been, and will not be, conducted at arm's length. Therefore, the _
Company may be subject to various conFlicts of interest arising from its
relationship with the Financial Manager. For example, transactions behveen the
Company -and the Financial Manager may be entered into without the benefit of
arm's length bargaining. In addition, there may be situations where the interests
of the Company conflict with the interests of the officers and directors of the
Financial Manager. The risk exists that such conflicts will not be resolved in the
best interests of the Company. However, the Financial Manager will make any
decision involving the Company honestly and in good faith.

The Financial Manager and Mr. Bergman are not in any way limited or affected
in their ability to carry on business ventures for their own account and for the
account of others and may be engaged in the ownership, acquisition and
operation of businesses, which compete .vith the Company. In addition, the
Financial Manager and Mr. Bergman may establish in the future other investment
vehicles which have or may have investment objectives that are the same as or
similar to those of tfie Company and may act as adviser and/or manager to such
vehicles.

(v) Unsecured Loans

The assets of the Company include unsecured loans and other investments. These
loans may be subject to non-payment in the event that the Borrowers do not have
sufficient -funds for repayment or if other, secured, creditors of such Borrowers
elect to realize on their security.

(vi) Lack of Separate Counsel

The Subscribers, as a group, have not been represented by separate counsel and
counsel for the Company does not purport to have acted for the Subscribers or to
have conducted any investigation or review on their behalf.

(c) Industry Risk

(I) General Economic Risk
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Global market and economic conditions since the beginning of 2008 have been
challenging with recession in the North American economy. Global economies,
including those in Canada, are currently experiencing increased levels of
volatility due to a combination of many factors, including increased
unemployment, high levels of personal debt, limited access to credit markets,
higher fuel prices, less consumer spending, fears of a "double-dip" recession, and
the slow rate of recovery. Although the recession technically ended in 2009, the :--
Canadian economy has- not returned to operating at normal capacity and the
effects of the curcent mar~eE__dislocation may persist as federal and provincial
governments wind down fis~ak-stimulus programs. Concern about the stability of
the markets generally and tbe:strength of the economic recovery may lead lenders
to reduce ar cease to provide- funding to businesses and consumers, and force
financial institutions to continue to take the necessary steps to restructure their
business and capital structures. The Company cannot predict when the real estate
markets will recover. The: value of properties in respect of which Mortgage Loan
arse made may decline if current market conditions persist or worsen. . _

(ii) General Risks of Rcai Estate Investments

Investments in real estate are subject to many risks, including those posed by the
highly competitive nature of the real estate industry, changes in general or local
conditions, changes in property values, increases in interest rates, the lack of
available necessary financing, increases in real estate tax rates and vacancy rates,
competitive overbuilding, changes in governmental rules and fiscal policies, and
other events and factors that are beyond the control of the Company.

(iii) Higher Risk Mortgage Loans

The potential higher returns associated with the mortgage loans reflects the
greater risks associated with the mortgage loans as compared to long-term
conventional mortgage loans. Such greater risks include the delay or non-
completion of the construction of the Borrower's project the inability of the
Borrower to obtain necessary additional financing, and adverse changes in -
interest rates and the financial markets. Should any of these risks materialize,
they may adversely affect any return to be received by the Company in
connection with its mortgage loans and therefore may adversely affect any
returns to Preferred Shareholders.

(iv) Prior Mortgages

A Borrower may have obtained financing from other parties, such as
conventional third party lenders who generally loan a principal amount of up to
75% of the value of the particular property and who have been granted a
mortgage in priority (a "Prior Mortgage") to the mortgage granted to the
Company. In the event of default by a Borrower under arty Prior Mortgage, the
Company may be unable to recover part or all of its Loan.

(v) High Loan Ratios

If the Company is granted a first mortgage by the Borrower, then the ratio of the
loan amount to the value of real property encumbered by the mortgage will most
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likel~~ be ~3i~~er C1~ar~ an institu~ieiia) moi~t~a~e lender ~wou{d approve, In addi~iot~,
~.aatts made by t11e ~ompatty ~ci co~neetic~tt c~it~ a devetapnte~tt ~rv,~ect will be
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the ll~artga~e Brrtk~rs Apt cic~ nt~t r~~ut~te #fie ca~ifal raising and ir~~>estrt~e~tt m.a.rketin~
activities cif MICs ~•bict► are subject co securities Iegicltttion aid regulatian.
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Item 10 Resa/e Restrictions

10.1 General Statement

These securities will be subject to a number of resale restrictions, including a restriction on

trading. Until the restriction on trading expires, you will not be able to trade the securities unless

you comply with an exemption frar~ the prospectus and registration requirements under securities

legeslation.

lOZ RestriMed-Period "~-

Unless permitted under securities legislation, you cannot trade the securities before the earlier of

the date that is 4 months and a day after the date the Company becomes a reporting issuer in afly _=-.

province or territory of Canada.. ~ - -

Item 11 Purchaser's Rights

If you purchase these securities you -will have certain rights, some of which are described: below.

For information about your rights, you should consult a lawyer.

11.1 TwaDay Cancellation Right

You can cancel your agreement to purchase these securities. To do so, you must send a notice to

us by midnight on the 2"d business day after you sign the subscription agreement to buy the

securities.

11.2 Statutory Rights of Action in the Event of a Misrepresentation

If there is a misrepresentation in this Offering Memorandum, you have a statutory right to sue:

{a) All Canadian .Investment Corporation to cancel your agreement to buy these
securities, or

(b) For damages against the All Canadian Investment Corporation, every person who
was a director st the date of the offering memorandum and every other person -
who signed the offering memorandum.

This statutory right to sue is available to you whether or not you relied on the misrepresentation.
However, there are various defenses available to the persons or companies that you have. a-right
to sue. In particular, they have. a defense if you knew of the misrepresentation when you
purchased the securities.

if you intend to rely on the rights described in (a) or (b) above, you must do so within strict-time
limitations. You must commence; your action to cancel the subscription agreement within 180
days after the transaction. You mist commence your action for damages within the earlier of 180
days after learning of the misrepresentation or 3 years after the transaction.

113 Contractual Rights oP Action in the Event of a Misrepresentation

If there is a misrepresentation in this offering memorandum, you have a contractual right to sue
the Company:
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(a) to cancel your agreement to buy these securities, or

(b) for damages.

This contractual right to sue is available to you whether or not you relied on the
misrepresentation. However, in an action for damages, the amount you may recover :will not
exceed thg price that you paid for your securities and wiEl nat include any part of the damages fat . .
the Company proves does_ not represent the depreciation in value of the securities resulting from
the misrepresentation. ,~~'fie Company has a defense if it proves that you' knew of the -- _:
misrepresentation when you purchased the securities.

If you intend to rely on the rights described in (a) and (b) above, you must do so within strict time _

limit$tions. You must- commence your action to cancel the agreement within 180 days after you -
signed the agreement to purchase the securities. You must commence your action-for damages

within the earlier of 180 days after learning of the misrepresentation and 3 years after you signed

tt►e agreement to purchase. the securities.

-Item !2 Financial Statements

See next page for.

• Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended September 30, 2014
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Ir~d~pen~fe~t ,Auditor"~ +~~tot-

Tt~ the Shar~ttottiers oi~
1~t1 Canadian Inv~s~ment C~rp~tati€~n

4Ve have ~u~ditect the ~~carrtpanying fir~anc a~ stat~m~nts a# ~~t ~ana~ an Inv sCtttent Cn~aration which
dire campris~~ [~f t~t~ balance sheet as of S~pter'nber 3t~, 2014 ~r~d the st~t~rnents of op~rat~ons end
deficit and ~~~h flaws far the year` fihen ended, acid a summary cif significant aecc~un~ing policies and
other p[a~.atory inforrnatian.

~llati~ag mitt's ~ies~a~n~i~itity fc~r the financial S#atements

n~~eme~~ is rej`patas~ble for kh+~ pre.paration ~nc3 ~~ir pr senia~tion ~~ these f n~n~i~t st~tem~nts ire
~ecordarKe with Part V -pre-rf~+ar~~e~ver Canadian gen~ca[ly accepe~d accotant n~ principles, and ft~r
such ni,~mat cant~'uE as management determines is necessary to en~bt~ the preparation of financial
s~t~nents t ire tr++~~ foam mat~~ial misstatement, whither die tt~ ir~ud nt' ~rror~

~luc~L~r`s ~spon~~#~it~t

Qur responsibitity is Lo express an opinion o~ t~~se fnar;tial statements based on our audit: 1~1e
~~tnd~~et~ r~ur audit ~~t a.~~arc~ance with Canat~t.~n ~eneraEty accepted auditing ~ta~dard~. i~os
standards r+~quire that rare carr~pty iti~ ethic~t r uir~ments and ~t~t~ and ~~r t~rr~ the audit tt~ t~t~tain
~easc~~~~e assurance about whether the financial statem~rtts are fry from matey a! misstates t~

An audit nvaty arming procedures t~ obtain audit e~aidence abut the amounts ~r~t~ discl~sur~s icy
the financial statem~ts. The prc~~ures selected dep~t~d on the a~rditor`s jud~rt~~nt~ including the
~ss~ss~+~t tit Ltt~ risks of tnateriat misst~tem~r~t t~f the financial statements, vrheth~r c#u~ tt~ (fit ~c
~rrr~r. In matting those risk assessments, the auditor con~~r~~r~ internal control ret+~vanC to the entity`s
preparatfvn and fair presentation ~f the financ%al tem~nt,~ in attter tc~ design aueEit procedures that
are apprc~pr'tat~ in the ~ircumm~ta~~s (mot riot for the pr~~~ze ~f ~~€pressing an opinion orr the
~ffe vets tag tt~e enEitys i~t~m~t ct~ntrots. A~ ~~[ t ~tsn ~nci~ude~ ~valuaetn~ the p~ccr~riateness of
~ecout~~t~ ~llt.~e~ Ott end Cam* r~ 5v~ab{eness ~f ~ti~g esiir»ates made by m s~emertt, as vvet[
as, atuatin~ t~~ eratl ~r Ea,tion of tine i~r~ancia~ sta~~m~ts.

~e t~e[i~ve mat tie audit ~v~#d ce r~r~ have abtaia~d is suff~cie~~ and appropriate to provide a ~as~ fir
taut audit r~p9ni~r~,
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•

o~~~t~

I~ ~ttr t~pin on, the fin~r~cial st~t~m~ncs re nt fairly, in ~i! material respects, [~~ f%n~r~C ~i ~xo~~t~br► t~f
Atl Canadian investmen~ Cotp~r tion ~s ~t Sep~~rnber 34, 201 end the r~svlts t~f its t~pera~iort~ end
cash ftavrs for #.he mar then ~en~#~d in a~cr~rdant~ rich Parc Y -pre-changeover Canaciiart ~~raer~~ly
~c~epted ~~c~untn~ principtes.

Emphasis cif utter

'~fithout cr~o~ifying our audit opinion. rtt~ draw atterstion ia~ ~[o~~ 9 tit the ~~n~ncia[ st~t~m~~ats rtfiich
c~e~cribes the tt~dit ~nci Liquidity risks inherent in the act viii~s of the ~r~r~pany.

~~ ~' ~ ~ ~

tharCered ACc~~ntants

Satt~~an Arm, 6rik~sh Columbia
Mirth 3t?. "2~ 5
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All Canadian Investment Corporation
Balance Sheet

September 30 2014 2073

ASS@ts

Current
Cash (Node 'I}
Acatted interest recehraWe
Conant potion of promissory notes oeaetvabte (Nobs 2}
Curtest porter of marbgages receivable (Note 3)

Deposit on punchasa of land and Iwildfng (Note 13)
Promissory notes receivable (Note 2)
Mortgages receWabfe (Note 3)
Futu~ tttronte tax (Note 11)

S 443,681 S 329,875
820.316 -=-...2.184,674

11,8Z2,~46T -:: .11,013,707
21.501 X116 18,643.695

34,587,688 32.171,945

t00~000 -
68.607 -

1~460~530 1,917,543
980,000 210~OOQ

$ 37,196.826 $34,289.488

Liabilities and Share Capital and Deficit

c~rre~t
Accounts payable and accrued Nablilt~a
Due bo related party (Note 6)
Short-teem debt {Note 7)
Current portion of corporate debentures (Note 8}

Corpota~e debentures (Note 8)

Share Capital and Dsflcit
Shape capital (Note 5)
Oefa~t

a 142,369 S 816.863
- 680,0

2048,082 1 ~OOD,OOQ
1.550,000 -

3,740.451 2,306.86:1

$oa,aou -

4.340,451 2,346. 3

35.34T,OG4 32,075,Q04
(ZA~.~1 ( 379)

3Z.866.37b 3i,992,fi25

S 37.186~8Z8 S 34.2a9~488

Approved on be of ard:

Director

71os aeoanplu~kf9 ~nt~nan of M a~ou~n9 ~a and solos are sn hnegra! part of theme 6naneJe! stals~nenb.
4
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Ati Canadian Investment Corporation
Statement of operations and Da~icit

FQr the year ended Sep~eml~ 30 2414 2013

Rs~renue
interest ~toon~
Redempfro~ fees

Expenses
Bank cl~ges and inle~est
Inbenesi an shmE#erm debt
F3~nhne inber+e~
Martager~t fees (Flote 6y
financing fees
Pro r~al fees

Income from op~aflons

Impairmettt lasses (Nofe 4)

Income (W~s} before Income taxes

FuWre income tmc benefit

Net income (loss) toy tl~e year

S 3,525,214.- $ 3,215.326
SZO

3*525~734 3.215,326

2.962 1,282
411,849 114.427
17.794 -

873.3'!3 1,056.363
172,334 -
38,803 28,538

'l~215.145 1,200,590

2,310,689 2,014,736

3~188.Z51 -

(877~662) 2,014,73fi

C18~.00Oy (80.000)

~87~662) 2,094.738

Dafldt, beginning of year 182,379) (398530)

Divlderds p8id (2,310,588} (1,T78~685}

Defic~ end of Year t ~2,4S0,6Z9) S (82.379)

The a000n~a~ryeg wn~► o~ a~ne~nt axountlng psBc~ +usd des aie an iMeg~al part of tl~eas 4~seaw its.
5
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AI[ Canadian Investment Corporation
Statement of Cash Flows

f~ the year ended September 30 2014 2013

Cash fta~ provided by (used In):

Open~ting act
Cash ~eoeipbs hom mortgage operations S 83T,OOS i 1,Q60,382
Cash paid to st~pp~ets 11.589,841} (989.052)

(662,636) 71,330_

Investing activiftes
Issuance of new mortgages and loans receivable
Repayment of mores and beta receivable
Deposit on land and budding

Flnancing activities
Proceeds h~om short-term debt
Advances from t~elabed party
Rep~yrtre~t of ~ort~erm debt
Divid~ds paid
Redemption of prelemed shares
Proceeds from issuance of Rretemed shares
Pra~eds from debentiue offering

l~c[~aee in cash

Cssh, beginning of year

(3,738.000) (4,880.611)
874,957 1,986.820
(1QD,000)

(2.8~~0431 i3,003~791)

1,z00000 ~,000.00a
- 165,0

(681*917f (1Qd~~00)
(2.310~688y (1,778,585}
(1 ~Q86~000) (3,308.000)
4,358,400 7,193,000
2,160,000 -

3,6Z9~495 3,17Q,415

.413,876 237,954

~s,s~ra s~.s2~

Cash end of year S 443891 $ 329,875

The aocon~rb~g swntnary of signifi~ft eoeaanb~g P~fldes and notes are ~n b~ral paR at t1~as Qna~dal .
6
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All Canadian Investrnent Corporation
Summary of SignH'icant Accounting Polities

Septontbar 30, ZO'14

Nature at Buaines~ The Company Is tncarporat~ u~ the laws of British Ccfun~ and is
a morbg~e investrnent cor~atbn pursuant bo the provis~ns of
SedEon 130.1 of the lncaorne Tax Act lCanada). As a mortgage
inve~meM , dhr~ends p~Ed by the Comparry~ during the year
or wNhM ninety clays fapowing the year mod, are deducible in comPuGng
income for ~c purposes. The Company provides promissory notes and
mar~g to ~igible borrowers from pooled k~vestrnent funds of the
preferned shareholders.

Use of The prey of finar~ciai s~atemeirts in acoordanc~ witl~ Canadian
genera0y accepted accountln9 A~ ~lufres management to
mabce es s and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts
of assets and Gabilides and disclosures of oontlng~rt assets artd
6abtlt~t~ees at the date of the finartdal statement. as weq 3s the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses durfn9 ~ 9 P~~- White
management uses its best efforts to reasor~abg► assess judgm~

sues at a port In tirtie~ actual results ooufd differ [rom tl~ose
estimates. Estimates irtdude the valt~Ecn of aaxued interest
re~rabse. promissory notes and mortgages r~eivabta and tha
cam of aa~tmts payable anti accrued IiabiGt~s.

Flnareefal InstrumeM~ The Company recognizes and measures finanual assets and financ~l
C~6~es on the balance sheet when tt becomes 8 party b the
contractual provisions of a fmartaal instrument Management
determines the d~Cation of 6nancfal assets and IiabiG~es at inNiai
recogn~ion.

All transac~ons related to financial instrumeirts ar+e recorded on a
settlement date basis.

- The Canpan~s most slgnif~caM finer~c~al instruments consist of ifs
prom~sory notes and mortgages receivable. In aa:ordance with Ar.G-
18. promksory robes and mortgages receivable are required to be
r~eoor~ded at fad value es defined to CICA Handbook Sec~an 3855,
Fina~isd lnstr~unents • Recognitlon and Measurement Promissory
notes and niartpages tec:eivabfe are v~ued on the pcllc~s desc~ed
under Ptvmissory Notes and Mortgages Receivable bebw. The
flnanc~al risks associated wHh the Commas ~omiesory notes and
mo~a9es reoe~vable and the Comps nrenapement of those risks
are ~sa~ssed in Note 9.

Held-for-Trading

This category is comprised of cash. It fs carried on the shit st
loft vahie w~fi changes In fair vaitte recognized in the statement of
ope~ans. Tran n costs related to lnstniments classi(~d es hNd-
for-trading are exp~tsed as i~taxr~ed.

Cor►tittued...

7
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All Canadian Investment Corpofation
Summary of Significant Accountlng Policies

Sew 30.2014

Fl~neiaf Instruments
(carrtinued) Promissory Noes and Re~ivab~s (excluding imresbmer~ffi in

promissory notes and mort0agas~

This category is comprised of accrued i~ereat receivable and amounts
due fray retabed parties. These assets are in~ially recognized at fair
value and, subsequenUy~ c~rtied at amortized cost, using the ettec~ve
inkrest rate rr~eth~d, Eess as~y prwisian for impairment Transac.~on
cods related ~ promissory notes and receNabtes are expensed as
incurred. As the majan~y of the pramissay notes aril receivables are
due on demand, the book value approximates fair value.

Other Flnanclal Llabiades

This category is comprised of accounts payable and acaaued Iiab~UHHes,
due to dated party, and short-t$rm debt Thage assets are init~iry
r~ecogntred at fair value and, subsequetrtly~ carried at amo~tzed cost,
using tlse effective tn~erest rate method. Transar~on cotes mated m
other financial Babies ara expenses{ as inverted.

Promissory Notes and
IiAortgagea Receivable Promissory notes and mortgages receivable are stated at fair val~a in

accordance with CICA AcG18. Arty unr~ea~ed changes in the fak
value of a promissory note or mor~gage are reo~►ded in the net
earnings for the period. The faK value of promissory notes and
mortgages receivable fa delermtned by disc:cu~ing future cash flaws at
the Company's prev~ang raga of return on new promissory notes and
mortgages of simlar lype~ temp snd credit risk. A p~missory note or
mortgage is dass~ed as impaired when there is reasonable doubt as to
the ooUeeilan of some part~on of prinapal or Interest

hnpaiRner~t Prom~sory and mortgages are assessed at each re~o~tinp date
to deterrn[ne whether there k ob~ect~e evidence that they are tmpairred.
A promissory note of mortgage ~ lmpatred ff objective evidence
indicates tlret a loss event has' bcaured otter the ~i~al reoogni~on of
the asset, and that the loss event toad a negative effect on the
e~ima~ed future cash taws of that promissory note or mortgage that
can be esatrreted rei'rabiy.

Ob re evidence chat promissory rrotes or mortgages are fmp~ired
can indude significant financial diffiwHy of the boRawer or is~et.
c~EauR or de8nquenay by a bornawer, restructuring of ~ amount due to
the C~npernr on bem~s that the Comperht wuufd not otherwise consider,
inc~Catrans the a bonawer a suet wig enter bankruptcy. or oit~ar
abserval~e data rsta~ng to a group of assets such ~ adverse changes
in the paymerrt status of borrowers or issues in the group. or eoonamic
oondikons that con~elabe with defaults in the group.

R~aven~se Rarognition Interest income from mortgages and other prom~sory notes receivable
is recorded an the sexual basis. Interest income Is riot rec:oyntzed on
pranieaory notes or m~igapes that are impaired. Deterred revenue. iF
any. represents prepaid interest revenue.

CoM[rw~...
8
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All Canadian Investrnent Corporation
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

8eptamber 30.2014

Revenue Reoagnttlan
(cortdnued) Redemption fee income on preferred shares that have been issaed ~d

outstanding for less than lwo years Is recognized when the preferred
shares are redeemed by the shareholder.

Future Income Tax The Company follows the asset and f!al~ility method of accountlng far
income taxes. Under the Ilebiliiy method. the change in tit future bx
asset or Ilabilityy ~ to be included to inoame. Future tax assets and
liabi6~es are measured using enacted taut rates end to apply to
taxable income in the years in which temporary ditterences are
expected to be recovered or settled.

tnco~r~e Taxes The Company is considered a mortgage investmEnt corporatlon under
the Itrcome Tax Act (Canada). The Company distributes aN of its net
income tv its shareholders in the form of dividends in order not to ba
wbject to income taxes.

Neyv Accounting
Pronouncements Recent acxaunt~g pronounoemenls that have bey issued bc~t are rat

yet effeedvs~ and have a pctent~al implicatron for the Company are as
follows:

International Financial Reporting Standards

In February 2~8, the Canadian A~countirtg Standards Board
announced that Canadian generagy aaepted accounting prindples for
publ'~cfy accountable enterprises would be rephaced by I~nallonal
Flnancial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for fiscal years beg~nning on or
attar January .1, 2Q11. However as the Company is an Investment
Company as defined In A~ccountlng Quideline Ac(3-18, Investment
Companies. it win need to adopt IFRS for its f~Cal years beginning on
or after January 1. 2014.` Therefore. it wiA be required to prepare its
September 30. 2015 financ~l statements including oompata~ve
information in compliance with IFRS.

The Company is currently assessing the potenthal Irnpad of the
transi~on to tFRS on its financial statements, dlsctosures, and broader
financial reporting systems and controls. The key elemeM~s of the plan
wiU include assess[ng the impact of adopting tFRS oa:

- AaounBnng pogdes;

- Disclosure controls and praoedures;

- Share c~rital; and

- Impairment of promissory rrotes and mortgages.

The chartgeo~ner plan is sft~ in the early stages of devetopmerrt ands as
a result tl~e impact of adopting IFRS on the Compar~y~s firtanc3al
reporting is not reasonably delerminable at this tlrr~

9
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All Canadian Investment Gorporation
Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2014

1. Cash

The Company holds its cash in two financial ins8tutlons earning interest beivveen zero snd 1.259b.

2 Promissory Notes Receivable

The promksory Hates written by the Company are unsecured bans, for terms ranging firom one- to
three years and bear interest at rates ranging from 8°y6 fio 12% per annum and are unsecured.

Unsewred demand loans, evidenced by promissory notes
Unseamed l~na, evidenced by promissory note due 2014
U d loans, evidenced by promissory nom, due 2016

Allowance for imp~aicsd loans (Note 4)

Current portion

2014 2013

$ 12.013234 S 4.498,388
- 6,51.5;313

68,607 -

12,071,841 11,013,701
(190.767) -

11,881.074 11,Q13.701

11 ~822,4B7 11,Q13~701

i x8.607 ~ -

As at September 30, 2014. there are seven (2Q13 -three) promissory notes in arrears which staled
$ 684,100 (2013 - $ 314,7Q0).

Promissory note interest tdaling $ 675.200 (2013 - S 1,215,000), was ca~italiz~ during the year, in
Iine with fhe revised terms of the promissory notes.-

As outNned in Note 9, marry of the above promissory notes have been issued prtmanly bo residen~al
propeet~► developers to fund projects currently under conshvc~on. Final cash flows from these
projects are not deter~Nnable as at the balance sheet date. Should these projects not perform as
projected. fhe vahte of the promissory note related to the spedflc project may need to 6e adjusted
to fad value if it is detenmirred to be imp~alrBd as-tFte project nears cornple8on and estimated cash
lbws can be more essay determined.

10
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All Canadian Investment Corporation
Notes to Ffnancisl Statements

8eptafnber 30, 2014

3. Nbrtgages Receivable

The mortgages v~itten ~y the Company are far temps ranging from one to lwo years and bear
interest at rates ranging from 696 to 1296 per annum.

2014 2013

(Note 14)

Mortgages collateralized by commercial property S 3,193,186 $ 4,156.710
Mortgages collaterattzed by residential Property (Note 9) 17,286,868 12,788.342
MoKgages ooilateralfzed by raw ~eeldential tend (Note 9) 2.700,000 3.636~7~

23,189.11b 20,561.238

AIl~wwanoe for impaired loans (Note 4) (227,370) -

2Z,861,745 20,581 X238

. Less: mortgages due withM one year t6,68b.858 4,847,135

Less: mortgages due on demand 4,80b.166 13,786,560

S 1480,630 s 1,917,54

As at Sep~amber 30.2014. there is one mortgage (2013 -Nil) in smears whEch tiled $ 1 ~159~156
(2413 - 3 NH)•

Mortgage ingest tataJtng S 1,444,817.(2013 - 5 2,Q36,700)~ was cspltalized during tF~ year, In Ifne
with the revised terms of the mortgages

As noted in Note 9, many of We above rr~ortgeges have been Issued prlmar~y to residentlal Properly
developers to fund projects currently under oonstrucdon. Flnal cash Saws fin these protects are
not debarminable as at the balar~ce sheet date. Should these projects not perform ere projected, the
value of the mortgage related to the spec project may need to be adjusbad to felt value K [t is
detetmfned tc be impaired as the project pasta oompleUon and eatlmated cash haws can be rtiore
e~sUy detartnined

11
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All Canadian Investment Corporation
Notes to Financial Ststemenffi

8apteniber 30~ 2014 _, . _

4. Allowance for tmpalred Prom~ry Notes aad Mort~agss Receivable

In determining the albwance for hnpafred lows, management considers lac~ors such as the
compos~ian and c~lit q~ralily of tha porltolio, current eoonamic conditions and trends and histo~Ecal
loss experteRcs.

Movement in pro~vislon for impairment

Weldsmla~
P̀romissory Commerelal Readaeitlal Land
Notet EAa~ MortAass IWortgase Total

Bal~na~ ~t Ootob~r 1,2013 S - i - i - S - 5 - -
Pr~ovhton ~nr~sd bo net Income 10.787 227.770 2.770.114 ~.189,~61

- 1!0.787 227.570 - 2.770.114 ~.lN.281
Lwns wr!lt~n of! (2.770.1141 (2,T7Q.114)
BaltRC~ at 8sptuabar 30~ 2014 S 180.747 i 227. 70 s - t - i 418.137

OtO~s p~tndpal bafanos o}
inewte~wwuy ~~na roans s ase spa s ~,eae 000 s _ ... _.. - s - s ~.aaa~e

The. provision for commercial mortgages represents the adjustment to fair value of mortgages and
promissory notes receivable debenMnad by dEscounting future cash stows at the Gompar~s
prevaAing rate of mum on n~+r mor~aQes and prorrdssory notes.

There was no sllowartce for impaired promissory notes snd mortgages reoefvabte raoorded in 2013
and as such no com~raave i~vmmtfon has been presented.

~. 8hara Capital

Autliotired

1.000~OQ0~000 Common shares without par value
1,000,000,000 Preferred shares witl~out par value

Issued._
4 Common sha~+es

35.347 Ptefemed shams (2013 -32.075)

Pr+efetred share transau~ons for the years ended September 30:

Opening balance. beginning of year
- 6cerdse cf warrants 2,952 shares (2013 - 3,4a9)
- Waw shares ~!d 1,406 shares (2013 - 3,784)
- Redeemed for c~ 1,086 shares (2013 - 3,3Q9)

Closing balance, end of the year

CcnWlued ...

?A74 2013

S 4 S 4
35.347~000 32.Q75.000

5 35,347.004 $ 32075.004

2014 2013

5 3~,076~D00 $ 28~191,000
2~9~2.000 3,409,000
1~406~Q00 3~784~000
(1.086.000 (3.3Q9,000}

i 35.34T~000 $ 32,x75,000

12
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All Canadian Investment Corporation
Notea to Financial Statements

September 30~ 2014

S. Share Capital (oontlnued)

Dividends

Each preferred share enBtles Rs registered holder to participate on a pro-rata basis with the other
preferred shareholders fn the distribution of 10096 of the mortgage investment income That remains
after the payment of expenses of the issuer and the management fee, unto such time as the
prefenad shareholders -have recei~ned an arriaunt in each year equal to 1296 of their paid up captiat
in the oorporatlon. Thereafter, the common shareholders v~n71 be entlded to receive the dlstribu~on
of 100'5 of the ba~noe of the mortgage investment income unb'I such qme as they-have received
an amount In each year equal to 1296 of they paid up I. ThereaRer, the balance of the
matg~ge invesbrr~ent income wiH be paid ~o fhe prefeRed and common shareholders, pro-rab
based on their resper.~ve pa[d up capital fn the Company.

Ratlemption of Preferred Shares

A holder of preferred shares may request the Company to redeem the whole or any part of the
preferred shares by giving notice to the Comp~y. The Gompa~l will not m -any :preferred
shares if at the erne of such redemption the Company Is tnsohrent or iF such redempHan will render
the Company Insolvent, if such redemp~on will redtwe the Campan~s cash reserves l ow a bevel
whfcfi the Ofrectors detennine~ in their sole dfscreffcn, to be prudent. or if such redempbton will
cause the Comparry b breach -the requirement that at least 5096 of the cast amount of its property
must consist of bank deposits or mortgage loans made in respect of residentlal prcpert~es.

Share Purchase Warrants

Pursuant to a private Offering Memorandum dated January 21, 2014. the Company has offered to
issue up to 60.0 units at 31,000 per unit Each unit consists of one preferred share-and one non-
bransferable. preferred share purohase warrant Each warrant entitles the holder b ~ur~chase up to
ten a~itionai preferred shares of the Company at a price wMch is the lesser of $ 1,000 per
preferred share and the troolc value per preferred share ~ determined by tfte Campanys auk
as at fhe fiscal year and of the Company immediately preceding the date the warrant is exerdsed.
Each warrant is exer~dsabte fior a perfod of ten years from the date cf issuance.

At September 30.2014, th~+e aye 17.178 {2013 -18.603) share purchase warrants outsbnding.

On the issuance of the shares with attsached warrants, management determined the value of the
w~frants to be rrominat and, th~etore, Bane at the share premeds were allocated tv the wartants.

6. Related Party Tcanesctions

ACIC Flnandal Devetenmant Inc.

The Company has contracted with ACIC Finsndal Development Inc., a company under common
management, to menage the o~a~ons of the Company. The Management Agreement provides
that in conside~stlon of the services provEded by the Manager as descn'bed therein, the Company
~y the Ilkanager an annual fee tot to exceed the sum of fiReen percent {159~6y of annual gross
revenues and Mro percent (296} of the Company's assels~ with such fee bo be payable monthly.
Total managemerrt fees paid to ACIC Flnendal Development Inc. for the year ended September 30,
2Q14, was S 873.313 (2013 - $ 1.058,383), of this amount S 113,313 (2013 - $ 611,363) Is included
in accoutds p~ysble and aoaued Ifebilities.

Cflntinued ...
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Ail Ganadian lnvestrnent Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2014

6. Related party Transactions (con~nus~}

In a~ddit~on, ACIC Ffnancia! Development Inc. had advar~oed funds totaling $ NU (2013 - S fi9a,G~0)
!o AN Canadian inves~nenl Carporatlon. The funds were repaid during the year. - ,-

Joutt Y~ntut~

-The Company has baited a total of S 29Q,OQ0 (2013 - S 290.Od0} bearing int~r8st at 1296, inct~ded
1n mortgages re~ceh►able. to a Joint venture in which ACIC FinancEal Developmaet Irtc. is a joint

- venture participant Interest intone related to the mortgages totaled $34,600 (2013`- $ 78,900) for
the year and $ NU {2Q13 - S 8772) is included in accaurrts receivable.

" - =Daniel Point Protect
The Company has loaned ~ 2~100,OD0 (2013 - S 2700,000) bearing interest at 12°~6~ tnduded in
morpgages receivable. tc Daniel Point Projects, a company whEch has entered into a proftt-sharing

. .agreement with ACIC Flna~c~al Development IRc.. Interest Mcome related ~o the mortgage totaled
$ 321,980 (2013 - 3 506,473) for the year and S 396,900 (2013 - $ 1,841,83 fs included fn
accounts receivable.
These transactions are measured at the exctrange amount (the amount of oonsid~atlan
established and agreed m by the related parties).

7. Snort-term Debt
2014 2013

Demand ban, wiHt interest at 696 Rer annum. interest is paid
month{y, nc set teams of r~epaynrent S 1.000,000 $ i.0Q0.000
Loan. wNh ~nter~est at 10.590 per annum, month{y payments of
$1X5.104 fndudi~g internst and priridpal~ due August 2015 1,048,082 - -

S 2.048~OSZ S 1.000,000

~ Debenbtre~
During the year debentures of S2,t5Q,000 were issued In minimum 5~50~OOD in~xements.

2014 2013

aeries A Corporate Debenture, monthly interest at 896
~tutiag May 31.2015 : 1.680.000 $ -

Series BCorporate Debenture. monthly Interest at 7°~~
maturfng November 30, 2015 600.000 -

2,180,000 -
Currentportion 1,560000

S 600,000 S

14
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All Canadian investment Corporation
Noties to Financial StatemeMa

8eotember 3Q, 2014

9. Fl~ar~WallttstrumeMs __

U aaocdance_wlih Canadian generally accepted eocoun~ng principles, the Company must classify _
fair value measurements using a fair value h(erarc:hy that reflects the significance of the Inputs used
in making tis fak value measuremerds. The following hierarchy has been used in determ[ning and
disc sing fair value of financEalinstruments: -

`- Level 1: quoted prices in edive rnarlcets for the same instrument (le. without mo~IcaBan or
repacka9in8):

Level 2. quoted prices in ~c.~ve markets for stmllaz assets or l~abili~es or other valuation
techniques for which all si~ificant inputs are based on observable market data; and

~re13: valuation techniques fa which any signifyant input is not based on observable marlceE
data.

Irderest Rate Rlak

Promissory notes and mortgages receivable are valued using Level 3 measures ~ there are no
quoted prEces in an active market for the Companys mortgages. Management makes ~s
debe~nir~atlan of kir value fw its mortgage hnreshnents based on ffs assessment of the cement
r~t~ge msricet for mortgages of same or similar terms.

The Compaq is exposed to Interest rate ~Ic from the passibElily that cash flows could change
based on changes in interest rates as wep as the poasibi~ly that fair value could change due to
changes in interest rates. Show there be significant changes In interest rates, the Company could
iriwr slgni~caM changes in the fair value of the investrnent in promissory notes and mortgages
receivable. The weighted average interest rate for the promissory Hates and mortgages receivable
~ 11.53° 6 (2013 -11.4396). Promissory notes and mortgages rec~ivabie interest rates are fixed for
the dura~on of fhe mortgage term thereby reducing the entity's sensitiv~y to changes in marice#
inbetest rates.

The Company feels that no other ~c~ar~ial instruments are subject to interest rate risk due to their
wort-tam maturity.

Credlt Risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk foam the possibA'ily that borrowers may defau~ on their
promissory note and mortgage ob8ga~ons. the majority of which at e co~aterafaed by Heal property►
in Britlsh Columbia. Marcagement attempts to mlUgabe this risk by ensuring that the pow of the
Company is covered by the value of properly. The Company has six loans and morbpages {2013
seven) that are indnridual{y in excess of 596 of the total portfoflo. Collectively, these represent 7196
{2013 - 6896) of-the total Ratfolb. The Company Is In a ftrst priority pos{tfon on 1196 (2013 -179~b?
of niortgaga charges.
Addi~onally, the Company is exposed to credit risk oonoenhation on its mortgages and promissory
gates ss there are four guarantors (2013 -four) that are Indn~kivaly M excess of 6g6 ~ the total
po~fOlbo. Collec~vely. ~Sse represent 9496 (2013 - 83%) of the total portioG~. Otte of these
indlvldusts accaur►ts for 6696 (2G13 - 5796) of outstanding mortgages and prortdssory notes
~hreble.
The Company is exposed bo c►edit risk conoentratior~ on its cash balance as Et is held subst$ntiatiy
in one flnanclal Ina~tutlon.
Con~nued ...
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A!i Canadian Investment Corporation
Notes to Financial Statanienffi

:setember 3a____.. 201a

e. Ftr~anciallnstrumeMs (oontinue~ _.-

~__Ligpldity-Risk

Trie Company k exposed to Ilquldity risk on the outstanding preferred shares since a-certain
number are-redeemed each year at the request of tie shareholder. This r~k has bean mtti~ted as
the approval cf the request to redeem shares is at the discnetlon of tihe Bird of Dftectors of the

- Company►. As weM, the total amount of preferred shares to bs redeemed in any quarter is not to
exceed 2-1/296 of the outstanding preterred shares at We end of the immed~etely preoedir~
calendar quarter.
As noted in Note 2 and 3. the Company is exposed ~a Bquidity risk as 74°~ of promksory notes and
mortga8es are advanoal for the purRosea of flnendng residential and commerc~l projects under
development Interest earned on theme loans are capitalized artid not due until the projects are
ccmpleia. Th(s de[ere the cash recehred and exposes the Company to Uquidity risk. The Company
manages this risk by monitioring ~ flows and limidng discretionary cash o~flo~vs such as
managemerrt fees redemp~on of shares and dividends if necessary.
Fa[r Values
The estimated fair values of the CompanYs ~nanciat instruments are based on c~elevant madcet

and tnformadon available at the Mme. No fair values have peen determined f~ aay asset that
is not a flnande(InstrumenL
N~ adl flnandal Instruments are readilyr marketable. Ae a result, estimates of fad value are
subjeci~ve and should not be considered predse. The est(mated fair values o[ c~tsh~ acxruad
i~erest recaeivable, axounts payable grid sarued ~ab~ities. due to related party, and shoat-term
debt are assumed to equal then book values as the hems are short term in nature. Management
makes ns determina8on of fair values of promissory noise and mortgages receNable by disc.~oundng
tl~eir ex~~ded future cash flows at the prevatling interest rate for promissory notes artd mortgages
of same or similar farms. Tha inwal teens of the promissory notes and mortgages represent their
fair value at the time of promissory note and mortgage origination. When coile~on of principal on a
par~ailar mcrtgaga investm~t is no longer reasonably assured, the fair value of the mar~gege is
red~eced to filed the estimated net realizable recovery from the copateral severing the ban.

10. income. Taxes
The Cam~ny Free non-capital losses available of approximately $ 3,811.984 which may be ~p~lied
against suture amble income. The fight M claim these bases expires between 2030 and 2034:

11. Future lacome Tax
Future income tax reflects the rat effects of temporary dl((erencea between the carrykt8 amounts of
assets and- Ilabill~ea for flnanciel reporting purposes and the amounts used br income ta~c
R~~.
The major components of future ir~cor~e tax are:

2014 2013

Temporary dlfrerenoes relamtg to loss carry-forwards 5 X0.000 $ 210,000
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All Canadian Investrnent Corporation
Notes to Financial Statiements

M-~ -s~tern~ ao, Zo~a

12. Capita[ Discl~ut+es

The Company considers its capital to comprise of ita share capital.

- In managing ~s cap~al~ the Compan~s primary objective is to ensure its continued abi~iy to provide
a co~i~snt realm for its shareholders through cap'dal growth and investments in mortgages

- beating an aoceptabie interest rate and level of risk. In order to achieve this objec4ve, the Company
s~ks to baienoe risks and returns at an axeptable Isvef by prov(dr~g mortgage finandng at an
interest rate commensur~tel~r w~h the level of risk. In malting decisions to adjust its capital syruct~re
to achieve these objectives, the Company considers both Its short-teen and its Iong-teen strategic
obj~ves. -

13. C

The Company F~ ~bered Into an agreement t~ pu~hase land and building of two proper~es with a
dosing date of July 31.2015 far the price of 51,100,0 0. Anon-refundable deposit of S10Q,000 has
.been paid.

14. .. Comparative Figures

Certain pr(or year figures have been redassi6ed to conform to the current years presentation.
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Item 13 Date and Certifrcate

Dated .tune 22, 2015

This Offering Memorandum does not contain a misrepresentation.

ALL CANADIAN STMENT CORPORATION

Per.
Don F. man
Director
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ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION

Summary of Loan Portfolio

Balance Owed Sept

Loan Location Security Interest Rate 30 2017

1 Peace River, Albefta Interest in JV Agreement' 10% 2,287,517.81

2 LOwe~ M2inland, B.C. Registered 1st Mortgage 12% 6,195,809.23

3 Conklin, Alberta Equitable Mortgage 0% 3,389,414.00

4 Lower Mainland, B.C. Equitable Mortgage 12% 5,635,770.09

5 Lower Mainland, B.C. Equitable Mortgage 129~a 38,354.68.

6 Lowef Mainland, B.C. Unregistered 3rd Mortgage 6% 943,205.39

7 N/A Unsecured Loan 12% 13,327.12

8 Sooke, B.C. Unregistered 2nd Mortgage 6% 759,846.20

9 Lowef Mainland, B.C. Unregistered 3rd Mortgage 12% 8,045,494.82

10 Lowef Mainland, B.C. Unregistered 2nd Mortgage 12% 1,856,324.85

it Lowef Mainland, B.C. Unregistered 3rd Mortgage 129 2,854,077.51

12 Lower Mainland, B.C. Unregistered 3rd Mortgage 129'0 832,014.47

13 Lower Mainland, B.C. Equitable Mortgage 129 504,163.70

14 N/A Unsecured Loan 6% 90,3b7.75

15 Estevan, Saskatchewan Registered ist Mortgage 12% 870,279.97

16 Pender Island, B.C. Equitable ist Mortgage 6% 1,456,610.37

17 Pender HafboUf, B.C. Registered 1st Mortgage 69~e 1,324,139.72

18 N/A Unsecured Loan 6% 22,306.30

19 Kelowna, B.C. Equitable Mortgage 0% 150,000.00

20 Salmon Arm, B.C. Mortgage of Mortgage 1290 500,000.00

Total Loans 37,769,023.98

1) A "Registered Mortgage" refers to a loan pursuant to which ACIC holds mortgage security, which is currently

registered in the applicable province's Land Title Office.

2) An "Unregistered Mortgage" refers to a loan pursuant to which ACIC holds mortgage security, which is not curr~nUy
registered at the applicable province's Land Title Office.

3) An "Equitable Mortgage" refers to a charge on property that is created through a written agreement between the
Borrower and ACIC which provides that the specified property stands as security for the loan amount.

*AFDI has an interest in the properties pursuant to a joint venture agreement agreement with a third party. ACIC has
taken an interest in AFDI's interest in the properties as security for ACICs loan to AFDI.

This is Exhibit .. ~...... referred to in the affidavit of

~,1 ~ t'~.~4.~4~ ....,L~„ ~~r;;`~!~.......... sworn (or affirmed)

before me on ..~....l~F.~~..~.~ ~ ~...... [dd/mmrNyyyy)

...........6~"~`•" • .... ..... ............. ........................
A Commissioner for taking Affidavits

within British Columbia
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Three Waterfront Properties ~ ,

All Canadian Investment Corporation October 18, 2017

825 Lakeshore Drive SW ~ Our Flle: 2011-0944-0

Salmon Arm, BC V1E lE4
located at

Attention: Mr. Don Bergman

Dear S(r:

LOLS 4, 5 and 6, Packalen Boulevard Re: dots 4, 5 and 6, Packalen Boulevard

Carden Bay. British Columbia

Garden Bay, British Columbia
At your request, we have appraised the fee simple Interest In these real properties. Our

estimate of market value of the properties as at October 13, 2017 is:

THREE MILLION, ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS

$3,100,000

;v j~ for Our opinions considered the research, data, and analyses In the report that follows, and are

:~ ~' subject to the assumptions and limiting conditions herein. Grover Elliott & Co. Ltd. has prepared

. ~

this report at your request, exclusively for All Canadian Investment Corporation The Intent of

D ' ~~ All Canadian Investment Corporation this report Is to provide market valuation i~formatlon for first mortgage financing purposes;

~ ~ ~

~:

~

rt

any use that a Yhird party makes of this report, or any reliance on or decisions to be made

3.
~ ~

based on It are the responsibility of such third parties. Grover Elliott & Co. Ltd. and our

f 3 ~ consultants accept no Itability or responsibility for any damages that any third party might

s N '
—' '

: ~ r
~
~ suffer or incur because of the use of, reliance on, or any decisions made based on this report.

W
L̀

~~'
as at

Thank for to be this matter. If have any or~ you allowing us of assistance with you questions

'+n'. ~, ;

~

~_ .

~'

comments, please contact our office.

~ ~1 5~ October 13, 2J17
Respectfully sy6mltted,F :

:~ ~ GROVER, ELLIOTT & CO. LTD,

3 ~ c
~,,, s

by per:

QD:

'
'

a ~
~

Brent McLaren, B.Comm., AACI, F.App.

~
~ 

~ 3 ̂p rent McLaren, B.Comm., AACI, P.App.
3 email: grent.mclaren~arvverelllott.ca~

direct line: (604) 638-3158

BM/ca

u ~ EgCI.,
,, ii1~f

Gruver., Elliott & Co. Ltd.. ~ '
..,

~.~-►
LT#
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THE ASSIGNYNEINT

Intended Use of the Apprelsal

All Canadian Investment Corporation owns the subject properties and requires an estimate of

market value to assist with first mortgage flnancfng. One condition precedent to obtain first

mortgage financing is an Independent valuation by a professional appraiser. We have prepared

this report in accordance with instructions obtained from Mr. Don Bergman, exclusively for All

Canadian Investment Corporation.

Our analyses, opinions, and conclusions are subject to the assumptions, limiting conditions and

disclosures provided herein.
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We did not prepare this report In contemplation of any other use, for property assessment or
court purposes, or for reliance by any other party. Absent our prior written agreement, which
we may withhold, we reserve the right to refuse any other assignment Involving this report, and
expressly deny responsibility to third parties for any use.

Purpose of the Apprelsal
The purpose of this report Is to provide our es[Imate of the current market value of the fee
simple Interest in the subject property, as at the effective date of this report. An accepted

Canadian definition of market value is:

the most probable price which a property should bring In a competitive and
open market as of the specified date under all conditions requisite to a fair sale,
the buyer and seller each acting prudently and knowledgeably, and assuming the

, price is not affected by undue stimulus.

Implicit in this definition are the consummation of a sale as of the specified date
and the passing of title from seller to buyer under conditions whereby:

~ buyer and seller are typically motivated;

• both parties are well Informed or well advised, and acting In what
they consider their best interests;

• a reasonable time Is allowed for exposure In the open market;

• payment is made in terms of cash In Canadian dollars or in terms of
in financial arrangements comparable thereto, and,

• the price represents the normal consideration for the property sold
unaffected by special oe creative fonancirtg or sales concessions
granted by anyone a55ociated with the salQ.~

~ Canodion Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice: Appraisal Institute of Canada, 2014, Ottawa,
Ont.~, 14.153

GROVER, ELLIOTf & CO. LTD. 2017-0944-0 Page 3
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The fee simple estate is defined as "Absolute ownership unencumbered by any other interest

or estate, subject only to the limitations imposed by the governmental powers of taxation,

eminent domain, police power and escheat."~ This is the most comprehensive form of

ownership. It gives a "bundle of rights" that allows the owner the right to use the property, to

sell it, to lease It, to enter it, or to give it away. It also includes the right to refuse to take any of

these actions. A fee simple Interest excludes existing financing and leases.

All property rights are subJect to land use regulation, "legal restrictions (e.g., a zoning

ordinance) that control the use to which land may be put; may include controls established by

restrictive covenants or contained In redevelopment or urban renewal plans approved by local

governing bodies.rr3

Scope of AsslgnmeM

The scope of this assignment Included:

an Inspection of the property on October 13, 2D17, at which time the photographs
herein were taken;

a review of land use control information obtained from the Sunshine Coast Regional

District;

• a review of the reliance documents described below;

• investigation of relevant market activity, with sources including the local real estate

board, Land Titles oFfite, transactions. (Including those reported ,by B.C. Asse5sment),

real estate agents, vendors and purchasers a~tiive in the market, and oue corporate real

estate database; and,

• completion of market analyses and valuation as described later herein.

Reliance Documents

Documents relied on for our analysis include:

• title search prints obtained from B.C. Online dated September 16, 2015 and reproduced
herein; and

• registered plan BCP15562.

'Appraisal Institute, the Dictionary o/Real Es[ate Appraisal, 5th ed. (Chicago: /Cpprelsal Institute), 2010; fee simple.
~ Ibld. land use regulatlon

GROVER, ELLIOTT & CO. LTD. 2017-0944-4 Page 4

Techn Ical I nvestlgatlons

We did not complete technical investigations such as:

• inspections or an engineering review of the structure, roof or mechanical

systems;

• a technical review of the utility servicing;

• a site survey;

• a building survey;

• investigations into the bearing, percolation or other qualities of the soils;

• an environmental review;

• an archaeological survey;

• a hydrological study;

• a tree inventory; or

• research Into the presence of sensitive species or protected habitat such as
raptor nesting sites.

Type of Analysis

This narrative appraisal report compiles with the Canadian Uniform Standards of Professional

Practice of the Appraisal Institute of Canada. We have competence In this type of appraisal

analysis-and have valued this class of real property before.

VeNflcatian of Third Party Informatiion

The analysis set out In this report relied on written and verbal Information obtained from a

variety of sources we considered reliable. Unless otherwise stated herein, we did not verify

client-supplied information, which we assumed to be correct. Any party wishing to rely on this

report should confirm the source of any Important information herein as well as the

assumptions that underlie any significant conclusion.

Hypothetical Assumptions and Extraordinary Limiting Conditions

We have not Inspected the property since September 4, 2015. Our valuation assumes that the

current state and condition of the land and Improvements as at the effective date of this

appreisal is essentially the same as when viewed on the'date of inspection.

GROVER, ELLIOTT & CO. LTD. 2017-0944-0 Page 5
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PROPERTY 1NEORMATION

Civic Address

Lot 6 has a municipal address of 4174 Packalen Boulevard, Garden Bay, British Columbia. Lots 4

and 5 do not have municipal addresses.

Legal Description

Lots 4, 5 & 6, each with an undivided 3/12 share in Lot 7, District Lot 3923, Group 1, New

Westminster District, Plan BCP35562

Parcel ldentlfier

026-192-993

026-193-001

026-193-019

Title Information and Encumbrances

Included in the addenda is a title status print dated September 16, 2015 for each of the three

subject lots. All Canadian Investment Corporetlon Is the registered owner. For the purpose of

this assignment, the current title Is assumed to be the same as at September 16, 2015.

All three parcels have easements registered over tfieir respective undivided shares of Lot 7,

Plan BCP15562. This easement provides access to Lots 1 to 6 of the subject subdivision. All

three lots are also encumbered by a statutory building scheme. Several covenants are

registered against the properties, though no further Investigation has been undertaken.

Subject to the Ilmftations of this assignment and based on our Interviews, client-supplied

information and our review of the title search print, we believe that title encumbrances do not

materially affect the value of the property except as discussed specifically herein. However, we

did not obtain a legal opinion of the state of title or any of the encumbrances, we lack

qualifications in this area and we have not read the documents registered against title. Our

appraisal therefore assumes that title is good and marketable and that encumbrances do not

affect the value of the appraised interest:

GROVER, ELLIOTT & CO. LTD. 2017-0944-0 ~, Page 6

AS5E5SMENTS AND TAXES

Actual 2017 value assessments and taxes for the subject property as provided by BC

Assessment are as follows:

Land Building Total

Lot Roll Nv: Assessed Assessed Asse3sed
Gross

Value Value. Value
Taxes

4 D6165315 $728,000 $0 $728,000 $3,030

5 06165320 $673,000 $0 $673,000 $2,829
6 06165325 $985,000 $157,000 $1,142,000 $4,684

Total $2,386,000 $157,000 $2,543,000 $10,543

Assessed value reflects the opinion of 8C Assessment of the market value of the property as at

July 1" of the previous year based on the physical condition of the property as of October 31"

of the previous year.

Assessors disregard encumbrances such as leases and financing, and can base their assessments

on mass apprelsal techniques such as multiple regression analysis and on dated Inspection

Information. Consequently, actual values can be a less precise estimate of market value than

provided by a full appraisal.

GROVER, ELLIOTT & CO. LTD. 2017-0944-0 Page 7
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H15TORY AND USE

Sales History ',

Canadian Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal Institute of

Canada require Investigation and consideration of transactions of the subJect property

occurring near the effective date of the appraisal. When a recent arm's length market

transaction has occurred compelling evidence of value arises, often requiring only an

adjustment for market conditions.

Title documents show that the three subJect parcels were last transferred; In August 2015 with

declared values that are equal to the BC Assessments estimates of value for 2015, a total of

$2,535,000. BC Assessment records classify these transfers as "not suited for sales analysis:'

More recently, the property was listed in August 2016 for $3,900,000. The listing expired on

February 28, 2017.

The property was previously listed In August 2009 for $3,950,000: The listing expired in March

2010.

We are unaware of any other marketing activity or of any offering of or for the property. Land

Titles Office records, a primary source of data on real estate sales, do not include transfers of

property accomplished by the sale of shares by an owner holding title to the property. Since no

public database records transactions of shares for privately held companies, we cannot

investigate sales of this nature.

Present and Historic Use

As at the date of inspection, one of the properties was improved with asingle-family dwelling

with an attached garage/shop. The property was reportedly used for fish farming in the 1960s.

We are unaware of any other previous use.

GROVER, ELLIOTT& CO. LTD. 2017-0944-0 Page B

THE SITE

Location

Tne subject properties are located at the west end of Packalen Boulevard In the Garden Bay

area of Pender Harbour, within the Sunshine Coast Regional District, British Columbia.
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Shape and Size

The three subject parcels are contiguous and Irregular In shape, with slte areas and frontages

that are summarized as follows:

Size Slze Frontage
Lot

Atres (5F ft

Lot4 1.084 47,232 320

Lot 5 0.745 32,453 281

Lot 6 0.703 30,602 575

To[al 2.532 110, 287 1,176
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Topography

The subject has two very steep and completely unusable areas: one on the northeast corner of

Lot 4, and the other on the eastern end of Lot 6.7he remainder of the site is unusually level for

a waterfront site In this area, and will allow for single-family residential use with little, if any,

blasting or site preparetlon required. The topography provides for direct access to the water

from allthree lots. i

View Characteristics

The subJecYs waterfront location on a point provides for over 180 degr~es of uninterrupted

ocean views.

Soil Conditions

We have not been provided with a soil survey for the subject site; and we have not

commissioned one. For the obJective of this report, we have assumed that the bearing,

percolation and other characteristics of the land are adequate to permit'.development under

the present land use controls, without undue and costly site preparation or,engineering.

GROVER, ELLIOTT & CO. LTD. 2017-0944-0 I Page 12

We did not observe any contaminants or hazardous materials at the property and do not have

the knowledge or qualifications to detect the existence of such materials on or In the property.

Our value estimate assumes that there are no contaminants or hazardous materials on, In, or

near the property that would cause a loss In value. We recommend retaining an expert in these

matters If doubt exists regarding the quality of the soils or groundwater.

Access

Vehicle and pedestrian access to the three lots Is provided via an easement over Lot 7 of the

subject subdivision. Lot 7 serves as a private road dedication that is jointly shared by the other

6 lots within the subdivision, providing access from Packalen Boulevard via a gated driveway.

Pender Harbour and the Sunshine Cdast areconnected to the Greater Vancouver Region via the

BC Ferries Langdale terminal 74 km to the southeast of the subJect; the sailing time to connect

to Horseshoe Bay is approzlmately 40 minutes. BC Ferries also provides trensportatlon to

Powell River/the Upper Sunshine coast via the Earl's Cove ferry terminal approximately 26 km

north of the subject.

Street Improvements

Packalen Boulevard Is asphalt-paved and two lanes In width. Jt terminates in a cul-de-sac at Lot 7

of the subject development. The private access road over Lot 7 Is asphalt paved.

Utilities

Utility services are available at the lot line, Including Including water (provided via the Garden

Bay Waterworks District, a public water utility administered by the SCRD), domestic sewer,

electricity, telephone and television cable. Natural gas Is not available.

GROVER, ELLIOTT & CO. LTD. 2017-0944-0 Page 13
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THEIMPROVEMENTS

Deslgn and Plan

The improvements comprise aone-storey plus walk-out basement dwelling, with attached

workshop. The building Includes a mix of concrete-block and wood-frame construction.

According to an appraisal report prepared by Royal LePage Advisors Inc. in 2003, the building

was constructed circa 1996, though we were unable to verify this. It Is our understanding that

the shop portion of the building was constructed well before this date.

The main floor comprises a kitchen, Giving ropm and dining area, a full bathroom, two bedrooms

and a laundry room. The full-height, walk-out basement is almost entirely above grade and

could accommodate additional living space. It has several overhead loading doors. According to

plans provided, both the main floor and lower level measure approximately 1,120 square feet,

for a total of 2,240 square feet of gross building area.

The shop is located above and behind the living area and measures approximately 30 feet wide

by 39 feet long, with a floor area of 1,170 square feet. It has a 12-foot clear telling height and a

12-foot loading door.

The Interior finishes on the main level Ind~de,h~rdWAod~floors ~n the living areas and kitchen,

carpets in the bedrooms, laminate countertops and star less steel appliances. The rear walls In

the bedroom are painted concrete block.

The subject Is located In the Daniel Pofnt area, which forms part of the larger Garden Bay area.

The neighbourhood immediately surrounding the subject has been populated with high quality

homes that were generally constructed within the past 10 to 15 years, though many lots remain

vacant.

Garden Bay, according to the 2011 census, has a population of 370 and reportedly contains

approximately 1/3 of Pender Harbours population. The Garden Bay commercial area is 5 km

east of the subject and Includes several marinas, two yacht clubs, restaurants, a pub and an Inn.

Madelre Park is the main commercial hub of Pender Harbour, IncludiIng a grocery store,

government liquor store and some medical services, but Is located over +16 km by road away

from Daniel Point.

Pender Harbour is a popular boating destination. The subject is located Jus outside the harbour

entrance, and at the south end of Agamemnon Channel. Nelson Island lies across this channel

to the northwest. From the north end of Agamemnon Channel, boaters ICan continue on Into

Jervis Inlet and Sechelt Inlet

GROVER, ELLIOTT & CO. LTD. 2017-0944-0 Page 14

We have been provided with preliminary drawings prepared by 13 Design Group for the

purposes of renovation of the existing building (see addenda). They provide for a built-out

lower level with a master bedroom with ensulte, two additional bedrooms and a laundry room.

The main floor is opened up to provide for a larger kitchen, dining and living room area, along

with a two-piece powder room. The shop area is largely built out to Include a media and games

room with two-piece washroom, along with three smaller rooms Intended for use as an office,

hobby room and gym. A typical two-car garage Is also provided. A fully renovated exterior is

also indicated in the pia~s.

In the absence of technical studies by experts, we have assumed that:

• no latent defect or deferred maintenance exists;

• the improvements are structurally sound;

• the services to the Improvements are sound and adequate;

• the roof, electrical and mechanical facilities are sound and adequate for their

purpose;

• the subject Improvements contain no environmentally hazardous substances; and

GROVER, ELLIOTT & CO. LTD. 2017-0944-0 Page 15



• the subJect improvements are free from Insect and rodent Infestation or dry rot,

moulds, mildews or the conditions that might give rise to any.

We make no representations on these matters. A building condition surveylcould confirm these

assumptions. We have also assumed that: 4

• no encroachments exist Involving the property lines or requlr~d building or utility

setbacks; and 1,

• no outstanding work orders or regulatory Infractions exist.
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View to west from Lot 4

View to southwest from Lot 4
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Level clearing on lat 5
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Kitchen
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Bedroom

Laundry room
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Shop/garage
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The subject property is zoned Rl-A, Singie Family Residential. The intent of the zone is to allow

for single-family development. Complete details of this zoning designation are In the Sunshine

Coast Regional District Zoning Bylaw No. 337, as amended to date. A brief summary of this zone

follows. A copy of the Rl-A schedule is included In the addenda.

The subject is also designated as C for subdivision purposes. The C Subdivision District allows

for a minimum parcel area of 2,000 square metres, or 21,528 square feet.

Other municipal,policiea exist for matters such as building codes, heritage, parking and loading.

The subJ'ecf dwelling's setback from,the hl~h water mark Is estimated at approximately four or

five metres, which is less than'currently required. Based on the information available to us, with

the exception of the siting, which Is assumed to be grandfathered, the existing use of the

property appears to conform to the land use controls.

Most provincial municipalities have also adopted official community plans, area plans and other

planning devices that supplement their zoning bylaws. The process for developing an Official

Community Plan ("OCP") typically involves considerable social, economic and demographic

research and an extensive pubic consultation process'.,~CPs serve to express municipal

~ ,
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aspirations for future land uses within its borders, guide capl[al budg2ting and direct the

handling of rezoning applications. In British Columbia, municipalities genprelly do not rezone

properties for a use or development scale that is contrary to the OCP; rezonings of this nature

first require an amendment to the^OCP, -

The OCP designation of the subject is Residential A, which is consistent with the present zoning

schedule.

Municipal councils can change only some aspects tlf the land use controls that apply to certain

properties. Provincial, regional and federal controls that also affect developlment include:

• environmental and fisheries regalatlons,

• heritage policies, I
• public health, building and fire codes, and ',
• highways and transit plans. i

We obtained the Information on land use controls contained In this r2port from the local

government webslte at the time of the appraisal, Unless specifically mentidned herein, we have

not verified with municipal officials this information, which we assume wad correct and current

on the date obtained. In the event of change, our conclusions herein might',no longer be valid.

The mandate for this appraisal did not require. research into all of the land use regulations that

possibly apply. Further, existing land use controls do not always bind ;regulators, who can

develop new policy and rescind or modify existing land use policies. Municipal planning officials

and Independent planning consultants can assist with specific questions on land use matters.

_ __— __~
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HIGHEST AND BEST U$E
i ?. ,i

Anacrepted definition of;highest an,d best.use Is:,

The reasonably probable use of:a` {~ropeny, That, is physically possible, legally
permissible, financially feasible, and maxima~ly~productive, and that results In

the highest value.

The highest and best use of a property is an economit concept that measures the interaction of

four criteria: legal permissibility, physical possibility„ financial feasibility and maximum

profitability. Estimating the highest and best use of a property Is a critical appreisal component

that provides the valuation context within which market participants and appraisers select and

analyze comparable market Information.

An appraiser considers the highest and best use of the property "as If vacant' separately from

the highest and best use of.the property "as improved". This is because the highest and best

use of the site, as if vacant and available For development, determines the value of the land,

even if the property's existing Improvements may not represent the highest and best use of the

site.

Highest and Best Use as if Vacant Land

An accepted definition of the highest and best use of land or site Is:

the use among all reasonable alternative uses that yields the highest present
land value, after payment for labour, capital and co-ordination. The conclusion
assumes that the parcel of land is vacant or can be made vacant by demolishing

any improvements. s

Zoning policies In place contemplate use of the property as single family residential, pursuant to

the R1-A; 5fngle Family Residential schedule. It Is designated as Residential A In the OCP.

Changing the land use. controls requires approval by munidpal council of a rezoning. Given the

nature of development in 'the area and thR pattern of municipal land use policy, we consider

the prospect of achieving a rezoning to a higher use or density as unlikely.

For the purposes of our analysis, we have assumed that the non-financial title limitations do not

restrict the use of the site beyond the restraints of the land use controls.

Market values and rents for single-family properties in the neighbourhood are sufficient to

retire the cost of construction, adequately compensate thg,developer and to provide a positive

return to the underlying land.

~ Canadian Uniform Standards, 2.33.
S lbid, 14.33A ~ ~ '~ .,
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The site size, utility servicing, exppsure and topography generally suit the requirements of

development. eased on She surrounding development pattern. we have assumed that soil

conditions could support development as contemplated under the land use controls without

undue or costly site preparation.

Consequently, we conclude that the highest and best use of the properties, as if vacant and

available, entafis single-family residential development pursuant to thel,applicable land use

controls, as market conditions permit. ',

HI¢hest and Best Use as Improved

The highest and best use of a property as improved is: ~,

the use that should be made of an improved property in Ilght of the existing

improvements and the Ideal improvement described at the conclusion of the ,

analysis of highest and best use as though vacant.b I

An owner would renovate or retain an existing property "as Is" whllA the improvements

continue to contribute to the total market value or until the return from, new improvements

would more than offset the cost of demolishing the ezlsting development. ~,

For the objective of this analysis, we have assumed that present improvements comply with the

requirements of the zoning bylaws and other land use controls.

The usual opportunities to enhance the utility of an existing improvementinvolve changing the

use (typically requiring a change to the zoning), substantially renovating the structure and/ar

constructing an addition. While the existing improvements on Lot 6 are belbw a standard that is

fitting of the subjects waterfront location, they do contribute in that they provide a good

foundation for a renovation to a higher standard. We note that the proximity to the high water

mark would not be achievable for a new development, thus retainingland renovating the

existing dwelling will allow for the best siting, along with significant cosh savings over a new

build.

Based on the above, the highest and best use of Lot 6 is for single-family residential purposes,

pursuant to the applicable land use controls, with renovation of the existing dwelling to a

higher standard, as economic conditions permit.

Larry Dybvig, et al., The Appraisal of Rea! Estale Third Canadian Edition (Vancouver: UBC Real Estate Division,
2010) 12.11.
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Introduction

The mandate for this appraisal. entails an estimate of market value to aid with first mortgage

financing. There are three methods to estimate market value: the income approach, the cost

approach and the direct comparison approach.

Single-family residential lots and dwellings typically trade based on their physical characteristics

and value, so the direct comparison approach Is most applicable. Given the subject's lack of

Income generation and the age of the Improvements in place on Lot 6, the Income approach

and cost approach have limited apptication.

Valuation of Lot 6

Lot 6 is improved with asingle-family dwelling and shop, with a finished floor area of 1,120

square feet and an unfinished floor area of 2,290 square feet (including 1,170 square feet of

shop area).

Where sufficient data are available, direct comparison is a commonly used method to estimate

the market value of single-family dwellings. This technique entails a comparative analysis of

transactions involving essentially similar properties and market conditions. We surveyed the

Pender Harbour area for evidence of sales, listings or offers to purchase on properties that

provide useful benchmarks of value for the subject property with an emphasis on:

• recent transactions;

• waterfront setting;

• similar in size and shape;

comparable improvements in place; and,

locatipn.

The result of our research is summarized as follows:
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m Referring to the table on the preceding page, the nine comparable sales occurred between
N

a September 2016 and July 2017. All of the properties are waterfront homes located in the

Pender Harbour area. They show sale and list prices ranging from $989,900 to $1,689,000; this

is a broad range that should bracket the subject value. Slte sizes range from 0.34 to 3.1 acres

and water frontage ranges from 55 feet to 260 feet. Residence sizes range from 1,490 to 4,200

square feet. Detailed MLS sheets are provided In the addenda.
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Market conditions have been steadily improving on the Sunshine Coast since 2015. However,

we note that the marketplace for detached homes on the Sunshine Coast has two distinct

segments: full time residences and recreational properties. The subJect falls Into the

recreational category, and it Is not clear that recreational properties have increased at the same

rate as full time residences, which predominate In Sechelt and Glbsons. Nevertheless, it Is our

opinion that modest upward adjustment Is required to most sales within the data set.

Index No: 1 pertains to the September 2016 salt of a large,-but irregularly shaped lot located at

the south end of Gerrans Bay. The views and water ftoRtage are significantly Inferior, and the

Improvements in place contribute little value to the property. Upward adjustment Is also

appropriate for market conditions. Overall, a value above $1,060,000 is Indicated for the

subject.
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Index No. 2 relates to the September 2016 sale of two adjacent propertleg located on Gerrans

Bay Road. The Improvements In place were modest and the view and topography are

significantly inferior compared to the subject; however, these factors are oFfset by the potential

to build a second home on the adJacent lot. Overall, value near or slightly',below 51,350,000 is

indicated for the subJect.

Index No. 3, which sold fn October 2016 for $1,575,000, is a triangular shaped lot, improved

with a modern house. The home has northerly views from the north side bf Francis Peninsula.

While the views and frontage are inferior to the subJect, the home Is slgnifitantly superior, thus

the sale price is a clear upper limit.

Index No. 4 Is an Irregularly shaped mid-bank waterfront property located at the end of a cul-

de-sac In the subJect's Daniel Point area of Garden Bay. It is in close proximity to the subject

and offers good southerly views. The home appears to 6e in good condition, but is somewhat

dated in terms of aesthetics. Overall, the Improvements are superior, while the v(ews and

topography are inferior. Upward adjustment Is also necessary for market conditions. Overall, a

value above $989,900 is Indicated.

Index No. 5 Is another property located in the Daniel Point area, on Sea Otter Road. It sold in
i

April 2017 for $1,295,000. The home in place wasext~nsively renovaked In 2008, and is

significantly superior to the subject ' impPovements. 'The ! property I offers very good

southwesterly views, though topography is InfeYior. Overell, a slightly IovJier value Is indicated

for the subject. ',

Index No. 6 Is located on the west side of Francis Peninsula, offering good west and

southwesterly views. Like Index No. 4, the improvements are spacious and appear to be in good

condition but are dated. There does not appear to be potential far a dock and access to the

water Is very difficult. Overall, a value above $1,008,000 is indicated for the'subJect.

Index No. 7 relates to the July 2017 sale of astrata-titled waterfront prope,'rty on the southeast

side of Francis Peninsula. Theproperty,has low to mid-bank frontage artd no potential for a

dock. The Improvements are superior. Slight upward adjustment is appropriate to account for

the strata-titled tenure. Overall a similar or slightly higher value is indicated, for the sub)ect.

Index No. 8 is a current listing for a waterfront property in the Middlepoint,'area, to the south of

Pender Harbour. The lot is larger, though it is very long and narrow, withian average width of

approximately 75 feet. The improvements in place are modest and contrib}~te little value to the

property. It has a boat launch and boat house, but no dock. Overall, th~ property is slightly

inferior to the subject; however, this factor is offset by the list status.

GROVER, ELLIOTf & CO. LTD. 2017-0944-0 ', Page 32

Index No. 9 pertains to another property on Sea Otter Road, In the subject's Daniel Polnt area.

It Is improved with a newer home and has low-bank frontage providing for good access to the

water. Overall, the asking price of $1,689,000.Is a clear upper Iimlt due to the superior

Improvements in place and list status.

Based on the above, market value for the subject will Ile above $1,060,000, as indicated by

Indices 1 and 6, and slightly below $1,300,000, as Indicated by Indices 2, 5 and 8. In our view,

after consideration for the subject's excellent views, generous frontage and Improvements In

place, valuation Iles in the order of $1,200,000 to $1,300,000. We have settled at the midpoint

of this range, at 51,250,000.

Valuation of Lots 4 and 5

An appraiser may value land that is vacant and available for development in various ways:

1) Direct comparison

2) Allocation

3) Extraction

4) Income capitalization, divided into two direct capitalization techniques:

a) Land residual technique, and
p) Ground rent 4apitalization

SJTWvo yield capi,talizaClon tedhniques:
a) biscounted cash flow',analysls (subdivision development analysis), and
b) LeasQd fee/leasehold valuation

For single-family lots, direct comparison Is a commonly used method to estimate the market

value of land as if vacant and available for development. This technique entails a comparetive

analysis of transactions involving essentially similar properties and market conditions. We

surveyed the Pender Harbour area and surrounding areas for evidence of sales, listings or offers

to purchase on properties that provide useful benchmarks of value for the subject property

with an emphasis on:

• recent transactions;

simi{ar in size and shape;

• similar frontage;

• similar zoning; and,

• comparable location and views.

The result of our research is summarized as follows:
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Index Address' Area
_

Sale Date Sale Price

Lot
area

acres)

Water

frontage

(feet

'Ranking.

1 10062 Lost Lane Secret Cove Apr-16 875,000 0.52 195

II

Inferior

2 Lot 9 Welcom Wynd Secret Cove May-17 775,000 0.65 115 Inferior

3 Lot i lska Road Mlddlepolnt May-17 1,100,000 3.14 I 200 Superior

4 4147 Frands

Peninsula Road

Frands

Peninsula

lun-17 647,500 1.40 '..

~'

246 Inferior

5 Lot 1, Sea Otter Road Garden Bay Aug-17 515,000 0.43 , 140 Inferior

6 Williams Island Pender

Harbour

Aug-17 850,000 2.55 ~I 750 Inferior

7 107195unshlne Coast

Highway

Secret Cove Llst 988,000 2.50 'i 150 Similar

Subject Lot 4 1.084 ' 320

Subject Lot 5 0.745 ~ ' 281

The seven comparables include six sales that occurred between April 2016 and August 2017, at

prices ranging from $515,000 to $1,100,000. Lot sizes range from 0.43 to 3.14 acres and

frontages range from 115 to 750 feet. ',

Index No. 1 relates to a proposed half-acre waterfront lot located In Secret Cove. The property

has 195' of mid-bank frontage with northerly views. Upward adjustment is required for market

conditions, along with the properties smaller size and Inferior views, though it benefits from

closer proximity to Sechelt and the Langdale Ferry. Overall, a value above 5875,000 is indicated

for the subJectlots. ~I
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Index No. 1

Index No. 2 Is a bareland strata lot located in the Secret Cove area. It sold in May 2017 for

$775,000. ,While' it benefits from common amenities, including a 21' boat slip, this factor Is

more than offset by the ~smal4er size and Inferior high-bank frontage.

Index No. 2

Index No. 3 refers to a long and narrow lot located on Iska Road In the Mlddlepolnt area, to the

south of Pender Harbour. It sold in May 2017 for $1,100,000. The property has 200' of low-bank

frontage and good westerly views. A portion of the property lies on the upland side of Iska

Road. The subject lots have superior topography and comparable frontage and views; however,

a slightly lower value is indicated for the subject lots due to their smaller size.
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Index No. 4, which Is located on the north side of Francis Peninsula and Sold in June 2017 for

$647,500, Is a clear lower Ilmit due to the Inferior topography and views, and lower sun

exposure.

Index No. 4

Index No. 5 refers to the recent sale of a 0.43-acre lot in the subject neighbourhood of Daniel

Point. The property has inferior topography compared to the subject, and extensive frontage
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along Lee Road, reducing .privacy, but offers good southwesterly views. Overell, a value well

above 5515,000 Is Indicated for the subJect.

Index No. 5

Index No. 6 pertains to the recent sale of a small island located at the entrance to Pender

Harbour. The island measures 2.55 acres and has 750' of low-bank frontage. It does not have

water or electricity, and access will be difficult with obtaining approval for a dock. While

difficult to compare directly to the subject, in our view, the prestige of owning a private Island Is

more than offset by the i~feripr access and services. AS,'such, a value above $850,000 Is

indicated for the subjeck. ~
~ ,i ,
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Index No. 6

Index No. 7 relates to a proposed 2.0-acre waterfront lot in the Halfmoon tlay area. The lot .s to

be subdivided from a larger 6.9 acre parcel. The property has law-bank wafer frontage reported

at 150 feet and overs good southwesterly views. In our view, the list price of 5988,000 Is a

useful Indicator as the larger size and Iist status are offset by the inferior topography and lesser

frontage.

GROVER, ELLIOTT & CO. LTD. 2017-0944.0 Page 38

Based on the above, value for the subject lots wlll Ile. slightly above $875,000, as Indicated by

Indices 1, 2, 4 and 6, and below $1,100,000, as indicated by Index No. 3. After consideration for

the subject lots' individual sizes, frontages, topographies, views, and servicing in place, we

estiri'iate that values will lie above the midpoint of the established range, In the order of

$850,000 to $900,000. Lot 5 offers a more south-westerly view exposure and a slightly larger

usable area, thus we have adopted values of $900,000 for Lot 4 and $950,000 for Lot 5.

Summary and Conclusion

Our analysis of the property relied solely on the direct comparison approach, which considers

market evidence to establish value and presumes that the property sells on the date of

valuation, and IgnorOs Pnarketing,.and holding costs.

Based on our analysis of~ the Su~b~jeat,~ we gonclude that the market values of Lots 4, 5 and 6,

Packalen Boulevard, as at October 13, 2017, are as follows:

lot Value

4 $900,000:
5 $950,000
6 $1,250,000

Dotal $3,100,000
~~,

The value estimate for the aggregate project is shown on a gross aggregate quantum with no

allowances made for marketing,., prorttot~on,~Cohirrii's~si`on5, etc.
;~ ' ' ~ ~ '~ ~ r ~, ~ ,

The appraisal of Yhis property is more d{fficult than usual. The. subject properties offer a unique

combination of size; fronts@e, views; topography and services, and we were unable to locate

highly comparable transactions. The mar&in of uncertainty associated with our value estimate is

tfius greater than usual.
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Exposure Tlme

Exposure time Is the time a property remains on the market. In an appraisal, the term means

the estimated length of time an owner would likely need io market the appraised property

Interest before the hypothetical consummation of a sale at market value pn the effective date

of the appraisal. An opinion of exposure time is a retrospective estimate that has its basis in

an analysis of past events assuming a competitive and open market,

The exposure period occurs Immediately before the effective date of the appraisal. The concept

of reasonable exposure time encompasses not only adequate,. sufficient end reasonable time,

but also adequate, sufficient and reasonable. marketing effo[i. Exposure itime is different For

various types of real estate and value ranges and under var(ous market conditions.

In our view, the subject property ought to [rede within a time typical for its market. As the MLS

sheets provided in the addenda show, exposure times for the comparable properties ranged

from a few days to almost three years. For the subject properties, we estimate that a

reasonable exposure period will be 12 months, though it may be longer if all three lots are

listed at the same time. This time estimate assumes no known or suspected defects, reasonable

pricing and professional rr4arketing. It does not include the time for rormal due diligence, nor

the closing time after an agreement in principle.

~ Canadian Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice: Appraisal Institute of Canada, 2014, Ottawa,
Ont.), 7.7.1

GROVER, ELLIOTT & CO. LTD. 2017-0944-0 ' Page 40

CERTIFICATION
Re: Lots 4, 5 and 6, Packalen Boulevard, Garden Bay, British Columbia

We hereby certify that, except as otherwise.noted in the preceding analysis, to the best of our

knowledge and belief:

- the statements of fact contained In this report are true and correct;

- the reported analyses, opinions and conclusions are limited only by the reported

assumptidns an.dJimiting conditions, and are our personal Impartial, and unbiased

professional analyses,-opindons and conclusions;

- we' have no presenti~of' ~irospectivp interest or bias in the subJect property, and no

personal interest or bias with respect to the parties involved;

- our engagement in and compensation for this assignment were no[ contingent upon

developing or reporting predetermined results, the amount of the value estimate, or a

conclusion favouring the client;

- our analyses, opinions and conclusions were developed, and this report has been

prepared, in conformity with the Canadian Uniform standards;
~: .. i

- , we have the knowledge a'nd ~xper}ence~to complete this assignment competently;
4

- as of the date bf tNis' repprt, the ~ùhdersigned; i; a member In good standing of The

Appraisal InsCitute 6f Canada, and 'had fulfllle~J [he requirements of the Continuing

Professional Development Prqgram for designated members;

no one provided significant professional assistance to the person signing this report;

Brent Mclaren personally inspected the subject property on September 4, 2015;

- based upon the data, analyses and conclusions contained herein, the market value of

the interests in the properties destrlbed, as at October 13, 2017, is estimated at:

THREE MILLION, ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS

$3,100,000

.~~y I./

ent McLaren, B.Comm., AACI, P.App.

Grover, Elliott & Co Ltd.

October 18, 2017
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ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS' Appendix 1

Re: Lots 4, 5 and 6, Packalen Boulevard, Garden Bay, British Columbia

The only party who may rely on the opinions expressed in this report is the client, even where

the report is for financing purposes. Where the client is a lender, Its botrower and the loan

Insurer may also rely on this report. This report assumes that only the addressee will rely upon

it, and only for the intended use stated herein. No one else may rely on th~s report without the

written consent of the appraiser, which we may not provide retroactively. We expressly deny

any legal liability for unauthorized reliance and for any other use.

When preparing an appraisal for lending purposes, appraisers do not investigate if the

prospective loan and applicant satisfy prudent loan underwriting criteria. Correspondingly, we

assume no responsibility forloans made where the borrower lacks the ability or motivation to

repay the loan, or where the lender has not followed prudent lending ',practices. When we

authorize a lender to rely on this report, we grant such authorization subject to the lender

completing a thorough due diligence investigation, which reasonably concludes that the

borrower has the Intention and capacity to repay the loan.

The basis of the opinions and estimates herein is information gathered From various, sources

considered reliable and believed to be correct.'

We assume no responslbiFity for factoV's rel~ting'to the legal descrlptiom state of title or for

unapparent conditions of the property not brought to our attention that might affect value.

We have included plans and -sketches for visual reference only. We cannot assume

responsibility for the accuracy of such Iliustretions where the basis was third party sources.

The client or Identified third parties provided figures in th!s report relating to land and floor

areas unless stated otherwise. Incorrect land and floor areas could render our analysis and

conclusions invalid.

The economic conditions and outlook current at the date of valuation form the basis of our

opinions and conclusion of value. Because market conditions, including economic, social and

political factors change rapidly; and, on occasion, without warning, It could be misleading to

rely on the market value estimate expressed herein as of any other date except with further

advice from the appraiser, for which advice we will accept no responsibility unless made

formally and confirmed in writing.

We undertook no investigation with the local zoning office, the fire department, the building

inspector, the health department or any other government regulatory agency except as

expressly described In this report. The subject property must comply with such government

regulations. Any noncompliance may affect market value. Confirming compliance could require

further investigations.

We were not provided with studies of hazardous materials or contaminated land, and we were

not authorized to commission such studies. We therefore offer no opinion with respect to the

status of the lands or soils. We assume no responsibility for any such conditions or for any

specialized expertise or engineering knowledge required to discover, remove or eliminate

them. We recommend retaining an expert in this field If doubt exists about the quality of the

soils or groundwater.

The appraiser is not qualified to comment. on environmental issues [ha[ may affect the market

value of the property appraised, including but not limited [o pollution or contamination of land,

buildings, water, groundwa4er or air. Unless expressly stated, the property is assumed to be

free and"clear of pollutants aid cgntaminants, Including but not limited to moulds or mildews

or the condiCions that might"give rise to either, and In compliance with all regulatory

enviionmental 'requirement3, gove~rriment~ or otherwise, and free of any environmental

condition, past, present or future, that might affect the market value of the property appraised.

If the party relying on this report requires information about environmental Issues then that

party is cautioned to retain an expert qualified in such issues. We expressly deny any legal

liability relating to the effect of environmental issues on the market value of the property

appraised.

Except as this report specifically notes otherwise, our conclusions presume that the appraised

property is free and clear of all liens or encumbrances. ~hd Is capable of attracting normal

mortgage financing. Our valuation excludes the cost to retire the mortgage obligation.

Our report presumes that adequate Fife, Peril and IialaIlRy in$urance are available to cover any

reasonable use of the'property, at' [oasts end te~fn~s ttlat heve been typical over the years.

The liability of Grover, Elliott & Co.'Ltd. for a claim related'to professional service provided

pursuant to this service in either contract negligent misrepresentation or tart, including the

owner's, officers, employees or subcontractors of the firm is limited to the extent that such

liability is covered by the Appraisal Institute of Canada's errors and omissions insurance In

effect from time to time, which is available to indemnify the company and its appraisers at the

time the claim Is made and not more than two years after the services are rendered.

No one should rely on this report in any context other than that in which we present It. Use In

excerpted or partial form could mislead.

Possession of this report, or a copy of it, does not carry the right to reproduction or publication,

in full or in part. No one other than the identified intended user can use this report for Its

stated purpose. No one can use this report for any other purpose without our written tonsent.

Exceptions exist for due process of law and for confidential review by the Appraisal Institutes of

Canada and the United States.

Attendance at any legal proceedings with respect to this report, and any fees and expenses for

preparation and attendance requires our prior agreement. However, neither this nor any other

limiting condition is an attempt to limit the use that a judicial body might make of this report

should it properly become evidence in duly constituted proceedings. In such a case, the judicial

body will decide the use of the report [hat best serves the administration of Justice.

This report is valid only iF It bears the original signature of the author.
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We cannot monitor changes to our reports once they leave our office, nor can we prevent

changes, additions or deletions in copies of our reports. We recommend that people Intending

to rely on our report do so only after reading an original copy in Its entirety. With the prior

consent of our client, we will provide an original of this report.
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NRuiro~
He~ietratlon Number'
R~~istrn~inn Dntr. m~tl Tm~e:
Ragisler~ad Ow~wr.

Rarnnrksc

Duplicate Indefeasible 71t1a

Transfrr~

Panding Applications

711k tMtlr~t.rr: CM!~~:MI

2g15-(iA-tB. a0:d8:66
RxrauesWr: Graver Ell3nit.

ASSIC+NM~N7 pF RENTS
CAAb9g683
2(115-p6-11 1&2G
C/IM9RIDGEhK7R7Y3AGE INVE57M~NTC6FtPORATI~N
INCORPORA714N NO. BCA7832d3
INTERltUA

NONE OUTS7ANbING

NQNE

NONE

r[ri e SennrN rrttMr o ur a ~~r;u

ZONING SCHEDULE Ap~eudix 3

R7AZONE (SINGLE FAMILY RESIgENl"IALj

Permitted UsBs

Fp2,1 (1} Except n~ ~ermElEecl In Pert V, hulldinps end 5ln~r,Eurna on percAls Z,WO
square meters or legs hi the R1A zone [;MaIF bs used tar the following
purposes onty;

(a) one air~yle tarttily dweli3i~ per parcel.

(2~ On pArcels Rxcasdi~ 1,00(1 square m~alres the addlllonal permltlxd uaeA
are:

(a) be8 arttl ereaktttst home,

Dwelling Uni4s Fer Parcel

8 2.2 Nn more khan ane dwallinQ may Ex~ located nn a parcel.

Sltlng of SVucturvs

6g2.3 Na strueture may de loaatad wfU~lr~:

(oa 5 metros of ~ front parcel line;
(b) 2 metres of a rt~ar parse! lire;
(c~ L5 mattes of e side parcel Ilne; or
(d) 4,5 mottos o€an exterior side parcel line,

Wldilt of Owelflngs

Go2.4 No buUding conta9ning g dwelling mny hnva a wl~lh less then 9 metres.

Patcel Coverage

602:5 Willa the excepiiQn of public ulllitp duikiir~s and Plnictures on part:els fleas
ihan 1p0 squcere mares, the pamet coverage of all hullAfngs end
structures shell rr~t exceed 35 percent.

N kanAAMk~*tnlh.nl]~IZnii"9~I3eWr n9671aw 1975d1VAd x037T,i'!74g1R~FaM1•PF frsniMihMmA~~ it
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A Web Query -Assessment Roll Report https://bconline-webquery.ncassessmen~.ca~ocaw~~w,uu~~~...a...~~..

Assessment Roll Report ~ ~ o

Disclaimer

This information is obtained from various sources and is determined as of the specific
dates set out in the Assessment Act. As a result, BC Assessment cannot warrant that
it is current or accurate, and provides it for your convenience only. Use of this
information without verification from original sources is at your own risk.

OBC Assessment

Report Date: Nov 02, 2017 Report Time: 09:20:27 AM
Folio: 24371-0033 For:` PI69044

Roll Year: 2017 Roll Number: 06165.315
Area: 08 - ]urisdiction: 746
School District: 46 = -
Neighbourhood: 559 - HALFMOON BAY-EGMONT WATERFRONT
Property Address:PACKALEN BLED SECHELT BC _. -

Owner Name: ALL CANADIAiV- - -- -
INVESTNtENT- # bf Owners: 1
CORPORATION

Owner Address: 2-781 MARINE PARK DR NE SALMO~t. ARM BC V1E 2W7

Document No: CA4598539

,~

PID: 026-192-993 _ ~ p E _
Legal Description: Lot 4, Plan .BCP15562, District Lot 3923, Group 1, New ~ ~ E

Westminster Land District, & AN UNDIVIDED 3/12TH INTEREST ~ ~ ~
~
; ~o

IN LOT 7; RPBCP15563 c ~ ~ m
,~-; : ¢ aa

. ,mE
2017 Value $ s ~ '~~
Property Class
Residential

Land
~~ ' ° ~$728000 ~~ :~

Total Actual Value: $728000 om~
c

~~2016 Value
~
~ ~

3Property Class Land ~~ E
Residential $750000 ~ ~

~
' c~ -

Total Actual Value: $750000 f~~' `a

2015 Value
Property Class Land
Residential $750000.

Total Actual Value: $750000

Manual Class:
Actual Use: 001 -Vacant Residential Less Than 2 -Acres _
Tenure: 01 -Crown-Granted

Land Dimension: 1.084 Land Dimension Type: Aces

Sales: Number Description
#1 A SINGLE PROPERTY, VACANT SALE occurred on 11 Aug 2015.

This was a CASH sale and the price was 750,000. The
document #was CA4598539.

#2 ANON-SALE occurred on 10 Sep 2014. The document #was
CA3952323.

#3 ANON-SALE occurred on 24 Jan 2005. The document #was
BX405847.

Additional Owners:

No Additional Owners

Associated PIDs:

~~~- . ___ -- 11/2/2017 9:20 AM
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A Web Query -Assessment Roll Report https://bconline-webquery.bcassessment.caibcawgiconnrm~ranaaraic..

Assessment Roll Report

Disclaimer 1 9

This information is obtained from various sources and is determined as of the specific
dates set out in the Assessment Act. As a result, BC Assessment cannot warrant that
it is current or accurate, and provides it for your convenience only. Use of this
information without verification from original sources is at your own risk.

OBC Assessment

Report Date: Nov 02, 2017 _ Report Time: 09:21:29 AM
Folio: 24371-0033 _` For: PI69044

Roll Year: 2017 - `Roll Number: 06165.320
Area: 08 = ]urisdiction: 746
School District: 46
Neighbourhood: 559 - HALFMOON BAY-EGMONT WATERFRONT
Property Address: PACKALEN BLVD SFCNELT BC - _

Owner Name: AiL- CANADIAN INVESTMENT
# of Owners:- 1

CORPORATION
Owner Address: 2-781 MARINE PARK DR NE SALMON ARM BC V1E 2W7

Document No: CA4598540
PID: 026-193-001
Legal Description: Lot 5, Plan BCP15562,_District Lot 3923, Group 1, New __

Westminster Land DistricE, & AN UNDIVIDED 3/12TH INTEREST
IN LOT 7

2017 Value
Property Class Land
Residential $673000

Total Actual Value: $673000

2016 Value
Property Class Land
Residential $716000

Total Actual Value: $716000

2015 Value
Property Class Land
Residential $716000

Total Actual Value: $716000

Manual Class:
Actual Use: 001 -Vacant Residential Less Than 2 Acres
Tenure: 01 -Crown-Granted
ALR:
Land Dimension:.745 Land Dimension Type: Acres

Sales: Number Description
#1 A SINGLE PROPERLY, VACANT SALE occurred on 11 Aug 2015.

This was a CASH sale and the price was 716,000. The
document #was CA4598540.

#2 ANON-SALE occurred on 10 Sep 2014. The document #was
CA3952324.

#3 ANON-SALE occurred on 24 Jan 2005. The document #was
BX405848.

Additional Owners:

No Additional Owners

Associated PIDs:

10€~ — _-_--- - __-----. - 11/2/2017 9:21 AM



;A VJeb Query -Assessment Roll Report hops://bconline-webquery.bcassessment.ca/bcawq/contirm~tanuaraK...

Assessment Roli Report

Disclaimer

This information is obtained from various sources and is determined as of the specific -
dates set out in the Assessment Act. As a result, BC Assessment cannot warrant that
it is current or accurate, and provides it for your convenience only. Use of this
information without verification from original sources is at your own risk.

OBC Assessment

:Report Date: Nov 02, 201 . Report Time: 09:22:04 AM
Folio: 24371-0033 For: PI69044

Roll Year: 2017 - Roll Number: 06165.325
Area: 08 ]urisdiction: 746
School District: 46
Neighbourhood: 559 - HALFMOON:-6RY-EGMONT WATERFRONT
Property Address:4153 PACKALEN BLVD GARDEN BAY BC VON 1S1 -_ . --

Owner Name: ALL CANADIAN -INVESTMENT
# of Owners: 1

CORPORATION
Owner Address: 2-781 MARINE PARK DR NE SALMON ARM BC V1E 2W7 _.

Document No: CA4598541
PID: 026-193-019.
Legal Description: Lot 6, Plan BCP15562, District Lot 3923, Group 1, New _

Westminster Land District, & AN UNDIVIDED 3/12TH INTEREST
IN LOT 7

2017 Value
Property Class Land Improvement
Residential $985000 $157000

Total Actual Value: $1142000

2016 Value
Property Class Land Improvement
Residential $962000 $121000

Total Actual Value: $1083000

2015 Value
Property Class Land Improvement
Residential $962000 $107000

Total Actual Value: $1069000

Manual Class: 0080 - 1 Sty Sfd -After 1930 -Fair.
Actual Use: 000 -Single Family Dwelling
Tenure: 01 -Crown-Granted
ALR:
Land Dimension:.703 Land Dimension Type: Acres

Sales: Number Description
#1 A SINGLE PROPERTY, IMPROVED SALE occurred on 11 Aug

2015. This was a CASH sale and the price was 1,069,000. The
document #was CA4598541.

#2 A SINGLE PROPERTY, IMPROVED SALE occurred on 03 Nov
2005. This was a CASH sale and the price was 200,000. The
document #was 6X15397.

#3 ANON-SALE occurred on 24 Jan 2005. The document #was
6X405849.

Additional Owners: Associated PIDs:

No Additional Owners

{ ~ --_ - -_- __ _. _ 11/2/2017 9:22 AM
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:A Web Query -Assessment Roll Report https://bconline-webquery.bcassessment.ca~~cawq~cvn~u~u~~~~...

Assessment Roll Report 1

Disclaimer

This information is obtained from various sources and is determined as of the specific
dates set out in the Assessment Act. As a result, BC Assessment cannot warrant that
it is current or accurate, and provides it for your convenience only. Use of this
information without verification from original sources is at your own risk.

OBC Assessment

- Report Date: Nov 02, 2017 °Report Time: AM 
22:36

Folio: 24371-0033 For:. PI69044

Roll Year: 2017 Roll Number: 06165.693
Area: 08 Jurisdiction: 746

,s .,
~

r-.
School District: 46 > ~
Neighbourhood: 550 - PEND€R HARBOUR ~ ~ ~
Property Address: 13562 LEE RD GARDEN BAY BC VON 1S1 o

Owner Name: ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT

~

~
C

o

~E

~

s

: ~
# of Owners: 1

CORPORATION
5
'o

3
~!

~
~

: ~ ~
: Q a

Owner Address: 2-781 MARINE PARK DR NE SALMON ARM BC V1E 2W7 ~ ` ~ ~ c ~

Document No: CA4598538
~

~

S

~`

~

?''

YU

 ̀o
PID: 027-093-387

~`Legal Description: Lot 184, Plan BCP30066, District Lot 3923, Group 1, New ~ ' ~.m
~' ~ ~Westminster Land District '7 ~ -~ ;Nry

:~ ~3
2017 Value
Property Class Land Improvement t~ o ; Q
Residential $279000 $270000 ~

Total Actual Value: $549000 y n

~2016 Value
Property Class Land Improvement
Residential $225000 $219000

Total Actual Value: $444000

2015 Value
Property Class Land Improvement
Residential $202000 $219000

Total Actual Value: $421000

Manual Class: 8000 -Non-Manualized Structures
Actual Use: 062 - 2 Acres Or More (Seasonal Dwelling)
Tenure: O1 -Crown-Granted
ALR:
Land Dimension:2.58 Land Dimension Type: Acres .

Sales: Number Description
#1 A SINGLE PROPERTY, IMPROVED SALE occurred on 11 Aug

2015. This was a CASH sale and the price was 421,000. The
document #was CA4598538.

#2 ANON-SALE occurred on 10 Sep 2014. The document #was
CA3952322.

#3 ANON-SALE occurred on 15 May 2007. The document #was
BB400154.

Additional Owners:

No Additional Owners

Associated PIDs:

0€-1 ---_ _ --- _ _-- 11/2/2017 9:22 AM
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Assessment Roll Report

Disclaimer " `~

This information is obtained from various sources and is determined as of the specific
dates set out in the Assessment Act. As a result, BC Assessment cannot warrant that
it is current or accurate, and provides it for your convenience only. Use of this
information without verification from original sources is at your own risk.

Oc BC Assessment

23:04
Report Date: Nov 02, 2017 - Report Time: AM

Folio: 24371-0033 For: PI69044

Roll Year: 2017 - Roll Number: 06165.520
Area: 08 - -]urisdiction: 746
School District: 46
Neighbourhood: 550 - PEND€R HARBOUR
Property Address:BC -

Owner Name: ALL-CANADIAN INVESTMENT
# of Owners: 1

CORPORATION
Owner Address: Z-781 MARINE PARK DR NE SALMON ARM BC V1E 2W7

Document No: CA4598537
PID: 026-169-436
Legal Description: Lot 137; Klan BCP15556, District Lot 3923, Group 1, New

Westminster Land District

2017 Value
Property Class Land
Residential $66200

Total Actual Value:- $66200

2016 Value
Property Class Land
Residential $72900

Total Actual Value: $72900

2015 Value
Property Class Land
Residential $67000

Total Actual VaFue: $67000

Manual Class:
Actual Use: 001 -Vacant Residential Less Than 2 Acres
Tenure: 01 -Crown-Granted
ALR:
Land Dimension: 23907 Land Dimension Types Square Feet

Sales: Number Description
#1 A SINGLE PROPERTY, VACAI~T-SALE occurred on 11 Aug 2015.

This was a CASH sale and the price was 75,800. The document
# was CA4598537.

#2 ANON-SALE occurred on 10 Sep 2014. The document #was
CA395232L

#3 ANON-SALE occurred on 24 Jan 2005. The document #was
BX105639.

Additional Owners:

No Additional Owners

Associated PIDs:

l of i ___-___ - ---- _ - 11/2/2017 9:23 AM
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This is Exhibit ..f'........ referred to in the affidavit of

!1.~ :hl?,~.~.......a.~ ~~... sworn (or armed)........

before me on .~ ~ ~'.:'. '..~..~ ~j [dd/mmm/yyyy].... ..... .... ....

................~~~~'.•••"•• f................................................
A Commissioner for taking Affidavits

within British Columbia



SUPREME CO e d e - u e urt i ~ e 
I 1 sOF BRITISH COLUMBIA p ' 'o e o led usVANCQUVER REGISTRY

OCT 1 ~ 2017
No. H-17036

Vancouver Registry

SUPREME COURT OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

BENVEEN:

FISGARD CAPITAL CORPORATION

Petitioner

I_I

ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION
VAN MAREN FINANCIAL LTD.

Respondents

AMENDED PETITION TO THE COURT

ON NOTICE TO:

ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION
800 — 885 West Georgia Street
Vancouver, BC V6C 3H1

VAN MAREN FINANCIAL LTD.
202 — 45793 Luckakuck
Chilliwack, BC V2R 5S3

This proceeding is brought for the relief set out in Part 1 below by the person named as
Petitioner in the style of proceedings above.

If you intend to respond to this Petition, you or your lawyer must

a) file a Response to Petition in Form 67 in the above-named registry of this
Court within the time for Response to Petition described below, and

b) serve on the Petitioner

i) 2 copies of the filed Response to Petition, and

ii) 2 copies of each filed Affidavit on which you intend to rely at the
Hearing.

ORDERS, INCLUDING ORDERS GRANTING THE RELIEF CLA{MED, MAY BE
MADE AGAINST YOU, WITHOUT ANY. FURTHER NOTICE TO YOU, 1F YOU FAIL
TO FILE THE RESPONSE TO THE PETITION WITHIN THE TIME FOR RESPONSE.

{0084b165;1}
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TIME FOR RESPONSE TO THE PETITION

A Response to Petition must be filed and served on the Petitioner,

a} if you were. served with the Petition anywhere in Canada, within 21 days
after that service,

b) if you were served with the Petition anywhere in the United States of
America, within 35 days after that service,

c) if you were served with the Pet~ion anywhere else, within 49 days after
that service, or

d) if the time for Response has been set by Order of the Court, within that
time.

(1) THE ADDRESS OF THE REGISTRY IS:

The Supreme Court of British Columbia
The Law Courts
800 Smithe Street
Vancouver, BC V6Z 2E~1

(2) THE ADDRESS FOR SERVICE OF THE PETITIONER IS:

FISGARD CAPITAL CORPORATION c/o
P.O. Box 49130
2900 — 595 Burrard Street
Vancouver B.0 V7X 1J5

Fax number address for service (if any) of the Petitioner:

604-632-4486

E-mail address for service {if any) of the Petitioner.

N/A

(3) THE NAME AND OFFICE ADDRESS OF THE PETITfONER'S LAWYER IS:

Alan A. Frydenlund, Q.C.
OWEN BIRD LAW CORPORATION
P.O. Box 49130
2900 — 595 Burrard Street
Vancouver, BC V7X 1J5

19~

PART 1: ORDERS) SOUGHT

A. A Declaration that a mortgage dated November 30, 2015 made between the

Respondent, ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION, as MorEgagor

toosast~s;i}
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and the Petitioner, FISGARD CAPITAL CORPORATION, as Mortgagee and

registered in the Lower Mainland Land Title Office, in the Province of British

Columbia, on December 3, 2015 under [dumber CA4854128 and renewed by

way of renewal letter dated December 19, 2016 (together the "Mortgage"), is a

mortgage charging the following lands:

North Shore — Squamish Valley Assessment Area
Pender Harbour Fire Protection Distrie~

Parcel Identifier. 026-192-993
Lot 4 and an undivided 3/12th share in Lot 7, District loot 3923 Group 1 New
Westrninster District Plan BCP15562

Parcel Identifier. 026-193-001
Lot 5 and an undivided 3112th share in Lot 7, District Lot 3923 Group 1 New
Westminster District Plan BCP15562

Parcel Identifier. 026-193-019
Lot 6 and an undivided 3/12th share in Lot 7, District Lot 3923 Group 1 New
Wesfiminster District Plan BCP15562

(together, the "Lands")

in priority to the interests therein or claims thereto of the Respondents and their

respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, and any

persons claiming by, through or under them;

~_A Declaration that a general security agreement dated December 1, 2015 made

between the Respondent, ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION, as

Debtor, and the Petitioner, FISGARD CAPfTAL CORPORATION, as the Secured

Party and registered in the Personal Property Registry, in the Province of British

Columbia, on December 3, 2015, under Base Registration Number 9816281 {the

"GSA°) is an agreement charging all of the said Respondent's present and after

acquired personal properEy, assets, undertakings, accounts, inventory,

immovable and leasehold property and a(I proceeds therefrom (hereinafter called

the °Properly") to the Petitioner in priority to the interests therein oc claims thereto

of the Respondents and their respective heirs, executors, administrators,

successors and assigns, and any persons claiming by, through or under them=; I

~~V

{oosasi6s;i }
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or under them'

GSA Declaration that the Respondent, ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT

CORPORATION, has made default under the Mortgage and the GSA (together

the "Security'), as the loan secured by the Security matured June 15, 2017 and

that as a result, the full balance due and owing thereunder is now due and

payable to the Petitioner,

B:~A Declaration that the amount of money due and owing under the Security and

the amount of money required to redeem the Lands GSA Lands and Property is

the sum of $1,273,208.64 as of August 1, 2017-plus per diem interest at the rate

of 8.50% per annum, compounded monthly, from and including August 2, 2017;

€:FAA Declaration that the rate of interest chargeable pursuant to the Security is

8.50% per annum, compounded monthly, not in advance;

(00846165;1}
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~-~4n Order fihat the last date for redemption be six (6) months after the date of

pronouncement of any Order made herein, or such other period of time as this

Court may order,

~:~n Order that the Petitioner do recover judgment against the Respondent, ALL

CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION, in the sum of $1,273,208.64 as at

August 1, 2017, plus interest from and including August 2, 2017, at the rate of

8.50% per annum, compounded monthly, together with the Petitioner's costs of

this proceeding on a special costs basis or, alternatively, a party and party costs

basis pursuant to Scale B or such other scale as may be appropriate;

X1-1. An Order that the Petitioner do recover its costs of this proceeding on a special

costs basis or, alternatively, a party and party costs basis pursuant to Scale B or _

such other scale as may be appropriate and that such costs form a part of the

amount required to redeem the Lands. GSA Lands: and Properly;

~An Order that upon the Respondents, or any of them, paying into Court to the

credit of this proceeding at the Court Registry, Courthouse, 800 Smiths Street,

Vancouver, British Columbia, or paying to the solicitor of record for the Petitioner.

or, if no such solicitor exists then paying to the Petitioner, the amount required to

redeem the Lands. GSA Lands and Property as aforesaid, together with the

costs of this proceeding on a special costs basis or, alternatively, a party and

party c:~sts basis pursuant to Scale B or such other scale as may be appropriate,

before pronouncement of either an Order Absolute of Foreclosure or an Order

confirming the sale of the (..ands. GSA Lands and Property, the Petitioner shall

reconvey the Lands GSA Lands: and ProperEy free and clear of all

encumbrances in favour of it or any person claiming by, through or under it and

shall deliver up, upon oath if required, all deeds, titles and documents in its

custody, possession or power relating thereto to the Respondents so paying or to

whom they shall appoint;

d;~n Order that if the Lands. SSA Lands: and Property not be redeemed, the
- ------ -

Petitioner shall be at liberty to apply for an~rct~r Absolute-of- Foreclos~r~ and

{ooaa6i6s;i}
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upon pronouncement of the Order Absolute of Foreclosure the Respondents and

all persons claiming by, through or under them shall henceforth stand absolutely

debaRed and foreclosed of and from all right, title, interest and equity of

redemption in and to the Lands. GSA Lands and Property and all monies paid

under the Security shall become the property of the Peti~ior~er free ftom any right

of the Respondents and that thereupon the Petitioner shall recover vacant

possession of the Lands. GSA Lands: and Properly;

~L~J~n Order appointing a receiver of the rents and mesne profits in respect of the

Lands. GSA Lands: and Property;

~_An Order for Sale of the Lands. GSA ands and Properly subject to the approval

of this Honourable Court and for the Petitioner to have exclusive conduct of such

sale;

I~I~An Order that the Petitioner may apply to this Court for a further summary

accounting of any amounts which become due to the Petitioner for interest,

taxes, arrears of taxes, insurance premiums, costs, charges, expenses or

otherwise since the date of pronouncement of this Order,

#~~A Certificate of Pending Litigation; .and

8~:~n Order for any further relief that this Honourable Court may seem just.

PART 2: FACTUAL BASIS

1. The Pettifioner, FISGARD CAPfTAL CORPORATION, is a federal company duly

continued in the Province of British Columbia, having an office at 3378 Douglas

Street, in the City of Victoria, in the Prflvince of British Columbia, V8Z 3L3.

2. By a mo►~,gage dated mortgage dated November 30, 2015 made between the
Respondent, ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION, as Mortgagor
and the Petitioner, FfSGARD CAPITAL CORPORATION, as Mortgagee and

registered in the Lower Mainland Land Title Office, in the Province of British
Columbia, on December 3, 2015 under Number CA4854128 and renewed by

{00846165;1}
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way of renewal letter dated December 19, 2016 (together the °Mortgage"~, the

said Respondent mortgaged the following lands:

North Shore — Squarnish Valley Assessment Area
Pender Harbour Fire Protection District

Parcel Identifier: 026-'192-993
Lot ~ and an undivided 3112th share in Lot 7, District Lot 3923 Group 1 New
Westminster District Plan BCP15562

Parcel Identifier. 026-193-001
Lot 5 and an undivided 3112th share in Lot 7, District Lot 3923 Group 1 New
Westminster District Plan BCP15562

Parcel Identifier. 026-193-019
Lot 6 and an undivided 3/12th .share in Lot 7, District Lot 3923 Group 1 New
Westminster District Plan BCP15562

(together, the "Lands'

in favour of the Petitioner in priority to the interests therein or claims thereto of

the Respondents and their respe~five heirs, executors, administrators,

successors and assigns, and any persons claiming by, through or under them.

~_By a general security agreement dated December 1, 2015 made between the

Respondent, Al.L CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION, as Debtor, and

the Petitioner, FISGARD CAPITAL CORPORATION, as the Secured Party and

registered in the Personal Property Registry, in the Province of British Columbia,

on December 3, 2015, under Base Registration Number 9916281 (the "GSA's the

said Respondent charged all~of its present and after acquired personal property,

assets, undertakings, accounts, inventory, immovable and leasehold property.

and all proceeds therefrom (hereinafter called the "Property") to the Petitioner in

priority to the interests therein or claims thereto of the Respondents and their

respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, and any

persons claiming by, through or under them.

~V~

{00846165;1}
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4~5. The Respondent, ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION, is the

registered owner of the Lands. GSA Lands- and Property and the person entitled

to the equity of redemption contained in the Mortgage and GSA (together the

°Security').

~G~

(00846165;1}
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~6. The rate of interest chargeable pursuant to the Security is 8.50% per annum,

compounded monthly, not in advance, as well after as before any or all of

maturity, default and judgment until paid. .

6-~The Security matured June 15, 2017, and as a result, the full balance due

pursuant to the. Security is due and payable, and the Respondent, ALL

CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION, refused or negfecteti to. pay the

same notwithstanding that payment was demanded.

~-8. The principal sum advanced under the Security was $1,250,000.00 and the

principal sum now due under the Security is $1,273,208.64 as at August 1, 2017.

The said amount claimed does not include any penalty or bonus.

~:9. The per diem interest due on the said principal sum of $1,273,208.64 is based on

the interest rate of 8.50% per annum, compounded monthly, not in advance.

~9- The fa4lowing sets out the holders of charges, nature of charges and registration

numbers of the charges registered in the Lower Mainland Land Titte Office

against the title of the Lands, all of which charges rank in priority behind the

interest of the Pet~ioner.

RESPONDENT NATURE OF INTEREST REGISTRATION NUMBER

VAN MAREN FINANCIAL Mortgage CA5479890
LTD. Assignment of Rents CA5479891

~-A:~The following sets out the holders of charges, nature of charges and registration

numbers of the charges registered in British Columbia Personal Property

Registry against -the Respondent, ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT

CORPORATION, all of which charges rank in priority behind the interest of the

Petitioner.

~oosa6i6s;i}
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RESPONDENT MATURE OF {NTEREST REGISTRATION NUMBER

VAN MAREN FINANCIAL PPSA Security Agreement 515813)
LTD.

-~-x-:12 There are no other persons having a registered interest in the lands~Q

and Property with respect to which the Security of the Petitioner has

priority.

a-~:1=The Petitioner has not entered into nor taken possession of the Lands

and Property.

14~,The Securit~r is a first Mortgage against the Lands and Property3

r
i
l

PART 3: LEGAI. BASIS

1. Rules 1-3, 10-2, 13-5, 14-1, 16-1, 21-7, and' 22-1 of the Rues of the Courf.

PART 4: MATERIAL TO BE RELIED ON

1. Affidavit #1 of SHANNON O'FI.YNN made AUGUST , 2017, and

affidavit #1 of ALAN A. FRYDENLUND, Q.C. made AUGUST , 2017.

~:~ Affiidavit #2 of ALAN A. FRYDENLUND~ Q.C. made OCTOBER 11.2017.

The Petitioner estimates that the Hearing o~~he Petition will take 5 minutes.

Date: OCTOBER 11. .~ ti . .
2017 ----~-~:._. , ~ ~ ~ S na e o er for Petitioner, FISGARD

~ ~ - ; CA TAL CORPORATION, Alan
. A. Frydenlund, Q.C.

{oosast~s;i}
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TO BE COMPLETED BY THE COURT ONLY:

Order made

[ j in tfie terms requested in paragraphs of Part 1 of this Petition

[ ] with the following variations and additional terms:

Date:
Signature of [ ]Judge [ ]Master

~~

{oosasi~s;i}
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No.
Vancouver Registry

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

BETWEEN:

FISGARD CAPITAL CORPORATION

Petitioner

AND:

ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION
VAN MAREN FINANCIAL LTD..

Respondents

ENDORSEMENT ON ORIGINATING PLEADING OR PETITION
FOR SERVICE OUTSIDE BRITISH COLUMBIA

The Petitioner, FISGARD CAPITAL CORPORATION, claims the right to serve this
Petition on the Respondents, or any of them, outside British Columbia on the grounds,
infer alia, that the proceeding:

(a) is brought to enforce, assert, declare or determine proprietary or possessory
rights or a security interest in properfy in British Columbia that is immovable
or movable property;

(b) is brought to interpret, rectify, or enforce any deed, contract, or other
instrument in relation to properly in British Columbia that is immovable or
movable property;

(c) concerns contractual obligations, and the contractual obligations, to a
substantial extent, were to be performed in British Columbia;

(d) concerns contractual obligations, and by its express terms, the contract is
governed by the law of British Columbia.

[00846165;I}
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No. H-170363
Vancouver Registry

iN THE SUPREME COURT OF
BRITISH COLUMBIA

BETWEEN:

FISGARD CAPITAL CORPORATION

Petitioner

AND:

ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION
VAN MAREN FINANCIAL LTD.

Respondents

AMENDED PETITION TO THE COURT

OWEN BIRD LAW CORPORATION
P.O. Box 49130

Three Bentall Centre
2900-595 Burrard Street

Vancouver, B.C.
V7X 1 J 5

Tel: (604) 688-0401
Fax: (604) 632-4.486.

Alan A. Frydenlund, Q.C.
28199-0359

{00805606;1}



21~

NO.
VANCOUVER REGISTRY

I N THE SUPREME COURT OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

I N THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES' CREDITORS ARRANGEMENT ACT,
R.S.C. 1985, c. C-36, AS AMENDED

AND

I N THE MATTER OF THE CANADA BUSINESS CORPORATIONS ACT,
R.S.C. 1985, c. C-44, AS AMENDED

AND

I N THE MATTER OF A PLAN OF COMPROMISE AND ARRANGEMENT OF

ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION

CONSENT TO ACT AS MONITOR

BOALE, WOOD &COMPANY LTD., of Suite 1140 - 800 West Pender Street, Vancouver,
British Columbia, represented by John D. McEown, a Trustee, does hereby consent to act as Monitor
in the matter of the Corporation Companies' Creditors Arrangement Act proceedings of All
Canadian Investment Corporation.

DATED AT the City of Vancouver, British Columbia, this 31St day of October, 2017.

Boale, od &Company Ltd.

Per: Ji hn cEown, A, CA, CIRP

This is Exhibit .. ~...... referred to in the affidavit of

~G(~~:L~C~.. ~.?-i~.r'̂~'^..sworn(oraifirmed)

before me on ~..)..~! ~.:~..~. ~ ~}.. (dd/mmrNyyyy]

............ .... ......... ..... .................................................
A Commissioner for taking Affidavits

within British Columbia



ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION

Weekly Cash Flow Projection

November 5 to December 31, 2017

Estimated Cash Inflows

Mortgage Interest Payments

Mortgage Payouts/Paydowns

Estmated Cash Outflows

Management Fees

Bank Charges

Accounting Costs

Monitor Fees

Legal Fees

Other

Estimated Net Cash Inflows (Outflows)

Estimated Opening Cash Position

Estimated Closing Cash Position

Cash Flow Projection Assumptions:

Week Week Week Week Week Week Week Week Total

Ending Nov 12 Ending Nov 19 Ending Nov 26 Ending Dec 3 EndingDec 10 Ending Dec 17 Ending Dec 24 Ending Dec 31

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

$ 49,000 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 49,000

- - 75,000 100,000 - 50,000 - 50,000 275,000

49,000 - 75,000 100,000 - 50,000 - 50,000 324,000

- - 20,000 30,000 - 20,000 - - 70,000

- - - 105 - - - 105 210

- - - - - 10,000 - - 10,000

15,000 - 25,000 30,000 - 10,000 - 10,000 90,000

25,000 - 25,000 40,000 - 20,000 - 40,000 150,000

40,000 - 70,000 100,105 - 60,000 - 50,105 320,210

9,000 - 5,000 (105) - (10,000) - (105) 3,790

10,470 19,470 19,470 24,470 24,365 24,365 14,365 14,365 10,470

$ 19,470 $ 19,470 $ 24,470 $ 24,365 $ 24,365 $ 14,365 $ 14,365 $ 14,260 $ 14,260

1) Cash Inflows are based on the terms of the loan agreements with ACIC customers and anticipated loan interest/paydowns by borrowers

~ ; '~ ~~ ~2) Cash outflows for management fees are based on current actual overhead costs of the management company and are not based on the Management Agreement 4~ ;~-

~' ;(~~:
3) Cash outflows for the Monitor and legal fees are based on estimates provided by the Monitor and ACIC's legal councel ~• w •-j

g ~ .
~- :a

4) Cash ouflows assume no lending by ACIC and no interest or principle payments to secured creditors, debentureholders snd shareholders

~~ E~
5) Cash Flow Projections are made based on assumptions of future events. Accordingly, the actual results will vary from the information presented ~~

and the variances may be material. ~ ~ : •.-,_,
3~: ~ ~

~a ~ ~
m ~: n

6) The Projections have been prepared solely for the purposes of filing the CCAA petition. Readers are cautioned that the projections may not be d ~ ~

appropriate for any other purposes. 5'R ~ 3 Q
3 ~

Prepared by Management of All Canadian Investment Corporation ~ ~ ~ ~

jV ~.. ... 5~.



SAN DYO~E & COIVIPAN~'
, ~-'~ Chartered Professional Accountant

This is F~chibit .11,1........ referred to in the affidavit of

...•~•'~+~1-~•• ~. ~~. ~.['~'✓.1... sworn (or affirmed)

before me on ~...~..~4.?. %.. J.. ~?.1..~... [dd/mmm/yyyyl

.~....... . ...... .. .. ......... ......:................................
A Co~ioner.for taking Affidavits

within. British Columbia

ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION

INDEX

TO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2016

(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

Review Engagement Report;

Exhibit "A" Statement of Financial Position;

Exhibit "B" Statement of Profit or Loss;

Exhibit "C" Statement of Changes in Equity;

Exhibit "D" Statement. of Cash Flows;

Notes to the Financial Statements.

• ~: ~~ Cat.!=r=r~:-o SuiCe 6-237 6th Avenue j Ph: 250.434,7182 Fax. 250.434.6542

~'" ~"'~_ ~~~~~'~ Kamloops, BC ~ info@sandykecpa.ca
A~c.c~u.~~r~? 

V2C 3R2 www,sandykecpa.ca

X13



SAN DYKE &COMPANY1"

j~j :y"... Chartered Professional Accountant

To the Shareholders of
ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORP~RATIQN

have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT
CORPORATION, which comprise the statement of financial position as at September 30, 2016, and the
statements of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity anri statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Practitioner's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express a conclusion on the accompanying financial statements. I conducted my
review in accordance with Internafionaf Standard on Review Engagements (ISRE) 2400 (Revised),
Engagements to Review Historical Financial Statements. ISRE 2400 (Revised) requires me to conclude
whether anything has come to my attention that causes me to believe that the financial statements, taken
as a whole, are not prepared in all material respects in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework. This Standard also requires me to comply with relevant ethical requirements.

A review of financial statements in accordance with 15RE 2400 (Revised) is a limited assurance
engagement. The practitioner performs procedures, primarily consisting ofi making inquiries of
management and others within the entity, as appropriate, and applying analytical procedures, and
evaluates the evidence obtained.
The procedures performed in a review are substantially less than those performed in an audit conducted
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Accordingly, I do not express an audit opinion on
these financial statements.

Conclusion

Based on my review, nothing has come to my attention that causes me to believe that these financial
statements do not present fairly, in all material respects, (or do not give a true and fair view o~ the
financial position of ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION as at September 30, 2016, and its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standa~s.

~ -~~c,r
Sandyke 'Company CPA
June 12, 2017
Kamloops, British Columbia
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E`-~=~ SANDYKE & COMPANY
Chartered Professional Accountant

EXHIBIT "A"
ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CQRPORATION

BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2016

(Expressed In Canadian dollars)

2016 2015
ASSETS -

CURRENT
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5) $ 166,851 $ 402,261
Accrued interest receivable 171,333 324,491
Prepaid expenses (Note 6) 1,452,275 -
Current portion of promissory notes receivable (Note 7) 13,432,253 12,630,490
Current portion of mortgages receivable (Note 8) 24.028,529 12,262A93

39,251,241 25,619,335
NON-CURRENT
ASSET HELD FOR SALE (Note 10) 2,700,000 2,700,000

PROMISSORY NOTES RECEIVABLE (Note 7) 20,000 -

MORTGAGES RECEIVABLE (Note 8) 620,554 11,239,088

DEFERRED TAX ASSET (Note 15) 893,060 1,046,316

$ 43,484,855 $ 40,604,739

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Trade and other payables (Note 11) ~ 54,396 $ 352,252
Short-term debt (Note 12) 5,794,890 2,400,106
Current portion of corporate debentures (Note 13) 1,100,000 3,050.000

6,949,286 5,802,358
NON-CURRENT
BORROWINGS (Note 14) 38.746,000 37,449,000

45,695,286 43.251,358
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
SHARE CAPITAL - (Note 16) 4 4
RETAINED EARNINGS (2,210,435) (2,490,629)

(2,210,431) (2,490,625)

$ 43,484,855 $ 40,760,733

The financial statgr~ients wedauthorized for issue by the board of directos and were signed
on its behalf by;~

,-

c ' ~~"̀~ ,Director,_Y-/̀

The attached notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

~~~
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~~: ~- SANDYKE & ~O1~PAll~~TTY
.~ Chartered Professional Accountant

ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For The Year Ended September 30, 2016
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

EXHIBIT "B"

2016 2015

REVENUE
Interest income $ 3,429,419 $ 3,091,768

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Management fee 1..,334,470 1,235,810
Professional fees 64,714 125,060
Levies (Note 17) 14,890 71.518

1,414,074 1,432,388

OPERATING INCOME BEFORE FINANCING COSTS 2.,015,345 1,659,380

FINANCING COSTS
Interest and bank charges 2,674 2,987
Interest on short term debt 189,650 241,450
Debenture interest 228,116 210,105
Financing fees 157,697 62,698
Preferred share interest (dividends) 749.280 1,239,669

1.327,417 1.756,909

WGOME (LOSS) BEFORE THE FOLLOWING ITEM 687,928 ( 97,529)

IMPAIRMENT RECOVERY (LOSSES) (98,482) (114,781)

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE PROVISION FOR TAXES $ 589,446 $ (212,310)

Income tax (refundable) 153,256 (56,316)

NET INCOME (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR $_ 436,190 $ (155,994)

The attached notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

21~
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~~ SAN ~l'KE ~ C~IVIPAl~+T'~' ~1~
~ _.,__ar..... Chartered Professional Accountant

ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CHANGES fN SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

For The Year Ended September 30, 2016
(Expressed in Canadian dollars except the number of shares)

EXHIBIT "C"

NUMBER OF TOTAL
OUTSTANDING SHARE RETAINED SHAREHOLDER'S
SHARES CAPITAL EARNINGS - EQUITY

$ (2,490,627)BALANCE AS AT OCTOBER 1, 2014 4 4 $ (2,490,637)

LOSS FAR THE YEAR - - (155,994) (2,646,621)

BALANCE AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2075 4 4 (2,646,625) (2,646,621)

LOSS FOR THE YEAR - - 436,190 (2,210,431}

BALANCE AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 4 4 $ 2 ~2 ) $ 2 210 431)

The attached notes are an integral part of these fiinanciai statements.
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= SAIV DYKE 8r C~►MPAl~TTY
r _ _ -w Chartered Professional Accountant

ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For The Year Ended September 30, 2016
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

EXHIBIT "D"

- 2016 2015

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY:

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss) for fhe year
Changes in non-cash working capital

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of new mortgages and loans receivable
Repayment of mortgages and loans receivable
Deposit on land and building

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from short term debt
Repayment of short-term debt
Dividends paid
Redemption of preferred shares
Proceeds from issuance of preferred shares
Proceeds/payment fromlto debenture offering

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH, beginning of year

CASH, eno or' year

The attached notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

$ 436,190 $ (155,994)
X4,181,256) 826,394

(3,745,066) 670,400

(2,313,121) (4,613,000)
3,249,273 3,384,356

- 100,000

936,152 (1,128,644)

4,750,000 1,450,000
(1,355,216) (1,201,517)

(749,280) (1,239,669)
(287, 000) (446,000)
165,000 954,000
50,000 900,000

2.573,504 416, 814

(235,410) (41,430)

402.261 443,691

~v 166,851 $ 402,261

21~

~'s~ ~hnf<~ria~o Suite 6-237 6th Avenue ~ Ph: 250.434.1182 Fax: 250.434.6542

r ~'- ~ c `'`', Kamloops, l3C info@sandykecpa.ca
A~ cc~~ ~,~ t ~a r

V2C 3R2 I µ~ww.sandykecpa.ca



-- SAlVDYI<E ~r CQ~M~'ANY
~~~t=-` Chartered Professional Accountant

ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2016
(Expressed in Canadian dollars]

Page 1 of 10

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND GENEERAL INFORMATION
NATURE OF OPERATIONS
All Canadian Investment Corporation {"ACIC") (the Company) is a mortgage investment corporation pursuant to the provisions
of Secfion 130.1 of the Income Tax Act (Canada). As a mortgage investment corporation, dividends paid by the Company,
during the year or within ninety days following the year end, are deductible in compu#ing income for tax purposes. The
Company provides promissory notes and mortgages to eligible borrowers for pooled investment funds of the preferred
shareholders.

GENERAL INFORMATION
The Company is governed by the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia). The head office is located at 781 Marine Park
Drive, Suite 2, Salmon Arm, BC, Canada.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), as
required by Publicly Accountable Enterprises (PAE's) and current tax legislation. The amounts are expressed in Canadian
dollars.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS ANQ INTERPRETATIONS
2.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Disclosure Initiative
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements has been revised to incorporate amendments issued by the IASB in December
2.014. The amendments clarify the existing presentation and disclosure requirements in IA5 1, including the presentation of line
items, subtotals and notes. They also provide guidance to assist entities to apply judgment in determining what information to
disclose, and how that information is presented in their financial statements. Prospective application of these amendments had
no significant impact on the Company's profit or loss or financial position.

2.2 TRANSITION TO IFRS
BASIS OF TRANSITION TD IFRS
APPLICATION OF IFRS 1
The Company's financial statements for the year ending September 30, 2015 are the first annual financial statements to be
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). These financial statements were prepared
as described in notes 2 and 3. The Company applied IFRS 1 in preparing these annual consolidated financial statements.

The date of IFRS adoption by the Company is October 1, 2014 and the end of the reporting period for these financial
statements is September 30, 2015. However, the Companys date of transition to IFRSs is October 1, 2014, i.e. the date of
the earliest comparative period.

In preparing its first IFRS consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS 1, the Company elected to use some of
the exemptions related to retrospective application of certain IFRSs, while taking into account exceptions to retrospective
application of other IFRSs.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.7 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies described in this note. These policies
have been applied throughout the periods presented, unless otherwise stated. These financial statements have been prepared
on the historical basis.

All expenses related to financial instruments are reported under "Finance cosis" in the statement of profit or loss.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or Toss
All of the financial instruments in this category meet the definition of financial assets held for trading. These financial
instruments are held for the purpose of selling them in the short term. Derivatives are included in this category unless they are
a designated and effective hedging instrument.

The financial instruments included in this category are initially and subsequently recognized at fair value, Directly attributable
transaction costs and changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss.
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- . SANDYICE $~ CC~I~IP~NY
~̀.`~~':'_`; :_ Chartered Professional Accountant

ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2016
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

Page 2 of 10

(b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets when they will be realized within 12 months of the reporting date; otherwise they
are classified as non-current assets. The Company includes cash and cash equivalents, Accrued interest receivable, Current
portion of promissory notes receivable and Current portion of mortgages receivable in this category.

Financial instruments included in this category are initially recognized at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequently, loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost. using the effective interest method.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on individual loans and receivables has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial assets original effective inferest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance-account or directly if the account is deemed uncoilectible. When loans and receivables are deemed to be
uncollectible after recording an allowance, they are written off against the allowance. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized {such as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. The reversal is limited to what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognized at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the impairment loss and the amount of the reversal are
recognized in profit or loss.

Pending the identification of impairment losses on individual assets, the Company collectively assesses the impairment (risk of
collectibility of the receivables) by grouping financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics. As soon as information is
available that specifically identifies losses on individually impaired assets in a group, those assets are removed from the group.
Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group. Estimates of changes in future
cash flows reflect and are directionally consistent with changes in factors that are indicative of incurred losses in the Company
and their magnitude. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce
any differences befiveen loss estimates and actual loss experience.

(c) Available-for-sale assets
Available-for-sale assets include non-derivative financial assets that are either designated as such upon initial recognition or
are not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in current assets when they will be realized within 12 months
of the reporting date, otherwise they are classified as non-current assets, This item includes land available for resale classified
as anon-current asset.

Financial instruments included in this category are initially recognized at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequently, available-for-sale assets are measured at fair value, and unrealized gains or losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

However, when a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognized in other comprehensive
income and there is objective evidence of prolonged impairment, the cumulative loss that has been recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment even though the financial
asset has not been derecognized.

When the asset is sold or the impairment charge is recognized, the accumulated gains or losses in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss and the reclassification is shown separately in the statement of comprehensive income.

(d) ether liabilities
Financial instruments included in this category are initially recognized at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
measurement, these other liabilities are measured at amortized. cost. The difference between the initial carrying amount of
these other liabilities and their redemption value is recognized in profit or loss over the life of the contract using the effective
interest method. They are classified as current liabilities when they are payable within 12 months of the reporting date,
otherwise they are classified as non-current liabilities. This item includes the following categories: trade and other payables,
pre-payments and mangement fee payable.
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ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2016
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

Page3of10

3.2 ASSET HELD FOR SALE
Assets held for disposal are not depreciated and are presented separately in the statement of financial position at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. An asset is regarded as held for sale if its carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction, rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset must be
available for immediate sale and its sale must be highly probable. This item includes land available for resale. as anon-current
asset.

3.3 BORROWING C05TS
The Company capitalizes borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition of its qualifying assets as they are being
constructed. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred..

Specific borrowings
Ta the extent that the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, it determines the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization as the actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing during the period
less any investment income on the temporary investment of those borrowings.

The financing arrangements for a qualifying asset may result in the Company obtaining borrowed funds and incurring
associated borrowing costs before some or all of the funds are used for expenditures on the qualifying asset. In such
circumstances, the funds are temporarily invested pending their expenditure on the qualifying asset. In determining the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization during a period, the Company assesses the amount of investment income earned
on such funds and deducts the amount from the borrowing costs incurred.

General borrowings
To the extent that the Company borrows funds generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, it
determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures nn that
asset. The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the Company's borrowings that are
outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets.

3.4 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
All non-financial assets are reviewed at the end of each. reporting period to determine whether the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. If evidence of impairment is identified, the asset is tested for impairment.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Value in use is
determined on the basis of profit or loss projections over the useful life of the asset using management's forecast tools (for the
three first years) and an estimate over the subsequent years based on long-term market trends for the asset involved. The
calculation takes into account net cash flows to be received on disposal of the asset at the end of its useful life based on the
growth and profitability profile of each asset. An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss when the carrying amount of any
asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

An asset impairment loss recognized in prior periods is reversed when there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If this is the case, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount, without exceeding the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior periods.

3.5 PROVI510NS
A provision is recorded when if becomes probable that a present obligation arising from a past event will require an outflow of
resources that can be reliably estimated. The amount of the provision is the best estimate of the outFlow of resources required
to settle this obligation. Where a potential obligation resulting from past events exists, but occurrence of the outflow of
resources is not probable or the estimate is not reliable, these contingent liabilities are disclosed in unrecognized commitments
and litigation. The provisions include provisions for litigation (legal, employee-related) and others (environment).
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_~~=~~:~ Chartered Professional Accountant

ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2016
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

(Page 4 of 10)

The more significant or complex litigation cases are reviewed one by one on a regular basis by fhe Company's legal
department with the assistance of outside counsel.

3.6 INCOME TAXES
The tax expense includes current and deferred tax. This expense is recognized in profit or loss, except for income tax related to
the components of other comprehensive income or equity, in which case the tax expense is recognized in other comprehensive
income or equity respectively.

Current tax assets and liabilities are obligations or claims for the current and prior periods to be recovered from (or paid to)
taxation authorities that are still outstanding at the end of the reporting period. Current tax is computed on the basis of taxable
profit which differs from profit or loss. This calculation was made using tax rates and laws enacted at the end of the reporting
Fzriod. There is no current income tax due.

deferred income taxis recognized based on temporary differences between the carrying amount and the tax basis of the
assets and liabilities. Any change in the net amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities is included in profit or loss. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are determined based on enacted or substantively enacted tax rates and laws which are expected to
apply to taxable profit for the periods in which the assets and liabilities will be recovered or settled.. Deferred tax assets are
recognized when it is likely they will be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

3.7 EQUITY
Common share capital is presented at the value of the shares issued. Costs related to issuing shares are reported, net of tax,
as a deduction ofthe proceeds from the issue.

Dividends would be included under liabilities in the period in which the payment is approved by the Board of Directors. No
dividends have been issued to the common shareholder.

3.8 EARNINGS PER SNARE
Basic and diluted net earnings per share are calculated using the weighted average number of outstanding common shares.
The calculation of diluted earnings per share takes into account the potential impact of the exercise of all dilutive instruments.
When funds are obtained at the date of exercise of the dilutive instruments, the "treasury stock" method is used to determine
the theoretical number of shares to be taken into account.

4. MAIN SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS BY MANAGEMENT

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, and disclosures
of contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of the financial statements, and the carrying amount of revenues and
expenses for the reporting period. These estimates are changed periodically, and as adjustments become necessary, they are
reported in profit or loss in the period in which they become known.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
In accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, the Company must classify fair value measurements
using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making its fair value measurements. The following
hierarchy has been used in determining and disclosing fair value of financial instrument:
Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for the same instrument (ie. Without modification or repackaging);
Level 2: quoted prices in active markets far similar assets or liabilities ar other valuation techniques for which all significant
inputs are basEd on observable market data; and
Level 3: valuation techniques for which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

CRITICAL JUDGMENT
The significant accounting policies subject to such judgments that, in the Company's opinion, could significantly affect the
reported results or financial position, are as follows:
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Interest Rate Risk
Promissory notes and mortgages receivable are valued using Level 3 measures as there are no quoted prices in an.active
market for the Company's mortgages. Management makes its determination of fair value for its mortgage investments based on
its assessment of the current mortgage market for mortgages of same or similar terms.

The Company is exposed fo interest rate risk from the possibility that cash flows could change based on changes in interest
rates as well as the possibility that fair value could change due to changes in interest rates. Should there be significant changes
in interest rates, the Company could incur significant changes in the fair value of the investment in promissory notes and
mortgage receivable. Promissory notes and mortgages receivable interest rates are fixed for the duration of the mortgage from
thereby reducingthe entity's sensitivity fo changes in market interest rates.

The Company feels that no other financial instruments are subject to interest rate risk due to their short-term maturity.

Credit Risk
The company is exposed to credit risk from the possibility that borrowers may default on their promissory note and mortgage.
obligations, the majority of which are collateralized by real property in British Columbia. Management attempts to mitigate this
risk by ensuring that fhe position of the Company is covered by the value of property. The Company has five loans and
mortgages (2015 —five) that are individually in excess of 5% of the total portfolio. Collectively, these represent 72% (2015 —
72%) of the total portfolio. The Company is in a first priority position on 8% (2015 — 6%) of mortgage charges.

Additionally, the Company is exposed to credit risk concentration on its mortgages and promissory notes as there are four
guarantors (2015 —four) that are individually in excess of 5% of the total portfolio. Collectively, these represent 72% (2015 —
87%) of the total portfolio. One of these individuals accounts for 64% (2015 — 65%) of outstanding mortgages and promissory
notes receivable.

The Company is exposed to credit risk concentration on its cash balance as it is held substantially in one financial institution

Liquidity Risk
The Company is exposed to liquidity risk on the outstanding preferred shares since a certain number are redeemed each year
at the request of the shareholder. This risk has been mitigated as the approval of the request to redeem shares is at the
discretion of the Board of Directors of the Company. As well, the total amount of preferred shares to be redeemed in any
quarter is not to exceed 2-1/2% of the outstanding preferred shares at the end of the immediately preceding calendar quarter.

As noted in Note 6 and 7, the Company is exposed to liquidity risk as 65% of promissory notes and mortgages are advanced
for the purposes of financing residential and commercial projects under development. Interest earned on these loans are
capitalized and not due until the projects are complete. This defers the cash received and exposes the Company to liquidity
risk. The Company manages this risk by monitoring cash flows and limiting discretionary cash outflows such as management
fees, redemption of shares and dividends if necessary.

Fair Values
The estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments are based on relevant market prices and information available
at the time. No fair values have been determined for any asset that is not a financial instrument.

Not all financial instruments are readily marketable. As a result, estimates of fair value are subjective and should not be
considered precise. The estimated fair values of cash, accrued interest receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities,
due to related par#y;-and short-term debt are assumed to equal their book values, as the items are short term in nature

Management makes its determination of fair values of promissory notes and mortgages receivable by discounting their
expected future cash flows ai the prevailing interest rate for promissory notes and mortgages of same or similar terms. The
initial terms of the promissory notes and mortgages represent their fair value at the time of promissory note and mortgage
origination. When collection of principal on a particular mortgage investment is no longer reasonably assured, the fair value of
the mortgage is reduced to reflect the estimated net realizable recovery from the collateral securing the loan.
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5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The Company holds its cash in two financial institutions earning interest between zero and 1.25%. There was$s35,140 in
lawyer trust account in the previous year.

6. PREPAID EXPENSES
2016 2015

Prepaid financial services $ 926,080 $
Prepaid interest 525,000 -
Prepaid legal fees - 1,195 -

$ 1,452,275 $ -

7. PROMISSORY NOTES RECEIVABLE
The promissory notes written by the Company are non-registered loans, for terms ranging from one to three years and bear
interest at rates ranging from 8% to 12°/o per annum and are non-registered.

20.16 2015
Non-registered demand loans, evidenced by promissory notes $ 13,452,253 $ 12,595,985
Non-registered loans, evidenced by promissory note, due 2016 - 58,607

13,452, 253 12, 654, 592
Allowance for impaired loans (Note 9) - (24,102)

13, 452, 253 12, 630, 490
Current portion 13,432,253 12,630,490

$ 20,000 $

As at September 30, 2016, there is one (2015 —one) promissory notes in arrears which totaled $100,000 (2015 - $24,102). This
promossary note has been classified as impaired.

Promissory note interest totaling $613,306 (2015 - $ 2,602,631) was capitalized during the year, in line with the revised terms of
the promissory notes.

As outlined in Note 4, many of the above promissory notes have been issued primarily to residential property developers to
fund projects currently under construction. Final cash inflows from these projects are not determinable as at the balance sheet
date. Should these projects not perform as projected, the value of the promissory note related to the specific project may need
to be adjusted to fair value if it is determined to be impaired as the project nears completion and estimated cash flows can be
more easily determined.

8. MORTGAGES RECEIVABLE
The mortgages written by the Company are for terms ranging from one to two years and bear interest at rates ranging from 6%
to 12% per annum.

' 2016 2015
Mortgages collateralized by commercial property $ 2,837,947 $ 3,399,933
Mortgages collateralized by residential property 21,531,310 19,920,623
Mortgages coNateralized by raw residential land 460.000 36D,000

24,828,457 23,680,556
Allowance for impaired loans (Note 9) !179,374) (179,374)

24,649,083 23,501,182
Less: mortgages due within one year 13,802,099 3,415,592
Less: mortgages due on demand 10,226,430 8.846,503

$ 62Q554 $ 11.239,087

As at September 30, 2016, there are no mortgages (2015 —nil) in arrears.
Mortgage interest totaling $3,006,177 (2015 - $ 2,051,733), was capitalized during the year, in line with the revised terms of the
mortgages.
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As noted in Note 4, many of the above mortgages have been issued primarily to residential properly developers to fund projects
currently under construction. Final cash flows from these projects are not determinable as at the balance'sheet date. Should
these projects not perform as projected, the value of the mortgage related to the specific project may_need to be adjusted to fair
val~~e if it is determined to be impaired as the project nears completion and estimated cash flows can be more easily
determined.

9. ALLOWANCE FOR IMPAIRED PROMfSSORY NOTES AND MORTGAGE RECEIVABLE
In determining the allowance for impaired loans, management considers#actors such as the composition -and credit quality of
the portfolio, current economic conditions and trends and historical loss experience.

The provision for commercial mortgages represents the adjustment to fair value of mortgages and promissory notes receivable
determined by discounting future cash flows at the Company's prevailing rate of return on new mortgages and promissory
notes.

10. ASSET HELD FOR RESALE
This item includes land available for resale classified as anon-current asset:

2016 2015
Land $ 2,700,000 $ 2,700,000

91. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2016 2015

Trade payables $ 54,396 $ 76,442
Management fee payable - 275.810

54,396 $ 352,252

12. SHORT-TERM DEBT
2016 2015

Demand loan, with interesf at 6% per annum, interest is paid
quarterly, no set terms of repayment $ 1,044,890_ $ 1,100,000
Loan, with interest at 10.5% per annum, monthly payments
of $115,104 including interest and principal - 850,000
Mortgage payable, with interest at 12% per annum, monthly payments
of $17,746 including interest and principal - 450,106
Mortgage payable, interest at 8.50% per annum, monthly
interest only payments due June 15, 2017 1,25D,000 -
Loan, with interest at 36%per annum, amount is due
six months from date of funding 3,500,000 -

$ 5,794,890 $ 2.400,106
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73. BORROWINGS
- `dross financial debt used and defined by the Company includes fhe following:

^ Debentures
During the year, debentures of $50,000 (2015-$900,000) were issued.
Series A Corporate Debenture., monthly interest 8%
maturing May 31, 2017

Series B Corporate Debenture, monthly interest at 7% _
maturing November 30, 2017

Current portion

Preferred shares

Preferred share transactions for the years ended September 30:

.Opening balance, heginning of year
Exercise of warrants 19 shares (2D15-1,594)
New shares sold 165. shares (2015-954)
Redeemed for cash 287 shares (2015-446)

Closing balance, end of year

2016 2015

$ 1,100,000 $ 1,550,000

7,400,000 1.500,000
2,500,000 3,050,000
1,100,000 3,050,000
1,400,000 -

37,346,000 37.449,000
$ 38,746,000 $ 37.449,000

2016 2015
$ 37,449,000 $ 35,347,000

19,000 1,594,00
165,000 954,000
(287,000) (446,000)

$ 37,346,000 $ 37.449,000

Dividends
Each preferred share entitles its registered holder to participate on a pro-rata basis with the other preferred shareholders in the
distribu#ion of 100°/a of the mortgage investment income that remains after the payment of expenses of the issuer and the
management fee, until such time as the preferred shareholders have received an amount in each year equal to 12% of their
paid up capital in the corporation. Thereafter, the common shareholders will be entitled to receive the distribution of 100% of
the balance of the mortgage investment income until such time as they have received an amount in each year equal #0 12% of
their paid up capital. Thereafter, the balance of the mortgage investment income will be paid to the preferred and common
shareholders pro-rata based on their respective paid up capital in fhe Company.

Redemption of Preferred Shares
A holder of preferred shares may request the Company to redeem the whole or any part of the preferred shares by giving notice
to the Company. The Company will not redeem any preferred shares if at any time of such redemption the Company is
insolvent or if such redemption render the Company insolvent, if such redemption will reduce the Company's cash reserves
below a level which the Directors determine, in their sole discretion, to be prudent, or if such redemption will cause the
Company to breach the requirement that at least 50% of the cost amount of its property must consist of bank deposits or
mortgage loans made in respect of residential properties.

Share Purchase Warrants
Pursuant to a private Offering Memorandum dated June 22, 2015, the Company has offered to issue up to 50,000 units at
$1,000 per unit. Each unit consists of one preferred share and one non-transferable, preferred share purchase warrant. Each
warrant entitles the holder to purchase up to ten additional preferred shares of the Company at a price which is the lesser of
X1,000 per preferred share and the book value per preferred share as determined as at the fiscal year end of the Company
immediately preceding the date the warrant is exercised. Each warrant is exercisable for a period of ten years from the date of
issuance.
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At September 30, 2016, there are 17,485 (2015 — 18,770) share purchase warrants outstanding.

On the issuance of the shares with attached warrants., management determined the value. of the warrants to be nominal and,
therefore, none of the share proceeds were allocated to the warrants.

14. INCOME TAXES
The company has non-capital losses available of approximately $3,434,848 (2015- $3,767,689) which may be applied against
future taxable income. The right to claim these losses expires between 2030 and 2035.

15. DEFERRED TAX ASSET
Deferred income tax asset reflects the net effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.
The major components of future income tax are:

2016 2015
Temporary differences relating to loss carry-forwards $ 893A60 $ 1,046,316

16. SHARE CAPITAL
Share Capital
Authorized
1,000,000,000 Common shares without par value
1,000,000,000 Preferred shares without par value

2016 2015
Issued

4 Common shares $ 4 $ 4

~7. LEVIES
2016 2015

Property tax $ 14,890 $ 18,9Q1
Property transfer tax - 52.617

$ 14,890 $_ 71,518

18. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNWGS PER SHARE
The calculation of basic and. diluted earnings (loss) per share for the year ended September 31, 2016 was based on the income
attributable to common shareholders of $410,190 [2015 -($(155,994))] and a weighted average number of common shares
outstanding of 4 (2015 - 4)

The basic and diluted earnings per share is $102,548 per share in 2016 [($38,999) in 2015].

19. CAPITAL DISCL05URES
The Company considers its capital to comprise of its share capital.

In managing its capital, the Company's primary objective is to ensure its continued ability to provide a consistent return for its
shareholders through capital grov✓th and investment in mortgages bearing an acceptable interest rate and level of risk.. In order
to achieve this objective, the Company seeks to balance risks and returns at an acceptable level by providing mortgage
financing at an interest rate commensurately with the level of risk. In making decisions to adjust its capital structure to achieve
these objectives, the Company considers both its short-term and its long-term strategic objectives.
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20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
ACIC Financial Development Inc.
The Company has contracted with ACIC Financial Development Inc., a compady under common management, to manage the
operations of the Company. The Management Agreement provides that, in consideration of the services provided by the
Manager as described therein, the Company pays the Manager an annual fee not to exceed the sum of fifteen percent (15%) of
annual gross revenues and two percent (2%) of the Company's assets, which such fee to be payable monthly. Total
management fees paid to ACIC Financial Developmentlnc. for the year ended September 30, 2016, was $1,334,470 (2015 -
$1,235,810), of this amount $0 (2015 - $275,810) is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
In addition, ACIC Financial Development Inc.did not advance any funds {2015 -nil) to All Canadian Investment Corporation.

Joint. Ventures
The Company has loaned a total of $Nil (2015 - $290,000) bearing interest at 12°/a, included in mortgages receivable, to a
joint venture in which ACIC Financial Development Inc. is a join# venture participant. Interest income related to the mortgages
totaled $12,575 (2015 — 34,800) for the year. The amount was paid out during 2016.

These transactions are measured at the exchange amount (the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the
related parties}.

~'°`~•" Ct,G.f"?T~~c6 ~ Suite 6-237 Gth Avenue ~ Ph: 250.434.1182 fax: 250,434.6542
~ t ~F~ ~ I~,1~~~.L I{amloops, QC ~ info@sandykecpa.ca

C C.~:J t f!7
V2C 3R7 www.sandykecpa.ca



NO.

VANCOUVER REGISTRY

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES' CREDITORS ARRANGEMENTACT,

R.S.C. 1985, c. C-36, AS AMENDED

AND

IN THE MATTER OF THE BUSINES~S:.CORPORATIONS ACT,

S.B.C. 2002, c. 57, AS AMENDED

I_~~I~~

IN THE MATTER OF THE CANADA BUSINESS CORPORATIONS ACT,

R.S.C. 1985, c. C-44, AS AMENDED

AND

IN THE MATTER OF A PLAN OF COMPROMISE AND ARRANGEMENT OF

ALL CANADIAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION

AFFIDAVIT NO. 1 OF DONALD BERGMAN

CLARK WILSON LLP

900 — 881 West Georgia Street

Vancouver, BC V7C 3H1

Telephone: 604-687-5700

Facsimile: 604-687-6314

24371-0033

CW 10430372.1


